CASTROVILLE P.O. BOX 1065
COMMUNITY  omesuomcnn s
PR SERVICES DISTRICT

President — Cosme Padilla 24 HOUR TELEPHONE: (831) 633-2560 General Manager — Eric Tynan
Vice President — Ron Stefani Board Secretary ~ Lidia Santos
Director — Glenn Oania

Director ~James R. Cochran Website: CastrovilleCSD.org

Director — Greg MacMillan

AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
TUESDAY, AUGUST 20, 2024 — 4:30 P.M.
DISTRICT BOARD ROOM - 11499 GEIL STREET

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if special assistance is needed to participate in
the Board meeting, please contact Lidia Santos, Board Secretary during regular business hours at (831)
633-2560. Notification received 48 hours before the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable
accommodations.

1.

.

1.

CALL MEETING TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO THE AGENDA

PUBLIC COMMENTS - (Limited to three minutes per speaker within the jurisdiction of items not on the
agenda. The public will have the opportunity to ask questions or make statements as the Board addresses each
agenda item.)

CONSENT CALENDAR:
Consider and Approve the draft minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, July 16, 2024 — motion item
CORRESPONDENCE:
None
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:
Castroville CSD Director, 4-year term (3 seats) Incumbents: Oania, Cochran and Stefani appointed

in-lieu of election and Castroville CSD Director, 2-year term (1 seat) Incumbent: MacMillan
appointed in-lieu of election

2. Clean Water, Issue 2 2024 — What Members Need to Know About Direct Potable Reuse
3. Clean Water, Issue 2 2024 — Pure Water Monterey Expansion Complete by 2025
4. Certificate presented to J. Eric Tynan in recognition of his contribution to the water industry as a

member of American Water Works Association



AGENDA, Page 2
August 20, 2024
CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

PRESENTATION:

1.

2

Monterey County Water Resources Agency Groundwater Monitoring Regulatory Program Update—
Ara Azhderian, General Manager of Monterey County Water Resources Agency

Presentation on the Castroville Oaks Affordable Housing Development and requesting to enter
into an MOU with CCSD contracting for services with CHISPA for the Castroville Oaks Affordable
Housing Development — Paul Tran, Senior Project Manager with CHISPA

NEW BUSINESS:

1.

2.

Board approval of job description and salary range for recruitment of a new Castroville CSD
General Manager — motion item

Resolution No. 2024-07, Approving a proposal from J Johnson & Company, Inc. for Water Main
Repairs in an Amount Not to Exceed $155,000 (Attached Exhibit A Proposal and Exhibit B Sole
Source Justification) — motion item

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

1.

2.
3.

9.

Update on Water Line Replacement Project awarded to contractor Teichert Constructions — Eric
Tynan, General Manager

Update on Well levels — Eric Tynan, General Manager

Update on status of grant/projects for Moss Landing-Sewer Zone 3 (Professional Engineering
Services for Moss Landing Wastewater System Rehabilitation Project ~ Eric Tynan, General
Manager

Update on status of grant/projects for Castroville-Sewer Zone 1 (Washington Sewer Trunk Line
Bypass) — Eric Tynan, General Manager

Update on status of competitive bid process and grant/projects for Castroville-Water Zone 1
(Emergency Deep Aquifer Supply and Storage Tank Project, Well No. 6) for system upgrades and
improvements — Eric Tynan, General Manager

Update on status of grant awarded by Caltrans for the Castroville Landmark Sign Project at
Highway 183 — Eric Tynan, General Manager

Update on the State of California Department of Transportation (Caltrans), Merritt Street
Beautification Project — Eric Tynan, General Manager

Update on the Pedestrian Bridge Enhancement/Improvement Project — Eric Tynan, General
Manager

Update on grant assistance outreach — Eric Tynan, General Manager

CLOSED SESSION:

CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR pursuant to Government Code Section
54956.8

Property Location: APN: 030-141-022-000 and 030-141-023-000, Southwest corner of Merritt
Street and Washington Street, Castroville, CA

Negotiating Parties: Castroville CSD and Salvador Alvarez and Hermilinda Alvarez
Property Owner: Salvador Alvarez and Hermilinda Alvarez
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment

Property Location: APN: 133-143-016-000, Highway 1 at Washington Road, Castroville, CA
Negotiating Parties: Castroville CSD and Vegetable Ranches, LLC

Property Owner: Vegetable Ranches, LLC
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment



AGENDA, Page 3
August 20, 2024
CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION ITEM: (if applicable):
The board will reconvene into an open session prior to adjournment and shall announce any
action taken during the closed session.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMUNICATION: When needed, this time is reserved for the Board

of Directors to communicate activity, educational classes, and/or Committee reports.

1. Update on Monterey One Water board meeting — Ron Stefani, Director
2. Update on the Salinas Valley Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency — Ron Stefani, Director
3. Update on other meetings/educational classes attended by Castroville CSD Directors

GENERAL OPERATIONS:
1. General Manager’s Report — Compliance Update, Current Projects Update, Seminars Update,
Staff Update, Suggestive Projects Discussions
2. Operations Report
a) Water - Pumpage & Usage Update, Water Testing Update, Current Installation
b) Status Update, Current Contractor Work Update, Maintenance/Repair Update,
Customer Service Update, Safety Issues
c) Sewer & Storm Drain — Jetting, Current Installation Status Update, Current Contractor Work
Update, Maintenance/Repair Update, Customer Service
Update, Safety Issues
3. Customer/Billing Reports — A/R Update, Water Sales, Water Usage
4. Financial Reports —Quarterly Financial Statements, * Treasures Report-L.A.I.F., Internal Report
and Administration Update

CHECK REGISTER - Receive and approve the Check Register for the month of July 2024 — motion
item

ITEMS FOR NEXT MONTHS AGENDA: Tuesday, September 17, 2024, at 4:30 p.m.
CLOSE:

Adjournment to the next regular scheduled Board Meeting — motion item

All public records relating to an agenda item on this agenda are available for public inspection at the time the
record is distributed to all, or a majority of all, members of the Board. Such records shall be available at the
District office located at 11499 Geit Street, Castroville, California.

Certification of Posting
| certify that on August 16, 2024, | posted a copy of the foregoing agenda near the regular

meeting place of the Board of Directors of the Castroville Community Services District, said time being
at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting of the Board of Directors (Government Code Section
54954 .2).

NSRS

Lidia Santos, Board Secretary

Executed at Castroville, California, p)n August 16, 2024.




THE OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF
CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
July 16, 2024

President Cosme Padilla called the meeting to order at 4:31 p.m.

ROLL CALL:

Directors Present: President Cosme Padilla, Vice President Ron Stefani, Director James Cochran,
Director Glenn Oania and Director Greg MacMillan

Absent:

General Manager: Eric Tynan

Secretary to the Board: Lidia Santos

Staff Present:

Guest: Mike McCullough, Director of External Affairs for Monterey One Water and Heidi Quinn, District
Legal Counsel

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The pledge of allegiance was led by Director Greg MacMillan at the request of President Cosme Padilla.

ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO THE AGENDA

Vice President Ron Stefani requested to add to the agenda, under New Business, item 4 the proposal
received late from Regional Government Services for the recruitment services of a General Manager for
Castroville CSD. There was no deadline set for receiving these proposals.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

1. None

CONSENT CALENDAR

1. A motion was made by Greg MacMillan and seconded by James Cochran to approve the minutes of
the June 16, 2024, Regularly Scheduled Board Meeting. The motion carried by the following roll call

votes:

AYES: 5 Directors: Stefani, MacMillan, Cochran, Oania, and Padilla
NOES: 0 Directors:

ABSENT/NOT

PARTICIPATING: 0 Directors:

Consent Calendar accepted as presented
CORRESPONDENCE:

1. Notice to All Interested Parties from the California Coastal Commission regarding Proposed
Amendment to Coastal Development Permit (CDP) 3-83-92, Applicant: Castroville Community
Services District

Correspondence Calendar accepted as presented

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:

1. Monterey County Weekly — Castroville
2. Monterey County Now — In a stunning vote, two cities nix Monterey One Water’s billing process one
week before it begins

Informational items accepted as presented

gx



Minutes of the Castroville Community Services District
July 16, 2024, Regular Board Meeting
Page 2

PRESENTATIONS:

1.

Monterey One Water (M1W) update on not moving forward with its billing for wastewater service to
the County of Monterey Property Tax Bill - Mike McCullough, Director of External Affairs let the Board
know that at the Monterey One Water Board of Directors meeting that was held on Monday, June 24,
2024, to take action on a cost-saving plan to shift ali of Monterey One Waters billing to collection
through county property taxes did not achieve the required 2/3 votes from the board due to the
opposition from just two of the board’s 10 members in a weighted vote. MIW had invested in a lot of
staff time and funding to get this process done and thought they were going to be moving forward with
putting these fees on the tax roll for fiscal year 2024/25. Bi-monthly billing directly from M1W will
resume automatically.

NEW BUSINESS:

1.

Discussion to consider a moratorium on new sewer connections, pending the constructions of the
Washington Sewer Bypass Project — General Manager Eric Tynan informed the Board that he was
concerned with all the additional dwelling units and upcoming projects being added to Castroville
and that the sewer system does not have enough sewer capacity as it stands. Furthermore, the
District had been verbally assured by Department of Water Resources that the Castroville CSD
would be receiving grant funding for this project. Unfortunately, he has just been notified that this
project is no longer considered a priority and grant funding is unlikely. For this reason, in his opinion
a moratorium on new sewer connections should be considered, pending the construction of the
Washington Sewer Bypass Project. Vice President Ron Stefani felt the Board should have first
discussed and acted on item 2 listed below; Castroville Community Services District System-Wide
Fiscal Sustainability Plan (FSP) prepared by Akel Engineering Group, Inc. In his opinion, if some of
these projects listed in this FSP (Projects P-02-P-03 and P-04, page 10 of listed report as an
attachment to the board packet) are completed, there should be sufficient sewer capacity. Castroville
CSD has minimal growth in dwelling units. The Board all agreed that a moratorium is a serious
decision to make and would like General Manager Eric Tynan to work with District Legal Counsel
Heidi Quinn to provide data to support and justify this decision.

Consider and approve Castroville Community Services District System-Wide Fiscal Sustainability
Plan (FSP) prepared by Akel Engineering Group, Inc. — The Board reviewed the FSP and were
concerned to read that there were many critical capital improvement recommendations made by
Akel Engineering Group. They would like to see the projects listed on page 10 of this report,
especially Projects P-02-P-03 and P-04 completed as soon as possible as the District has the funds
for these capital improvements. If grant funding will not be available for some of these projects, then
the District will need to move forward with loans. Director James Cochran stated that the priority
project should be the pipeline under the bridge in Moss Landing, and without the bike bridge being
built by the County, Castroville CSD will have to do it on their own and build under the existing
structure a 4” pipeline, which is right over the Elkhorn Slough, Marine Sanctuary and Moss Landing
Harbor. The Board concurred that General Manager Eric Tynan needs to move promptly on these
projects. General Manager Eric Tynan commented that he is aware that most of these assets have
exceeded their useful life and was counting on the grant for the Washington Bypass project and a
grant for the Moss Landing Rehabilitation Project. The FSP was needed as part of the requirements
to apply for grant funding. The Board all concurred that the FSP was well done. A motion is made by
Ron Stefani and seconded by James Cochran to approve the Castroville Community Services
District System-Wide Fiscal Sustainability Plan (FSP) prepared by Akel Engineering Group, Inc. The
motion carried by the following roll call votes:

AYES: 5 Directors: Stefani, MacMillan, Cochran, Oania, and Padilla

NOES: 0 Directors:

ABSENT/NOT

PARTICIPATING: 0 Directors: 05



Minutes of the Castroville Community Services District
July 16, 2024, Regular Board Meeting
Page 3

3. Consider and approve estimated cost of emergency repairs of water main on the intersection of
Merritt Street/Salinas Street, located in front of Burger King and additional Merritt Street emergency
repairs that arose — General Manager Eric Tynan informed the board that estimated cost with J
Johonson & Company are around $110,899, which does not include the Caltrans sensors for the
emergency repair and replacement of the main and valves in front of Burger King. As this was an
emergency, there was no time to put this work out to bid. The memo to the Board from General
Manger Eric Tynan can be viewed on page 24 of this board packet. District Legal Counsel Heidi
Quinn recommended the board make a sole source justification for this contractor and bring it back
to the Board for approval at the next board meeting. A motion is made by Ron Stefani and seconded
by Greg MacMillan to approve the completion of repair and replacement of the main and valves in
front of Burger King; the estimated cost is $110,899. The motion carried by the following roll call

votes:
AYES: 5 Directors: Stefani, MacMillan, Cochran, Oania, and Padilla
NOES: 0 Directors:
ABSENT/NOT

PARTICIPATING: 0 Directors:

4. Consider selecting an agency to assist the Castroville Community Services District with the
recruitment of a new General Manager from the proposals submitted — General Manager Eric Tynan
let the Board know that the District received three proposals from the following companies to assist
with the recruitment of a new General Manager: TPO (fees $20,300-$24,150), CPS HR Consulting
(fees $27,000) and Regional Government Services (fees $22,000). The proposal for the first two
companies can be viewed on pages 25-45 of this board packet. The proposal for Regional
Government Servies can be viewed as an attachment to this board packet. The Ad Hoc Committee
will remain the same Stefani & Padilla for the recruitment of a new General Manager. A motion is
made by Ron Stefani and seconded by Greg MacMillan to select Regional Government Services to
assist with the recruitment of a new General Manager and select the Ad Hoc Committee of Stefani &
Padilla for the recruitment of a new General Manager. The motion carried by the following roll call

votes:
AYES: 5 Directors: Stefani, MacMillan, Cochran, Oania, and Padilla
NOES: 0 Directors:
ABSENT/NOT

PARTICIPATING: 0O Directors:
UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

1. Update on Water Line Replacement Project awarded to contractor Teichert Constructions — General
Manager Eric Tynan reminded the Board that Teichert Construction has been performing the Roads
and Bridges Work for the County, and as part of these improvements is uniquely positioned and
qualified to perform the District's Project concurrently with such work. Teichert Construction has started
pot holing and has completed six of the water lines for the District. Work will be done from Wood Street
through Main Street.

2. Update on Well levels — General Manager Eric Tynan reported to the Board that the well levels graph
from January 2018 to present can be viewed on page 46 of the board packet. The wells are now starting
to decline but are not declining as quickly as they have done in the past. The deep aquifer appears to
be recharging and he has expressed this information to the Salinas Valley Basin Groundwater
Sustainability Agency. The District continues to monitor the chloride levels of all the wells. Well #3 is not
pumping and the motor is not hooked up. A desalter is being considered for Well #3.

15



Minutes of the Castroville Community Services District
July 16, 2024, Regular Board Meeting
Page 4

3. Update on the status of the Moss Landing Wastewater System Rehabilitation Project — General
Manager Eric Tynan informed the Board that he had received an email with bad news from Matt Chamber
with the State Water Resources Control Board stating that due to limited funding, only priority projects
were included on the fundable list for grand funding. Priority projects include consolidation,
regionalization, septic-to -sewer and projects that address violations of a system’s WDR and/or NPDES
permit. Additional projects will be added to the fundable list throughout the 2024-2025 fiscal year,
however, it's unlikely that non-priority projects will be placed on the fundable list/funded 2024-2025. This
means that the two Castroville projects (Moss Landing Wastewater System Rehabilitation Project &
Washington Sewer Trunk Line Bypass Project) are unlikely to receive grant funding in 2024/2025. DFA
does have low interest loans available for funding. Email from Mr. Chambers can be viewed on page 47
of this board packet. As mentioned prior, reimbursement from the Clean Water Small Communities
Planning Grant in the amount of $118,456 has been requested and approved for reimbursement to
CCSD and payment received. Also, discussed prior the current project status is 60% Design is complete.
The State Water Resource Control Board CWSREF is the construction funding source for this project.
LAFCO approved the annexation of Finepro, LLC Property APN: 413-012-014 to the Castroville
Community Services with Resolution No. 23-10. This land acquisition is for Lift Station 1. Ortega
(FINEPRO, LLC (seller) approved the sale for the easement for $10,000 in Moss Landing, which was
completed February 2024. Upon completion of the land acquisition, the coastal development permit
application will be submitted for approval. Construction Grant Application for CWSRF is part of the grant.
Grant application in process and MNS to research if current costs over the planning grant amount can
be reimbursed by the CWSRF grant. Furthermore, California Coastal Commission is requiring a
jurisdictional delineation and Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement (LSAA) notification for work on
the Elkhorn Slough Bridge, which MNS/Rincon are preparing an amendment to add this work to the
Project Scope. General Manager Eric Tynan reported to the Board that the pipeline under the bridge is
still under the mitigated negative declaration and without the bike bridge being built by the County,
Castroville CSD will have to do it on their own and build under the existing structure a 4” pipeline, which
is right over the Elkhorn Slough, Marine Sanctuary and Harbor. For this project, MNS is to prepare a
construction application following the 60% completion. The Board had approved a proposal with MNS
Engineers to provide professional engineering services for the Moss Landing Wastewater System
Rehabilitation Project $462,722 in 2021. General Manager Eric Tynan had previously approved
Amendment No.1 for this project for an additional $14,520 for the arborist and at the December 19, 2023,
board meeting the Board approved Amendment No. 2 for $59,104 as costs have increased due to plans
specifications changing due to the County not building the bridge noted above.

4. Update on status of the Castroville-Sewer Zone 1 (Washington Sewer Trunk Line Bypass Project)
— General Manager Eric Tynan informed the Board that he had received an email with bad news from
Matt Chamber with the State Water Resources Control Board stating that due to limited funding, oniy
priority projects were included on the fundable list for grand funding. Priority projects include
consolidation, regionalization, septic-to -sewer and projects that address violations of a system’s WDR
and/or NPDES permit. Additional projects will be added to the fundable list throughout the 2024-2025
fiscal year, however, it's unlikely that non-priority projects will be placed on the fundable list/funded 2024-
2025. This means that the two Castroville projects (Moss Landing Wastewater System Rehabilitation
Project & Washington Sewer Trunk Line Bypass Project) are unlikely to receive grant funding in
2024/2025. DFA does have low interest loans available for funding. Email from Mr. Chambers can be
viewed on page 47 of this board packet. As stated, prior by General Manager Eric Tynan, this project
continues to be work in progress. MNS received authorization for preparation of the Caltrans Stormwater
Plan from the District and are pushing it forward. Update from MNS can be viewed on page 48 of this
board packet. This should be everything needed to complete the Caltrans Encroachment Permit. The
SWPP is the last required element of the Caltrans encroachment permit process. MNS/Rincon are
working on submittal of jurisdictional permits for the agricultural ditch crossing. Submittal of Coastal
Development Permit is pending easement acquisition. The District is working to negotiate easement
purchase. One property owner is requesting the limits of the easement be staked. MNS Engineers needs
budget authorization from the District to stake easement. Construction grant award is pending coastal
development permit completion. 60% of the design is completed, the CDP permit is pending Caltrans 97



Minutes of the Castroville Community Services District
July 16, 2024, Regular Board Meeting
Page 5

encroachment, County concurrence, and Easement Acquisition. The jurisdiction permitting is in
progress. The State Water Resource Control Board CWSRF is the construction funding source for this
project. The funding is obtained but the final information submittal is required to secure the construction
funding. Although there is no written agreement yet, the State has assured him that Castroville CSD will
receive the $3.5 million grant once the environmental review is completed. MNS Engineers is managing
the environmental review and permitting for this project. Once environmental and land acquisition is
completed, MNS Engineers will complete the application for the next phase and will also update the
engineering report submitted with the grant application. CEQA compliance is complete. Permits are
required due to jurisdictional wetlands in agricultural ditches. Two permits are required from Federal
Agencies. MNS is coordinating with Rincon to obtain these permits. MNS Engineers sent a letter along
with the encroachment permit application to Caltrans regarding notification to perform construction for a
new 24" sewer bypass in the community of Castroville in unincorporated Monterey County, California—
Washington Sewer Trunk Line Bypass Project. Castroville CSD will construct approximately 1,350 linear
feet of 24” trunk sewer bypass from the intersection of Washington St. and Merritt St., then across the
undeveloped areas and beneath Route 1 to the Monterey One Water station pump located at the south
end of Watsonville Road. Approximately 450 feet of the proposed sewer line will be in the Caltrans right-
of-way. Castroville CSD applied for the $3.5 million grant for this project and the State is saying
Castroville CSD is good to go for this grant once the environmental review is completed. Castroville CSD
approved the environmental proposal from MNS Engineers for this project, which is complete. State
Water Resources Control Board, CWSRF set aside for small, disadvantaged communities, “The Small
Community Clean Water Wastewater Funding Program.” The proposal for Professional Engineering and
Constructions Management Services-Washington Sewer Trunk Line Bypass Final Design and
Construction (not to exceed $498,141) is contingent on award of grant to Castroville CSD. The Board
approved at the December 19, 2023, board meeting MNS Engineers proposals for Professional
Engineering Services-Washington Sewer Trunk Line Bypass Regulatory Permitting Support ($19,622)
and Washington Sewer Trunk Line Bypass Right-of-Way Acquisition ($81,610) total $101,232.

Update on the status of competitive bid process and grant/projects for Castroville-Water Zone 1
Emergency Deep Aquifer Supply and Storage Tank Project for system upgrades and improvements
— General Manager Eric Tynan stated that the bid documents have just been completed. District Legal
Counsel Heidi Quinn stated that she has not seen the final documents. She also stated that the template
is very comprehensive. General Manager Eric Tynan has set up a meeting to clarify the template. MNS
is awaiting confirmation from the District on the use of the EJCDC contract documents sent for the drilling
of a new well. See page 48 for MNS update in this board packet. Prior, MNS Engineers and Pueblo
collaborated to develop final bid documents for Well No. 6 and have provided template from end
documents, published by EJCDC for District legal review. MNS Engineers recommended these
documents be used rather than the District’s template as it is current with respect to public contract code
and is more comprehensive. The application for construction to the Bureau of Reclamation WaterSMART
Drought Resiliency Projects Grant Program was submitted fall 2023. The project scope of the Emergency
Deep Aquifer Deep Well No. 6 was too large for the grant to fund. The project scope needs to be
narrowed to correspond to a project cost less than $10 million to compete for the grant. The project
scope can be narrowed by the District proceeding with drilling of the well and leaving the remaining
scope to be funded by the grant. The grant application can be resubmitted in Fall 2024 to the Bureau of
Reclamation at no additional cost to the District; anticipated grant request amount to be approximately
$9.6 million. If a construction contract is awarded, it will be funded using reserves and construction funds
from the current grant and the grant application will be resubmitted. He is also considering working with
the grant writer used by Monterey One Water to assist with this grant. Discussed prior, MNS is not doing
the design of Well #6, Pueblo is doing the design. The Board approved grant writing services, fee
proposal from MNS Engineers for Bureau of Reclamation WaterSMART: Drought Resiliency Projects,
not to exceed $29,415. Construction funding is pending to move the project forward. The hydrogeologic
approach was discussed with Mike Burke the hydrologist with Pueblo who will advance the well contract
documents to nearly bid ready, to be finalized. In addition, MNS has substantial funds remaining in the
budget ($60k), which MNS will review if these remaining funds can be used for applying for construction

08



Minutes of the Castroville Community Services District
July 16, 2024, Regular Board Meeting
Page 6

funding for the project. 30% of the design has been completed as of May 2022. 60% of the design has
been completed on the application for the construction. The District is still working on getting grant funds
for the construction of the deep well and CEQA is complete.

Update on the status of grant/projects for Castroville Landmark Sign at Highway 183 Project: Per
General Manager Eric Tynan Signs By Van has hired Jay Johnson who is currently working for Santa
Clara as a public works inspector. Mr. Johnson understands Caltrans’ regulations. He is moving forward
with getting the permits for this project. Construction funding source for this project is Caltrans which
was originally for $442,019 and has been amended to $471,519. Table of Budget and Invoices (Standing
Item) can be viewed on page 49 of this board packet. Discussed previously: the concrete/foundation
testing to confirm structural design has been completed by the Penhall Company, a nationwide leader
in concrete solutions and the engineers have signed off on it. At the January 16, 2024, board meeting,
the Castroville CSD Board of Directors reviewed and submitted the signed Amended Cooperative
Agreement to Caltrans. The delay for this project again has been the foundation. This project was started
in 2019, and it was to be completed by July 2023. The Board approved the Cooperative Agreement and
Maintenance Agreement with Caltrans for the Overhead Sign in October 2022. The State has also
requested a traffic control plan and a storm water control plan which was prepared by MNS Engineers
and sent to the state. MNS will be managing the administration for this project. Resolution No.2022-14,
Engaging Signs By Van for the Design, Fabrication, and Installation of the Castroville Landmark Sign
was approved. MNS to continue working with Signs By Van and draft the Project Management
Professional (PMP), contract, encroachment permit. Castroville CSD received a check from Caltrans in
the amount of $127,955.28 February 2, 2023, a check for $17,580 May 24, 2023, a check for $9,461.25
September 12, 2023, and a check for $6,442.00 May 8, 2024.

Current grants awarded are the Clean Water Small Communities Planning Grant ($500,000) with State
Waterboards for administration, preliminary engineering report, plans, and specs for sewer in Moss
Landing, project assigned to MNS Engineers. The IRWM Implementation Grant ($395,000) is with DWR
for the Deep Well (Well #6) and the use will be specified in the DWR/MCRWA agreement. The DAC
Involvement Programs amount $61,807 with DWR is for the design of the Washington Sewer Bypass for
Castroville sewer is also assigned to MNS Engineers. Current funding efforts: Moss Landing sewer
system improvements, Castroville emergency well replacement, Castroville water supply improvements
and Castroville wastewater improvements.

Update on the State of California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) project: Caltrans Merrit Street
Beautification Project; Cooperative Agreement Amendment No. 01-Landmark Sign and Adjustment of
Manhole and Valve Covers — Per General Manager Eric Tynan Caltrans will be redoing the sidewalks
and raising the valve boxes at their cost for this project, which should start in mid-January of 2025. The
Landmark Sign is also part of this project, which was just discussed.

Pedestrian Bridge Enhancement/Improvement Project; Pedestrian Overpass Maintance (Landscape)
Agreement —General Manager Eric Tynan spoke with Corby with Caltrans and let her know that
Castroville CSD wants to be involved with the ribbon cutting ceremony for this project. North County
Recreation and Park District should also be included for the ribbon cutting ceremony. The project should
be completed in 2-4 weeks and Caltrans will be reaching out to the elected officials to attend as it is their
project. President Cosme Padilla hopes Caltrans does contact Castroville CSD to attend. Most
importantly, this project is beneficial to the community. The County is responsible for replacing the rails
and the fencing on the pedestrian bridge and Castroville CSD is only responsible for the lighting on the
bridge and minor cosmetic maintenance such as graffiti. NCRPD will maintain the landscaping.

19



Minutes of the Castroville Community Services District
July 16, 2024, Regular Board Meeting
Page 7

CLOSED SESSION: At 6.03 p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.

CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR pursuant to Government Code Section
54956.8

Property Location: APN: 030-141-022-000 and 030-141-023-000, Southwest corner of Merritt
Street and Washington Street, Castroville, CA

Negotiating Parties: Castroville CSD and Salvador Alvarez and Hermilinda Alvarez
Property Owner: Salvador Alvarez and Hermilinda Alvarez
Under Negotiation: Property Negotiations

Property Location: APN: 133-143-016-000, Highway 1 at Washington Road, Castroville, CA

Negotiating Parties: Castroville CSD and Vegetable Ranches, LLC
Property Owner: Vegetable Ranches, LLC
Under Negotiation: Property Negotiations

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION ITEM: (if applicable): The board will reconvene into open
session prior to adjournment and shall announce any action taken during the closed session. At 6:13
p.m. the Board returned to Open Session. Per District Legal Counsel Heidi Quinn, there was no
reportable action taken on all three items discussed.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMUNICATION: When needed, this time is reserved for the Board of
Directors to communicate activity, educational classes, and/or Committee reports.

1. Update on Monterey One Water (M1W) board meeting — Per Vice President Ron Stefani as stated last
month, the main issue facing M1W is that the board is changing a lot. As mentioned already, two cities
nix Monterey One Water’s billing process one week before it begins. The M1W Board of Directors will
no fonger implement the planned change to move billing to the property tax roll. Bi-monthly billing
directly from M1W will resume automatically.

2. Update on Salinas Valley Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency (SVBGSA) meeting — Vice President
Ron Stefani reported that the budget was approved. They are also moving forward with the Deep Aquifer
Study, and it will be going before the Board of Supervisors at the September 10, 2024, meeting. The
SVBGSA and Marina GSA have both been working together.

3. Update on meetings or educational classes attended by the Directors —Per President Cosme Padilla he
had a meeting with community member Diana Jiminez who voiced her concerns about the lack of street
lighting provided by the streetlights in the community of Castroville as they are not bright enough. He
provided her with data on the streetlights and encouraged her to attend a board meeting.

GENERAL OPERATIONS
1. General Manager's Report — Compliance update, current projects update, meetings/seminars
update, staff update, suggestive projects discussions
2. Operation’s Report
a) Water — Pumpage & Usage Update, Water Testing Update, Current Installation
b) Water -Status Update, Current Contractor Work Update, Maintenance/Repair Update,
Customer Service Update, Safety Issue
c) Sewer & Storm Drain — Jetting, Current Installation Status Update, Current Contractor Work
Update, Maintenance/Repair Update, Customer Service Update, Safety Issues
3. Customer /Billing Reports — Water Sales, Water Usage, A/R Update, Customer Service Update
4. Financial Reports — Treasures L.A.I.F. Report, Internal Report, Administration Update

General Operations Reports were accepted as presented 1 0



Minutes of the Castroville Community Services District
July 16, 2024, Regular Board Meeting
Page 8

CHECK LIST - June 2024. A motion was made by Glenn Oania and seconded by James Cochran
Stefani to pay all bills presented. The motion carried by the following roll call votes:

AYES: 5 Directors: Stefani, MacMillan, Cochran, Oania and Padilla
NOES: 0 Directors:
ABSENT/NOT

PARTICIPATING: 0 Directors:

There being no further business, a motion was made by Glenn Oania and seconded by Greg MacMillan to
adjourn to the next scheduled Board meeting; the motion carried by the following roll call votes:

AYES: 5 Directors: Stefani, MacMillan, Cochran, Oania and Padilla
NOES: 0 Directors:
ABSENT/NOT

PARTICIPATING: 0O Directors:

The meeting was adjourned at 6:37 p.m.

Respectfully submitted by, Approved by,
Lidia Santos Cosme Padilla
Secretary to the Board President

[
H



11/ 05/2024 Candidate List

CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
DIRECTOR, 4 YEAR TERM

Vote for no more than 3  Appointed In-Lieu of Election

GLENN OANIA

Incumbent

Residential Address: Mailing Address:
Not Available Not Available

Phone Number: Not Available Email: Not Available
Website: Not Available

JAMES R COCHRAN

Director

Residential Address: Mailing Address:
Not Available Not Available

Phone Number: Not Available Email: Not Available
Website: Not Available

RONALD J. STEFANI

Incumbent
Residential Address: Mailing Address:
Not Available Not Available

Phone Number: Not Available Email: Not Available
Website: Not Available

Address

CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
DIRECTOR, 2 YEAR TERM

Vote for One Appointed In-Lieu of Election
GREGORY K MACMILLAN

Appointed Director

Residential Address: Mailing Address:

Not Available Not Available

Phone Number: Not Available Email: Not Available
Website: Not Available

Address



-
.
-

_@‘rf!ﬁdURE WATER PROJECTS

WHAT MEMBERS
NEED TO KNOW
ABOUT DIRECT

POTABLE REUSE

Susan Brownstein Greg Wetterau

alifornia’s direct potable
reuse (DPR) regulations
were adopted by the
State Water Resources
Control Board on Dec. 19,
2023, and are expected to be effective
in 2024 when they are officially
incorporated into Title 22 of the
California Code of Regulation (CCR).

With more than 1.3 billion gallons
per day of wastewater effluent being
discharged into the Pacific Ocean by
California wastewater utilities, the DPR
regulations provide an opportunity
for increased beneficial use of our
wastewater flows and a pathway to
developing new drought-proof water
supplies and diversified water supply
portfolios throughout the state.

The DPR regulations represent
the culmination of years of research,
stakeholder engagement, and expert
review panels that began with Senate
Bill 918 in 2010 and the State Water
Board's preliminary report on the
feasibility of developing uniform water
recycling criteria for DPR in 2016.

HOW DOES DPR DIFFER FROM IPR?
Unlike groundwater recharge and
surface water augmentation within
the state’s indirect potable reuse
(IPR) regulations, DPR has little or
no environmental barrier between
the advanced treatment process and
drinking water customers. Instead,
DPR regulations require a higher level
of treatment, operator certification,
and monitoring and reporting to
ensure protection of public health.

ISSUE 2 2024

Because the primary endpoint is
drinking water customers and not
discharged into the environment, the
Division of Drinking Water (DDW)
oversees DPR permitting and oversight,
not the State's Regional Water Quality
Control Boards (RWQCB).

In addition to these technical
requirements, the DPR regulation
requires the formation of a ‘direct
potable reuse responsible agency,’
or DiPRRA, which is defined as the
public water system responsible for
compliance for a DPR project.

Utilities and agencies responsible
for wastewater collection and
treatment are considered partner
agencies to the DiPRRA, and only a
DIiPRRA can receive a DPR permit
because DDW can only issue
enforcement actions to public
water systems.

WHAT ARE THE
RESPONSIBILITIES OF A DIPRRA
AND WHAT IS A JOINT PLAN'?
Without an environmental barrier, the
DPR regulations place requirements
on the DIPRRA to ensure timely
and clear communication and
accountability between all agencies
that signed on for the DPR project.
The DiPRRA is expected to “enable
and facilitate the inspection by the
State Board at any time of all facilities,
operations, and records” used in the
DPR project (CCR Section 64669.10)
and develop a detailed ‘Joint Plan’
that is signed by each partner agency
(CCR Section 64669.20).

By Susan Brownstein and Greg Wetterau, CDM Smith

WHAT ARE THE TREATMENT
REQUIREMENTS FOR DPR?

Similar to requirements in the IPR
regulations, DPR requires full advanced
treatment with reverse osmosis (RO) and
advanced oxidation (AOx), with additional
requirements for both chemical reduction
and pathogen removal.

Chemical reduction must be done
with @ minimum of three processes
using three distinct removal
mechanisms and must include ozone
and biologically active carbon (BAC)
upstream of RO and AOx.

Pathogen reduction must be done
with a minimum of four. processes using
three distinct mechanisms, including
membrane separation, ultraviolet (UV)
disinfection, and chemical inactivation.

Pathogen removal must also
achieve a minimum reduction of
20-log virus, 14-log giardia, and 15-log
cryptosporidium at least 90% of the time.

WHAT ABOUT

TREATMENT ALTERNATIVES?
Alternative treatment approaches can
be proposed and blending with other
water sources can be used for chemical
reduction and pathogen reduction
credits. Because of the RO treatment
requirement, DPR may be challenging
for inland utilities without affordable
brine disposal options.

While the alternatives clauses could
open the door for non-RO options,
stringent requirements for TOC removal,
pathogen reduction, and chemical
reduction would make DPR without RO
difficult to permit.

1



MONTEREY ONE WATER

PURE WATER MONTEREY
EXPANSION COMPLETE BY 2025

By Roni Gehlke, Clean Water Magazine, editor

Photos: Rachel Gaudoin, Monterey One Water

fter just four short years

online, Monterey One

Water is expanding

its Pure Water

Monterey facility.
This is noteworthy as the Monterey
Peninsula could become the first area
with a local water supply that has
advanced purified water accounting
for over 50% of the total water supply.
Construction of the project is expected
to be completed by 2025. This project
expansion will provide an additional
2,250 acre-feet of water per year on
top of the 3,500 acre-feet of purified
water already being produced.

California American Water (Cal Am),
Monterey One Water, and the Monterey
Peninsula Water Management District
(MPWMD) signed a water purchase
agreement in April 2023 to increase
purified water production for injection
into the Seaside Groundwater Basin.
Monterey One Water and MPWMD
secured $42 million in state and
federal grants to offset the cost of the
$70 million project.

“The expansion of Pure Water
Monterey will produce needed water
for the community, and our staff and
team are committed to bringing this
project online as quickly as possible,”

said Monterey One Water General
Manager Paul Sciuto.

The expansion could have a
significant impact on alleviating
the water crisis that has affected
the Monterey Peninsula for almost
30 years. The State Water Board
issued a strong order to Cal Am in
1995 to reduce its reliance on the
Carmel River as a water source due
to habitat loss for the steelhead trout
population in the river. Subsequently,
the State issued a cease and desist
order in 2009. However, Cal Am
continued to draw water from the river
as there were no other local, state,

CLEANWWATER



P

ROJECTS

or federal sources of water available.
In 2012, Monterey One Water, the
community’s wastewater treatment
provider, devised an idea to decrease
the community's dependence on the
river. In 2020, they, along with project
partners MPWMD and Marina Coast
Water District (MCWD), commissioned
Pure Water Monterey, an advanced
water purification facility aimed at
providing one-third of the potable
water the community needed.

“The project took seven years
to plan,” Sciuto said. “When | tell
non-water people that, they think seven
years is a long time, but water people
know that is a pretty quick turnaround.”

ISSUE 2 2024

GROUNDWATER REPLENISHMENT
“Our program is unique because we
recycle four types of wastewater at
our facility,” Sciuto said.
| Monterey One Water treats various
water sources, including municipal
‘ wastewater, industrial processing
water, crop drainage water, and
urban stormwater runoff. Sciuto
emphasized the importance of utilizing
underutilized water sources.
For example, part of Monterey
One Water’s service area is known
as the “salad bowl of the world” for
the production of lettuce, broccoli,
cauliflower, and numerous other crops.
About 70% of the nation’s lettuce is

grown in the Salinas Valley. Monterey
County is the fourth-highest agricultural-
producing county in California. The

total land devoted to agriculture is
approximately 1.4 million acres, and
irrigated land is around 220,000 acres.
This would produce a significant amount
of crop drainage water that can then

be processed through Monterey One
Water's treatment plant.

The Advanced Water Purification
Facility (AWPF) uses a four-step
purification process to produce about
5 million gallons per day (mgd) of
purified water.

After undergoing primary and
secondary treatment, wastewater is

Y
9]}



directed to Pure Water Monterey's
advanced water purification facility.

Here, a multi-barrier process is employed
to separate water from pollutants. The
four-step advanced purification process
includes ozone pre-treatment, membrane
filtration, reverse osmosis, and ultraviolet
light with hydrogen peroxide.

Monterey One Water collects, treats,
purifies, and stabilizes the water with
minerals before it embarks on its
roughly 10-mile journey to the Seaside
Groundwater Basin. Once the water
arrives at Seaside, it is injected into
the aquifer, where it naturally filters
through sand and gravel.

Part of the project included utilizing
a pipeline that extended through the
former Fort Ord property to the Seaside
Groundwater Basin and optimizing
well capacity on Fort Ord. Sciuto said
special training in unexploded ordnance
(UXO) was necessary to ensure the
safety of the work crews.

Fort Ord was an army base in
Monterey County that closed in 1996.

While the base was operational,
army personnel completed military
explosive training onsite, and
although unlikely, live detonators
could have been left on the property.
Permits are granted through the
Fort Ord Reuse Authority, a small
muliti-government body composed
of elected officials at local, state, and
federal levels.

UXO training includes hands-on
lessons on safe detection, location,
identification, and disposal of
unexploded ordnance.

"You never know what you might
dig up,” Sciuto said.

COLLABORATION

Once it goes through the Pure Water
Monterey facility, Monterey One
Water sells purified water to MPWMD,
which has rights in the Seaside
Groundwater Basin. MPWMD then
sells the purified water to Cal Am,
which extracts the water from the
Seaside Groundwater Basin.

One of the most challenging
tasks can be working with different
organizations, all seemingly aiming
for the same ultimate goal but having
separate issues that need to be
resolved before reaching that goal.

Sciuto mentioned that he can recall
during planning meetings when there
were 30 stakeholders in the room.
There were times that he had to get up
and leave the room, worrying that the
project would never get completed.

“But somehow, conversations
continued, and we were able to get
the job done,” he said. “That doesn’t
mean it wasn't contentious along
the way.”

Sciuto said that water organizations
can't do projects in silos anymore. It is
important to work within the interests
of all partners to get the job done.

"Beginning this expansion project
is a significant milestone for our
pure water program,” Sciuto said. “I|
can't speak more highly of our staff,
consultants, and partners.” ©

TITAN MBR™ Offers the Easiest
0&M in Water Reuse MBRs

When it comes to MBRs and Water Reuse, experience
matters. Ours and Yours. As the innovator of superior
quality and operator-friendly packaged wastewater
treatment systems, S&L presents the TITAN MBR™,
designed to give you the easiest 0&M of any MBR.
Plant operation offers even more automation with
touchscreen QUICKSMART™ controls, while regular

maintenance is more accessible and less frequent than
ever. With new compact models that simplify installation
and satisfy land requirements,

Smith & Loveless Inc.
SmithandLoveless.com

. 4O
CLEANWVATER @ i b



1201 SAIINOVXT JOIYD 24n0S3Y JuDIIOdW] ISOWY S, PIIOM 3yl 01 PanIIPad

]&N‘R o ﬂfﬁ uoneNossy

SHIONN 491NN UedLIBWY

W

6661

2OUIS I9qUIDIY

VMMV IO I2qUIDW B St AISnpur 191em ay)
0] UOTINQILIIUO0D INOA JO uoniubooar uy

UBUAT " sower

OlL dILNISIdd SI 4LVOIJILHAO SIH.L

doucy 421D 420718 CZ7




2

|
£

I l?é\
‘ 1 1]

AN - \
"”..I.". .'-".I"
L SLEPR

[

\<; "!;‘ [ X II’

£

i8



Today S Dlscussmn At A Glance

= The Salinas Valley Groundwater Basin;
= The Agency’s groundwater monitoring history;
= SGMA and the new regulatory paradigm;
= WRA Groundwater Monitoring Program;
= GEMS Expansion Update;
= “Bringing it all Together”
— The intersection of GEMS Expansion and establishment of
the WRA Groundwater Monitoring Program;
= Next Steps.

August 14, 2024
Page 1

Board of Directors Meeting
Monterey County Water Resources Agency

|g9



= Extends
throughout the
Salinas Valley
from the
southern San
Luis Obispo
County line to
the Pacific
Ocean in
northwestern
Monterey
County.

August 14, 2024
Page 2

270,000 §  +$4,000,000,000
People ~ B Ag Value

N
bo



A = e
Al

| SRR S, SR PN S
WRA Groundwater Monitoring

1940s ()1990s
| Groundwater elevation ' Groundwater extraction
{ monitoring and conservation plan
i . reporting
. : | 2
. Groundwater quality - Collaboration with
. monitoring and seawater - Groundwater Sustainability
. intrusion mapping . Agencies
¢ 1960s ¢)2010s
August 14, 2024 Board of Directors Meeting
Page 3 Monterey County Water Resources Agency

o
"



Sustalnable Groundwater
Management Act

= SGMA is really three state acts signed into law in 2014.

= SGMA mandates:
— Groundwater sustainability by 2040 or 2042;
— The Department of Water Resources:
 Establish and prioritize groundwater basins (5);
* Approve plans and monitor progress;
* Determine sustainability
— Formation of GSAs (6) in lieu of county or state control;
— Development of Groundwater Sustainability Plans;
— Monitoring of groundwater level, quality, and usage.

August 14, 2024 er" i Board of Directors Meeting
Page 4 3 4 Monterey County Water Resources Agency
o #



= Establishes one cohesive monitoring program to support
today’s regulatorily driven monitoring requirements;

= Leverages ~75 years of Agency expertise;

= Advances WRA Strategic Planning Goals:
— Goal B: Planning & New Project Strategies 2, 5, & 7
— Goal C: Financial Sustainability Strategies 2 & 6
— Goal D: Core Services Strategies 1, 2, 3, & 5

= Supports the Salinas Valley Basin GSA's efforts;

= Creates opportunity to consolidate monitoring efforts under
one entity;

Board of Directors Meeting
Monterey County Water Resources Agency

August 14, 2024
Page 5




Groundwater Monitoring Program

Currently focused on consolidating and expanding current
monitoring efforts within the Salinas Valley Basin;

Could be utilized to support other groundwater management
efforts:

— Environmental Health
— Regional Water Quality Control Board
— GSAs outside of the Salinas Valley Basin

Proposes to repeal 3 existing well registration & extraction
monitoring ordinances and adopting 1 new ordinance;

Proposes establishing a Prop 26 Regulatory Fee per well.

Proposes to support SVB GEMS Expansion request.

August 14, 2024 :,"‘ 0 Board of Directors Meeting
Page 6 i .;_E Monterey County Water Resources Agency
f“ -



GEMS Expansmn Update

= The Agency and the Salinas Valley Basin GSA continue
collaborating to meet regulatory requirements under the
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act.

= The Agency and SVB continue stakeholder outreach on
“GEMS Expansion” that began in the fall 2023.

= The Agency’s outreach efforts include:
— WRA Planning Committee
— WRA Personnel & Administration Committee
— WRA Board of Directors
— WRA Board of Supervisors
— SVBGSA Board of Directors
— Various stakeholders

August 14, 2024
Page 7

Board of Directors Meeting
Monterey County Water Resources Agency




Why GEMS Expansmn?

= Meets the regulatory data collection needs of SVB.
— 5-year GSP evaluations due
* 180-400 subbasin: January 2025
 Other 5 subbasins: January 2027

* Helps address DWR’s Recommended Corrective
Actions.

= Aligns Agency’s GEMS boundaries and SVB/DWR
Salinas Valley Groundwater Basin boundaries.

st 14, 2024 Board of Directors Meetin,

ng
Monterey County Water Res es Agency

n‘?>
Nm

W,.,

26



LY

EXPLANATION

() s ki |

e ——
Arwom of SVRCHA Subtowra
ity MCWRA 2ones

D MCWRA Zorws 32428

Fiarie MCMRA Cable wy DHS

Red Circles Are AN
Outside of Current '
GEMS Program S

Implementation Priorities
2024-2027

v" 180-400 due to GSP
5-Year Evaluation
deadline; \

v' Registration of
unregistered wells;

v" New extraction reporting
in all areas to fill data

gaps,

v" Enhancements and other
cooperative
opportunities. A,

PACIAIC
OQCEANM




What changes are being planned?

= Well Registration:

— Currently in GEMS, wells with a discharge
pipe smaller than 3 inches in diameter need
not register.

— Under Expansion, all wells will need to
register.

— Known wells will not need to re-register.

— Any changes to wells, e.g. ownership, repair,
modification, and destruction, will need to be
reported.

August 14, 2024 - e Board of Directors Meeting
Page 10 iy ; Monterey County Water Resources Agency

28




What changes are being planned?

= Definition of a “well”:

= “Well” means any artificial excavation constructed by any method for
the purpose of extracting water from, or injecting water into, the
underground. “Well” includes abandoned wells, inactive wells,
monitoring wells, and observation wells.

= For the purposes of this ordinance, “well” does not include: (1) oil
and gas wells, or geothermal wells constructed under the jurisdiction
of the Department of Conservation, except those wells converted to
use as water wells; (2) wells used for the purpose of dewatering
excavation during construction, or stabilizing hillsides or earth
eml?ankments; (3) cathodic protection wells; or (4) test wells or dry
wells.

= The definition of "well" in the draft ordinance is written to be
consistent with the definitions in the Department of Water Resources
Bulletin No. 74-81, "Water Well Standards;" Department of \Water
Resources Bulletin No. 74-1, "Cathodic Protection Well Standards;"
and Monterey County Code Chapter 15.08 "Water wells."

A
i

August 14, 2024
Page 11

Board of Directors Meeting
Monterey County Water Resources Agency




= Extraction Reporting:

— Expansion of GEMS to include new reporting
requirements in all areas under SVB jurisdiction.

— Currently in GEMS, wells with a discharge pipe
smaller than 3 inches in diameter need not report.

— Under Expansion, all wells using more than 2
ég}‘/ﬂwill need to report, consistent with
A.

= Enhancement of GEMS to improve the processes
— Reporting timeframe and period
— Protocols, devices, technology

A

August 14, 2024 T Board of Directors Meeting
Page 12 1 : Monterey County Water Resources Agency

30



In sum, "GEMS Expansion” is:

= To meet the regulatory needs of the SVB for
data collection within their jurisdiction;

= Registration of wells not previously registered:;
= New reporting requirements;
* Improved processes, greater efficiencies;

= Opportunity to meet the future needs of others.

August 14, 2024
Page 13

Board of Directors Meeting
Monterey County Water Resources Agency

31



7l

—
v e
-
Y A

| # LW T\ it it I
Bringing it all Togethe

= The proposed new ordinance would:

— Affirm the Agency’s authority to perform
groundwater monitoring throughout the
County;

— Establish a new regulatory fee to support the
Groundwater Monitoring Program;

— Establish opportunity for other entities with
groundwater regulatory responsibilities to
request service from the Agency.

August 14, 2024
Page 14

Board of Directors Meeting
Monterey County Water Resources Agency

32



= N
“f’- gl

£ L5 TR o B, TSN S
Bringing it all Together

= New approach to cost allocation and
recovery.

— Historically, Agency costs are predominately
allocated and recovered on a per-acre basis.

— Future GMP costs are proposed to be
allocated and recovered on a per-well basis
(monitoring efforts are driven by the number
of wells, not the number of acres).

August 14, 2024 31"" b Board of Directors Meeting
Page 15 o ! Monterey County Water Resources Agency
R 2



Bringing it all Together

= Article Xl C, section 1(e)(3) of the California
Constitution allows local agencies to charge for
reasonable regulatory costs to the local agency
performing investigations, inspections, and the
administrative enforcement of the regulations.

= To show a fee is a regulatory fee and not a special
tax, the local agency should prove: (1) the estimated
costs of the regulatory activity; and (2) the basis for
determining the manner in which the costs are
apportioned, so that charges allocated to a payor
bear a fair or reasonable relationship to the payor’s
burdens on or benefits from the regulatory activity.

August 14, 2024
Page 16

Board of Directors Meeting
Monterey County Water Resources Agency

34



Brlngmg it all Together

= The Ordinance establishes broad authority for the
Agency.

= A Service Agreement will establish the terms and
conditions for the Agency to provide groundwater
monitoring service to a requesting entity.

= Task Orders will define the specific work and
proposed cost of an entities request.

= Resolution(s) adopted at least annually by the
Supervisors will approve proposed Agency work,
related costs, and a resultant, annual regulatory fee.

A
August 14, 2024 72 o 3 Board of Directors Meeting
Page 17 ELS : Monterey County Water Resources Agency
% 0



Next Steps

= Working with County Counsel and the SVB, the
Agency will continue stakeholder outreach to
inform the new draft Ordinance .

= Working with the SVB, the Agency will seek to
refine its specific requests for groundwater
monitoring deliverables and methods.

= The Agency is developing its own manual for the
Groundwater Monitoring Regulatory Program.

= The regulatory fee nexus study has begun.

August 14, 2024 __.r"‘ 3 Board of Directors Meeting
Page 18 e g Monterey County Water Resources Agency
N

36



WELL REGISTRATION & GEMS EXPANSION TIMELINE

Nov '23

Dec '23

Jan ‘24

Feb '24 | Mar '24 | Apr '24

Jul 24 | Aug '24

Aug 19th— BOD
considers

l

WELL REGISTRATION &
GEMS EXPANSION
PROPOSAL
DEVELOPMENT

recommendation
to BQS

POLICIES DEVELOPMENT

ORDINANCE,
AGREEMENTS, &

'24 | Oct 24 | Nov '24 0c5

Sep 10t & 24, two
readings of new
ordinance for BOS

Jan '27

GEM

POPULATE WELL

S EXPANSION D

REGISTRATIO

E

COLLECT NEW
WELL & GEMS
DATA

EPORT
NEW DATA

August 14, 2024

Page 19

Board of Directors Meeting
Monterey County Water Resources Agency

37

a



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MONTEREY COUNTY WATER RESOURCES AGENCY TO
REPEAL ORDINANCE NUMBERS 3660, 3717, AND 3718, AND ADOPT WELL
REGISTRATION AND GROUNDWATER REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

County Counsel Summary

This Ordinance repeals Ordinance Numbers 3660, 3717, and 3718, which
established Monterey County Water Resources Agency’s (“Agency”) well
registration and extraction reporting regulations for certain areas of the Salinas
Valley. This Ordinance adopts updated Agency regulations to require well owners
and operators within Monterey County to register wells with the Agency, and
periodically report well extraction data if further action is taken by the Agency
Board of Supervisors by resolution. This Ordinance also affirms certain Agency
requirements for groundwater level and quality monitoring. This Ordinance allows
the Agency to enter into groundwater management support service agreements to
provide groundwater monitoring and data reporting with requesting entities. The
Ordinance also provides for Agency collection of a regulatory fee to be set by
resolution of the Agency Board of Supervisors. Lastly, the Ordinance provides for
a variance process, and establishes penalties for violations.

The Board of Supervisors of the Monterey County Water Resources Agency ordains as
follows:

SECTION 1. Findings and purpose.

A. Pursuant to authority granted to it by the Monterey County Water Resources
Agency Act, California Water Code, Appendix Chapter 52, on January 26, 1993, the Board of
Supervisors (“Board”) of the Monterey County Water Resources Agency (“Agency”) adopted
Ordinance Number 3660, which enacted new registration provisions for groundwater extraction

facilities with a discharge pipe having an inside diameter of at least three inches in Agency Zones
2,2A, and 2B.

B. On February 2, 1993, the Agency Board adopted Ordinance Number 3663, which
enacted groundwater extraction reporting requirements in Agency Zones 2, 2A and 2B in the

Salinas Valley Groundwater Basin, commonly known as the Groundwater Extraction Management
System (“GEMS”).

C. On July 27, 1993, the Agency Board adopted Ordinance Number 3696, which
amended portions of Ordinance Number 3663 to advance the time by which flow meters must be
installed in certain areas.

D. On October 5, 1993, the Agency Board adopted Ordinance Numbers 3717 and
3718, repealing Ordinance Numbers 3663 and 3696, but reestablishing GEMS requirements in
Agency Zones 2, 2A, 2B which encompass a portion of the Salinas Valley Groundwater Basin.

Ordinance, groundwater management reporting (7.9.24 draft)
Page 1 0of 10



L Since 1993, the Agency has been collecting GEMS data subject to the provisions
of Ordinance Numbers 3717 and 3718; subject to a 1995 settlement agreement with the Salinas
Valley Water Coalition, Ralph Riva, James Gianolini, and Roger Moitoso concerning Ordinance
No. 3717; and the Agency has consistently produced annual reports thereafter, including ordinance
mandated agricultural and urban water conservation plan reports.

F. In addition to GEMS data, the Agency collects groundwater level and groundwater
quality data to monitor changes in seawater intrusion and the status of groundwater basins
generally.

G. In the fall of 2014, the California State Legislature adopted, and the Governor
signed into law, three bills commonly known as the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act
(“SGMA?”) generally set forth in Water Code section 10720 et seq.

H. SGMA was signed into law mandating the sustainability of groundwater basins
throughout the state by at least 2040 for “high priority basins in a critical state of overdraft”, and
2042 for “high priority” and “medium priority” basins, as determined by the California Department
of Water Resources (“DWR”).

I SGMA assigns responsibility to the DWR for regulatory oversight through the
evaluation and assessment of groundwater sustainability plans (“GSPs”), and the provision of
ongoing assistance to local agencies through the development of best management practices,
guidance, planning assistance, technical assistance, and financial assistance.

J. SGMA provides for the formation of local groundwater sustainability agencies
(“GSAs”) to formulate and implement GSPs throughout the state, in lieu of county or state control.

K. DWR has identified five groundwater basins, and six subbasins, in Monterey
County. There are six GSAs in Monterey County, all dependent upon groundwater data to inform,
develop, implement, update, and demonstrate to the DWR progress of their GSPs towards
maintaining or achieving sustainability, that may want to engage and leverage the existing
institutional knowledge, data collection and reporting expertise of the Agency.

L. The Agency Board hereby adopts this Ordinance to affirm the Agency’s roles and
responsibilities with regard to the monitoring and reporting of groundwater status in Monterey
County, including groundwater levels and quality; to require well registration and extraction
quantity reporting for its own purposes, and at the request of other entities with groundwater
management responsibilities; to establish a regulatory fee to support implementation of this
Ordinance; and to promote improved service to stakeholders dependent upon Monterey County’s
groundwater resources.

M. The Agency’s groundwater level monitoring provides indicators of seasonal and
long-term changes in groundwater levels, the amount of groundwater in storage, geographic and
hydrogeologic distribution of groundwater recharge, and direction of groundwater flow throughout
the applicable basin. Specific to the Salinas Valley Groundwater Basin (“SVGB”), groundwater
level monitoring can assist the Agency in understanding how different areas of the SVGB interact

Ordinance, groundwater management reporting (7.9.24 drafi)
Page 2 of 10



with the surface water system, which can inform operational decisions for Nacimiento and San
Antonio Reservoirs.

N. The Agency’s groundwater quality monitoring program in the coastal region allows
the Agency to monitor temporal and geographic changes in the extent of seawater intrusion in the
SVGB. This data informs decisions related to operation of Agency projects (e.g., Castroville
Seawater Intrusion Project, Salinas River Diversion Facility); it also has a supporting role in land
use management and permitting decisions that the Agency may advise other County of Monterey
departments on, such as implementation of County General Plan policies and recommendations
about well permitting to the Health Department.

0. This Ordinance is entitled to a categorical exemption of the California
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to 14 California Code of Regulations section
15306, which exempts: “basic data collection, research, experimental management, and resource
evaluation activities which do not result in a serious or major disturbance to an environmental
resource. These may be strictly for information gathering purposes, or as part of a study leading
to an action which a public agency has not yet approved, adopted, or funded.” This Ordinance
will allow for continued and new groundwater extraction data reporting to aid the Agency and
other entities engaged in the management and scientific investigation of groundwater resources
within Monterey County. Specifically, the groundwater extraction data will provide information
concerning groundwater level, usage, and quality. If any projects stem from the use of this data,
such project will appropriately be evaluated under CEQA.

SECTION 2. Authority.

A. The Agency’s enabling legislation is located at California Water Code, Appendix
Chapter 52, and the Agency’s authority and jurisdiction derive from this legislation.

B. The Agency has jurisdiction over matters pertaining to water within the entire area
of Monterey County, including both incorporated and unincorporated areas. The Agency has
authority to carry on technical and other necessary investigations, make measurements, collect
data, make analyses, studies, and inspections pertaining to water supply. For those purposes, the
Agency has the right of access through its authorized representatives to all properties within the
Agency and may enter upon those lands and make examinations, surveys, and maps thereof.

C. The Agency Board of Supervisors may adopt, by ordinance, reasonable procedures,
rules, and regulations to implement the Agency Act, and may specify that a violation of an
ordinance is an infraction. The Agency Board further has power to perform all other acts necessary
or proper, including, as allowed by law, establishing fees, taxes, or assessments to be levied and
collected, to accomplish the purposes of the Agency Act and this Ordinance.

SECTION 3. Repeal.
The Board of Supervisors of the Monterey County Water Resources Agency hereby repeals

Ordinance Numbers 3660, 3717, and 3718, which enacted similar but not identical provisions, and
adopts this Ordinance as fully described herein.

Ordinance, groundwater management reporting (7.9.24 draft)
Page 3 of 10

40



SECTION 4. Definitions.

A. “Abandoned well” means any well whose original purpose and use has been
permanently discontinued or which is in such a state of disrepair that it cannot be used for its
original purpose. A well is considered abandoned when it has not been used for a period of one
year, unless the owner demonstrates his or her intent to use the well again for supplying water or
other associated purposes.

B. “Agency” means the Monterey County Water Resources Agency.

C. “Agency Act” means the Monterey County Water Resources Agency Act,
California Water Code, Appendix Chapter 52 (Stats. 1990, Chap. 1159).

D. “Board” means the Board of Supervisors of the Monterey County Water Resources
Agency.

E. “County” means the County of Monterey.

F. “Monterey County” means the geographical area of Monterey County.

G. “Requesting Entity” means an entity engaged in the management of groundwater

resources within Monterey County, either through the monitoring and reporting of groundwater
level, usage, and/or quality data; scientific investigations; or in the administration and compliance
of a regulatory program(s).

H. “Water Year” means the 12-month period between October 1, of any given year,
through September 30, of the following year, as defined by the United States Geological Survey.

L. “Well” means any artificial excavation constructed by any method for the purpose
of extracting water from, or injecting water into, the underground. “Well” includes abandoned
wells, inactive wells, monitoring wells, and observation wells. For the purposes of this ordinance,
“well” does not include: (1) oil and gas wells, or geothermal wells constructed under the
Jurisdiction of the Department of Conservation, except those wells converted to use as water wells;
(2) wells used for the purpose of dewatering excavation during construction, or stabilizing hillsides
or earth embankments; (3) cathodic protection wells; or (4) test wells or dry wells.

J. “Well Operator” means a person or entity authorized by a Well Owner to operate a
Well.

K. “Well Owner” means a landowner or landowners that own a Well.

SECTION 5. Provision of Services.

Upon mutual agreement between the Agency and any Requesting Entity, the Agency may
provide groundwater monitoring, data reporting, and groundwater management support services
to the Requesting Entity. Such action shall be taken by Board approval.

Ordinance, groundwater management reporting (7.9.24 draft)
Page 4 of 10

41



SECTION 6. Well Registration.

A. All permits, which are required to construct, repair, reconstruct, or destroy a Well
in Monterey County, are issued by the County pursuant to Monterey County Code Chapter 15.08.
The Agency collaborates with the County during the application review process for many, but not
all Wells, and will rely upon information provided to the County to fulfill this Ordinance’s
registration requirements, to the extent practicable, as determined solely by the Agency.

B. The Agency may, for its own purposes, require registration of Wells within
Monterey County for the purposes of implementing this Ordinance. Such action shall be taken
through a Board resolution.

C. The Agency may require registration of Wells within Monterey County on behalf,
and for the purpose of implementing a policy or program, of a Requesting Entity, pursuant to an
executed agreement between the Agency and Requesting Entity. Such action shall be taken
through a Board resolution.

D. No Well Owner or Well Operator may operate or maintain a Well that has been
made subject to this Ordinance and applicable Board resolutions, unless the Well is first registered
with the Agency.

E: A Well Owner or Well Operator must properly register their Well(s) within 30 days
of completed construction or upon a request by the Agency to do so, in a manner prescribed by the
Agency, with such request being acceptably transmitted through direct written correspondence by
United States Mail to the Well Owner or Well Operator.

F. The Agency may periodically require Well Owners or Well Operators to update
registration information. No Well Owner or Well Operator may operate or maintain a Well that
has been made subject to this Ordinance and applicable Board resolutions, if the requested
information has not been properly and timely provided to the Agency. Further, Well Owners or
Well Operators shall provide updated Well registration information to the Agency within 30 days
of a change in Well Owner or contact information for an existing Well Owner, or of a change in
Well Operator or contact information for an existing Well Operator, or upon completion of a
change to the physical structure of the Well.

G. Upon proper completion of registration, the Agency will issue a certificate of
registration to the Well Owner and the Well Operator, if applicable.

H. For all Abandoned Wells, the Well Owner or Well Operator shall report such
abandonment to the Agency within 30 days of abandonment. The report shall indicate the steps
taken to comply with all legal requirements regarding such abandonment,

SECTION 7. Groundwater Extraction Reporting.

A. The Agency may, for its own purposes, require reporting of groundwater extraction
quantities from Wells within Monterey County for the purposes of implementing this Ordinance.

Ordinance, groundwater management reporting (7.9.24 draft)
Page 50f 10



B. The Agency may require reporting of groundwater extraction quantities within
Monterey County on behalf, and for the purpose of implementing a policy or program, of a
Requesting Entity, pursuant to a written, executed agreement between the Agency and Requesting
Entity. Such action shall be taken by Board approval.

C. The Agency, for its own purposes or on behalf of a Requesting Entity, may adopt
and periodically revise, a Board resolution establishing acceptable standards and methods for
measuring the extraction of groundwater. Every Well Owner or Well Operator required to report
groundwater extractions shall meet the requirements of such resolution and request approval from
the Agency of their measurement method, on a per Well basis.

D. Every Well Owner or Well Operator subject to reporting is required to keep records
tallying the total monthly extraction of groundwater, per Well, and to report those extractions in a
manner prescribed by the Agency on behalf of the Requesting Entity or the Agency. The annual
reporting period shall be the Water Year.

E. Every Well Owner or Well Operator required to report groundwater extractions
must do so no later than November 1, following each Water Year, in a manner prescribed by the
Agency. Any Well Owner or Well Operator may report more frequently for convenience or if
required by Agency Board resolution. In addition, the report shall include any information
necessary to keep Well registration information current.

F. Every Well Owner or Well Operator required to report groundwater extractions
must exercise due diligence to maintain and promptly repair all approved measuring equipment.
In the event of a measuring method failure, the Well Owner or Well Operator shall immediately
notify the Agency in writing to report the data gap and to determine if utilization of one of the
alternate methods of measurement authorized by Agency policy is practicable, if restoration of the
primary measuring method cannot be achieved within one week of failure. The Agency may
impose an alternative measurement method if the Well Owner or Well Operator fails to address a
measuring failure within two weeks. The Agency may calculate an unmeasured extraction value
by averaging usage from the month before and after to fill a data gap, or by averaging historical
usage over the same period, if available. The Well Owner is ultimately responsible for the
maintenance and prompt repair of all approved measuring equipment and any costs incurred by
the Agency to impose an alternative measurement method will be billed to the Well Owner.

G. The Agency may, from time to time, test the accuracy of extraction measuring
methods approved for Wells subject to this Ordinance, to ensure that measuring methods and
equipment remain operational and in conformity with acceptable standards, as defined by the
Agency. The Agency may, for its own purposes or on behalf of a Requesting Entity, develop
policies and procedures through Board resolution, which may include random sampling, to ensure
consistent and equitable measurement of extractions. If a measuring method is determined to be
inaccurate, the Agency shall immediately notify the Well Owner or Well Operator in writing to
determine if utilization of one of the alternate methods of measurement authorized by the Agency
is practicable, if proper calibration of the primary measuring method cannot be achieved within
one week. The cost to correct the calibration a measuring method shall be borne by the Well Owner

Ordinance, groundwater management reporting (7.9.24 drafi)
Page 6 of 10

(SR



or Well Operator. The Agency may impose an alternative measurement method if the Well Owner
or Well Operator fails to address a measuring inaccuracy within two weeks. The Agency may
recalculate an extraction value based upon the measured discrepancy and revise Well extraction
data up to the beginning of the then current Water Year. The Well Owner is ultimately responsible
for the maintenance and prompt repair of all approved measuring equipment and any costs incurred
by the Agency to correct an inaccuracy or impose an alternative measurement method will be billed
to the Well Owner.

H. Extraction data obtained through this Ordinance shall be used only for purposes
consistent and compatible with the authorities of the Agency. Access and distribution of personally
identifiable information will be restricted to the fullest extent allowed by law, including but not
limited to Government Code section 6250 et seq., California Civil Code section 3426 et seq., and
California Water Code section 13751 et seq.

SECTION 8. Groundwater Level and Quality Monitoring and Reporting.

A. The Agency may, for its own purposes, collect data, obtain samples, or require
reporting of groundwater level and quality data from Wells within Monterey County for the
purposes of implementing this Ordinance.

B. The Agency may collect data, obtain samples, or require reporting of groundwater
level and quality data from Wells within Monterey County on behalf, and for the purpose of
implementing a policy or program, of a Requesting Entity, pursuant to a written, executed
agreement between the Agency and Requesting Entity. Such action shall be taken by Board
approval.

C. The Agency, for its own purposes or on behalf of a Requesting Entity, may adopt
and periodically revise, a Board resolution establishing acceptable standards and methods for
measuring groundwater level and quality. If applicable, every Well Owner or Well Operator
required to report groundwater level or groundwater quality data shall meet the requirements of
such resolution and request approval from the Agency of their measurement method, on a per Well
basis.

SECTION 9. Variance.

A. Any Well Owner or Well Operator may, at any time, apply in writing for a variance
from the strict application of this Ordinance and applicable Board resolutions. The application for
the variance shall be filed with the Agency, on a form prescribed by the Agency. The Agency
General Manager may dispense with the requirement of a written application upon finding that an
emergency condition requires immediate action on the variance request.

B. The Agency General Manager may grant a variance to the terms of this Ordinance
and applicable Board resolutions upon finding that the strict application of this Ordinance and
applicable Board resolutions would create an undue hardship, or that an emergency condition
requires that the variance be granted.

Ordinance, groundwater management reporting (7.9.24 draft)
Page 7 0f 10



C. In granting a variance, the Agency General Manager may impose time limits and
any other conditions in order to ensure that the variance is consistent with this Ordinance and
applicable Board resolutions. The variance, and all time limits and other conditions attached to
the variance, shall be set forth in writing, and a copy of the written variance shall be provided to
the Well Owner or Well Operator. The decision of the Agency General Manager may be appealed
to the Board pursuant to Subsection D of this Section.

D. Any Well Owner or Well Operator whose variance has been denied, or granted
conditionally, may appeal to the Board, in writing, within fifteen calendar days after any such
denial or conditional granting. Such appeal shall specify the grounds upon which it is taken, and
shall be accompanied by a filing fee as set from time to time by the Board by resolution. The Clerk
of the Board shall set such appeal for hearing at the earliest practicable time, and shall notify the
appellant and the Agency, in writing, of the time so set at least five days prior to the hearing. After
such hearing, the Board may wholly or partly, maintain, reverse, or modify the order or
determination that is subject of the appeal.

L No Well Owner or Well Operator shall operate or maintain a Well for which a
variance has been granted hereunder, or use water therefrom, in violation of any of the terms or

conditions of the variance.

SECTION 10. Recovery of Regulatory Program Costs.

The Agency may, for its own purposes, allocate and recover costs associated with the
development, implementation, update, enforcement, and perpetuation of regulatory groundwater
management activities on a per-Well basis within Monterey County for the purposes of
implementing this Ordinance. Such regulatory fees shall be as established by a resolution of the
Board.

SECTION 11. Enforcement and Penalties.

A. No Well Owner or Well Operator shall operate or maintain a Well, or use water
therefrom, in violation of this Ordinance or any resolution adopted in accordance with this
Ordinance.

B. Any Well Owner or Well Operator who violates any provision of this Ordinance or
any resolution adopted in accordance with this Ordinance is guilty of an infraction.

C. Any violation which occurs or continues to occur from one day to the next shall be
deemed a separate violation for each day during which such violation occurs or continues to occur.

D. Any Well Owner or Well Operator who violates any provision of this Ordinance or
any resolution adopted in accordance with this Ordinance is guilty of an infraction and shall be
assessed: (1) a fine not exceeding one hundred dollars ($100) for a first violation; (2) a fine not
exceeding two hundred dollars ($200) for a second violation of this Ordinance within one year of
the first violation; (3) a fine not exceeding five hundred dollars ($500) for each additional violation
of this Ordinance within one year of the first violation.

Ordinance, groundwater management reporting (7.9.24 draft)
Page 8 of 10

43



E. Any violation of this Ordinance or any resolution adopted in accordance with this
Ordinance is hereby declared to be a public nuisance. The Agency may commence civil
proceedings to abate such nuisance and seek civil penalties which may be imposed by a court
against persons found by the court to have committed the nuisance.

F. Any Well Owner or Well Operator who violates this Ordinance or any resolution
adopted in accordance with this Ordinance shall be liable for the cost of enforcement, which shall
include, but need not be limited to, the cost of investigation, court costs, attorney’s fees, and the
cost of monitoring future compliance.

G. The Agency’s General Manager is authorized and empowered to enforce the
provisions of this Ordinance or any resolution adopted in accordance with this Ordinance. The
Agency’s General Manager shall first send written notice of a failure to comply by deposit in the
United States Mail, in a sealed envelope postage prepaid, addressed to the Well Owner or Well
Operator. If such notice to comply is not cured within 15 calendar days, the Agency General
Manager shall send written notice of a violation by deposit in the United States Mail, in a sealed
envelope postage prepaid, addressed to the Well Owner or Well Operator. Service by mail shall
be deemed to have been completed at the time of deposit in the Unites States Post Office.

H. Any Well Owner or Well Operator who has received notice of violation may appeal
to the Board, in writing, within fifteen calendar days after service of the notice of violation. Such
appeal shall specify the grounds upon which it is taken, and shall be accompanied by a filing fee
as set from time to time by the Board by resolution. The Clerk of the Board shall set such appeal
for hearing at the earliest practicable time, and shall notify the appellant and the Agency, in writing,
of the time so set at least five days prior to the hearing. After such hearing, the Board may, wholly
or partly, maintain, reverse, or modify the notice of violation.

SECTION 12. Severability.

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason
held to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this
ordinance. The Agency Board hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance and each
section, subsection, sentence, clause and phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or
more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, or phrases be declared invalid.

SECTION 13. Effective Date.
This ordinance shall become effective on the thirty-first day following its adoption.
PASSED AND ADOPTED this_ dayof 2024, by the following vote:
AYES:

NOES:
ABSENT:

Ordinance, groundwater management reporting (7.9.24 draft)
Page 90f 10

(@]



Glenn Church, Chair

Monterey County Water Resources Agency Board of

Supervisors
ATTEST:

VALERIE RALPH
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

By:

Deputy

Ordinance, groundwater management reporting (7.9.24 draft)
Page 10 of 10

APPROVED AS TO FORM

Kelly L. Donlon
Assistant County Counsel

4’7



Monterey County Water Resources Agency's

Groundwater Monitoring Regulatory Program Policy

Manual
[Date of Adoption]

Section 1 Introduction ‘

This Policy Manual for Groundwater Monitoring Regulatory Programs (“Policy”) is a supplement
to Monterey County Water Resources Agency (“Agency”) Ordinance No. XX-XXXX. The
purpose of the Policy is to establish guidelines for the types of data collected, the schedule and
time frames for data submittals, the applicability of certain programs based on geography or water
user type, and methods and equipment for data collection.

The Policy also establishes the guidelines for data that is requested from the Agency by external
entities, in accordance with Ordinance No. XX-XXXX and outlines requirements associated with
those requests. The Policy is reviewed regularly and may be updated as the Agency’s or external
entity’s needs evolve.

Four Agency groundwater monitoring programs are covered by the Policy: Well Registration,
Groundwater Extraction Monitoring, Groundwater Level Monitoring, and Groundwater Quality
Monitoring.

Section 2 Definitions

I.

Accuracy — means the measured value relative to the actual value, expressed as a
percentage and calculated as: Accuracy = 100% * (Measured Value — Actual Value) /
Actual Value.

Actual Value — means the value as determined through laboratory, design, or field-testing
protocols.

. Agency — means the Monterey County Water Resources Agency.

Agency Act — means the Monterey County Water Resources Agency Act, California
Water Code, Appendix Chapter 52 (Stats. 1990, Chap. 1159).

. Board — means the Board of Supervisors of the Monterey County Water Resources

Agency.
County — means the County of Monterey.

De minimis extractor — means a person who extracts, for domestic purposes, two acre-
feet or less per year (California Water Code section 10721(e)).

Rev. 08/12/2024 Page I of 11

48



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Human consumption — means the use of water for drinking, bathing or showering, hand
washing, food preparation, cooking, or oral hygiene.

Local Small Water System — means a system for the provision of piped water for human
consumption that serves at least two, but not more than four, service connections. It
includes any collection, treatment, storage, and distribution facilities under control of the
operator of such system which are used primarily in connection with such system. “Local
small water system” does not include two or more service connections on a single lot of
record where none of the dwellings are leased, rented, or offered for renumeration.

Measured Value — means the value indicated by a Measuring Device or determined
through calculations using other measured values.

Measuring Device — means any device capable of recording the date, time, and a numeric
value of either water flow rate, water velocity, water elevation, or volume of water
diverted.

Monterey County — means the geographical area of Monterey County.

Qualified Individual — means any person meeting the criteria specified in the Manual who
can perform the required tasks for using and installing a Measuring Device.

Reference Point — means the fixed location from which a groundwater level measurement
is collected at a well and the elevation of that fixed location.

Requesting Entity — means an entity engaged in the management of groundwater
resources within Monterey County, either through the monitoring and reporting of
groundwater level, usage, and/or quality data; scientific investigations; or in the
administration and compliance of a regulatory program(s).

Service connection — means a connection to any habitable structure, except a guesthouse,
or parcel which uses potable water from a water system for domestic and not agricultural
purposes.

Small Public Water System — means a system for the provision of piped water to the
public for human consumption that has at least fifteen but not more than one hundred
ninety-nine service connections or regularly serves at least twenty-five individuals at
least sixty days out of the year. A small public water system includes “community water
system” and “noncommunity water system” as defined in Section 116275(i) and (j),
respectively, of the California Health and Safety Code, and “non-transient noncommunity
water system” as defined in Section 116275(k) of the California Health and Safety Code,

Rev. 08/12/2024 Page 2 of 11

49



and a “transient-noncommunity water system” as defined in California Health and Safety
Code Section 116275(0), as these sections may be amended from time to time.

18. State Small Water System — means a system for the provision of piped water to the public
for human consumption that serves at least five, but not more than fourteen (14), service
connections and does not regularly serve drinking water to more than an average of
twenty-five (25) individuals daily for more than sixty (60) days out of the year. It
includes any collection, treatment, storage, and distribution facilities under control of the
operator of such system which are used primarily in connection with such system, and
any collection or pretreatment storage facilities not under the control of the operator
which are used primarily in connection with such system.

19. Water Year — means the 12-month period between October 1, of any given year, through
September 30, of the following year, as defined by the United States Geological Survey.

20. Well — means any artificial excavation constructed by any method for the purpose of
extracting water from, or injecting water into, the underground. “Well” includes
abandoned wells, inactive wells, monitoring wells, and observation wells. For the
purposes of this Policy Manual, “well” does not include: (1) oil and gas wells, or
geothermal wells constructed under the jurisdiction of the Department of Conservation,
except those wells converted to use as water wells; (2) wells used for the purpose of
dewatering excavation during construction, or stabilizing hillsides or earth embankments;
(3) cathodic protection wells; or (4) test wells or dry wells.

21. Well Operator — means a person or entity to whom the rights to occupy and control a
property and the use of its resources, including groundwater, have been transferred by the
Well Owner.

22. Well Owner — means a landowner or landowners that have the legal right to possess,
occupy, and control property and the use of its resources, including groundwater, and bear
the ultimate responsibility for any Well subject to this Ordinance.

Section 3 Well Registration Program

3.1  Geographic Extent

The Well Registration Program applies to all wells located in Agency Zone 2C and/or the
following subbasins of the Salinas Valley Groundwater Basin: 180/400 Foot Aquifer (3-004.01),
East Side Aquifer (3-004.02), Forebay Aquifer (3-004.04), Langley Area (3-004.09), Monterey
(3-004.10), and Upper Valley Aquifer (3-004.05). Such geographic locations are depicted in a
map attached to this Policy as Attachment A.

3.2 General Requirements
Well registration must be completed by submitting the required data to the Agency using the well
registration portal available at [insert link when available]. Information about and assistance with

Rev. 08/12/2024 Page 3 of 11



completing well registration are available at [insert URL when available] or by contacting the
Agency at 831-755-4860. Wells that are currently registered with the Agency and which meet the
data requirements in Section 3.3 will not have to re-register but the Well Owner may be asked to
verify the well registration data on file with the Agency and provide updates as applicable.

3.3 Data Requirements
The following data must be submitted to the Agency when a well is initially registered and must
be updated by contacting the Agency when any changes occur.

1. Well owner name, address, phone number, and email address.

2. Well operator name, address, phone number, and email address.

3. Name of Local Small Water System, Small Public Water System, or State Small Water
System, if applicable.

4. Number of connections to Local Small Water System, Small Public Water System, or
State Small Water System, if applicable.

5. Geographic coordinates of the well location collected via GPS, with accuracy within 20
feet. Note that GPS-enabled smartphones are typically accurate to within a 16-foot radius
under open sky (Www.gps.gov).

6. Scaled map showing the well location and the area served water from the well, with
relevant geographic features and landmarks labeled (e.g., roads, intersections).

7. Well name (owner-given well identification).

8. Well construction details including all the following information:

a. Date of construction

Drilling method

Total well depth

Perforation/screen interval(s)

Annular seal depth

Casing diameter

Casing material

Depth of pump

Pump motor horsepower

j. Discharge pipe diameter

9. Use category(ies) for which water from the well will be used (e.g., domestic, municipal,
agriculture).

10. Status of the well (active, standby, or inactive).

11. Number of existing and anticipated service connections.

12. Description of water quantity measuring device(s) on the well.

13. Description of each water quantity measuring device on all service connections receiving
water from the facility.

14. Electrical meter service numbers and plant numbers for each well having such a number.

I5. Copy of the Well Completion Report.

16. Copy of the County of Monterey well construction permit that was issued for the well,
and any other related County well permits.

17. Copy of any borehole geophysical logs collected during the well drilling.

T E@ o po o

Rev. 08/12/2024 Page 4 of 11

ot
fasio



18. Copy of any pump testing data obtained during well drilling and development.

Section 4 Groundwater Extraction Monitoring Program

4.1  Geographic Extent

The Groundwater Extraction Monitoring Program applies to non-de minimis extractors located in
Agency Zone 2C and/or the following subbasins of the Salinas Valley Groundwater Basin:
180/400 Foot Aquifer (3-004.01), East Side Aquifer (3-004.02), Forebay Aquifer (3-004.04),
Langley Area (3-004.09), Monterey (3-004.10), and Upper Valley Aquifer (3-004.05). Such
geographic locations are depicted in a map attached to this Policy as Attachment A.

4.2  General Requirements

1. Groundwater extraction data are required from all non-de minimis users i.e., wells
pumping more than 2 acre-feet per year (AF/yr.) for domestic use.

2. Groundwater extraction data must be collected on a monthly basis for each Water Year
(i.e., October 1 through September 30).

3. Monthly totals of groundwater extracted must be reported to the Agency no later than
November 1 for the prior Water Year.

4. Data that are reported to the State Water Resources Control Board Electronic Water
Rights Management System (e WRIMS) must also be reported to the Agency and be
identified as being reported to both entities.

5. Any Measuring Device required by this Policy Manual must be purchased, installed, and
maintained by the well owner or operator.

4.3  Data Collecting and Reporting
1. Well owners or operators must collect and maintain monthly records of groundwater
extraction volumes and cumulative totals including:

a. Quantity of water produced by each well.
b. Quantity of water produced for each use type.
c. Quantity of water delivered through each service connection.

2. Annual reporting submitted to the Agency must specify the type of approved Measuring
Device that was used to collect data at each well. Currently approved Measuring Devices
include all of the following: flow meter, electrical meter, or hour meter. Additional types of
Measuring Devices or equipment may be considered and approved for use in the future.

a. Annual reporting occurs online through an application maintained by the Agency at
https://apps.co.monterey.ca.us/wra_gems/.

b. Information about how to use the application is available at
https://www.countvofmonterey.gov/government/government-links/water-resources-
agency/programs/eroundwater-extractions-eems.

3. Well owners or operators using the flow meter method must abide by the following:

Rev. 08/12/2024 Page 5 of 11

o
Do



a. Flow meters must be tested every five years by a Qualified Individual and calibrated
to comply with applicable Agency specifications in (b) and (c¢) below. Upon
completion of the test, a copy of the test report including the flowmeter reading must
be submitted to the Agency.

i. A Qualified Individual may be any of the following:

L. Anyone trained and experienced in water measurements and reporting.
II. A California-registered Professional Engineer or a person under their
supervision.

I[II. A California-licensed contractor for C-57 well drilling or C-61/D-21
Limited Specialty: Machinery and Pumps.

IV. Any individual who has completed a class on measurement devices and
methods offered through the University of California Cooperative
Extension.

V. Hydrologist or Professional Engineer experienced and trained in water
measurement.

b. Flow meters must be installed per manufacturer instructions.

c. Flow meters must come from the manufacturer with a provable accuracy of +/- 2%.
The Measured Value must read within +/- 10% at all times after installation.

d. Reported data must include monthly readings from the flow meter and associated
meter number.

4. Well owners or operators using the electrical meter method must abide by all of the
following:
a. Quantities of water must be reported based on calculations using accurate electrical
bills, data from pump efficiency tests, and formulas that are approved by the Agency.

b. Electrical bills must be based on electrical meters on the well. The well’s use of
electricity must be the only electrical use measured by the electrical meter.

c. Reported data must show the kilowatt hours used each month by each well.

d. A pump efficiency test must be completed annually. The test must be a three-point
efficiency test which evaluates three discharge pressures and is obtained during the
period from March through June. Upon completion of the test, the tester must submit
to the Agency a report of the testing that includes the electrical meter reading on the
date of the test. The pump efficiency test report must be submitted to the Agency no
later than October 31 of the year in which it was conducted.

Rev. 08/12/2024 Page 6 of 11



€. Reporting party must submit all computations necessary to show the quantity of water
used, including the raw data, the computation itself, and the result as prescribed by
the Agency.

5. Well owners or operators using the hour meter method must abide by all of the following:
a. Quantities of water must be reported based on calculations using readings from hour
meters, discharge rates from pump efficiency tests, and formulas approved by the
Agency.

b. Hour meters must be accurate to within 2% of correct time.

c. Information showing the total number of hours each facility was operated in each
month must be submitted to the Agency.

d. A pump efficiency test must be completed annually. The test must be a three-point
efficiency test which evaluates three discharge pressures and is obtained during the
period from March through June. Upon completion of the test, the tester must submit
to the Agency a report of the testing that includes the hour meter reading on the date
of the test and discharge rates determined pursuant to the test.

e. Reporting party must submit all computations necessary to show the quantity of water
used, including the raw data, the computation itself, and the result as prescribed by
the Agency.

Section 5 Groundwater Level Monitoring Program

5.1  Geographic Extent
The Agency monitors groundwater levels throughout Monterey County, primarily within the
Salinas Valley Groundwater Basin, but also in areas of Lockwood Valley (Attachment B).

5.2 Record Keeping

Wells that are part of the Agency’s groundwater level monitoring network are required to be
registered, per the criteria described in Section 3 of this Policy. In addition to the data
requirements therein, the Agency will collect data regarding the Reference Point elevation of the
well.

The Agency may install a well data tag at the well site to indicate that the well is part of a
monitoring program. The well data tag will be labeled with the site’s State Well Identification
Number. \

5.3  Data Collection

The Agency measures groundwater levels on a monthly basis at some well sites and biannually
or annually at other well sites. The Agency adheres to the following field methods and data
management practices.

Rev. 08/12/2024 Page 7 of 11



5.3.1

Field Methods

Groundwater level data collected from wells is intended to reflect static (i.e., non-pumping)
groundwater conditions. Best efforts are made to ensure that wells are not pumping and have not
recently been pumped prior to collecting a groundwater level data point. Depth to water
measurements are made using one or more of the methods discussed in the following sections.
The Agency’s groundwater level data collection methodology is based on the standardized
Groundwater Technical Procedures of the U.S. Geological Survey (2011) available at
hitps://pubs.usgs.cov/tm/lal/ and the State of California Department of Water Resources

Groundwater Elevation Guidelines (2010).

5.3.1.1 Graduated Steel Tape
The following steps must be completed prior to taking a measurement:

Ensure that the reference point on the well can be clearly determined. Check notes in the
field data collection notebook or application.

Review the notes and comments associated with previous measurements to determine if
there are any unique circumstances at the well.

Take note of whether oil has previously been present at the well. This will be recorded in
the comments section of the data collection form.

Evaluate the well and surrounding area to determine if the well may have recently been
operating.

To collect a measurement:

Use the previous depth to water measurement to estimate a length of tape that will be
needed.

Lower the tape into the well, feeling for a change in the weight of the tape, which
typically indicates that either (a) the tap has reached the water surface or (b) the tape is
sticking to the side of the well.

Continue lowering the tape into the well until the next whole foot mark is at the reference
point. This value on the tape should be recorded in the field data collection notebook or
application.

Bring the tape to the surface and record the number of the wetted interval to the nearest
foot.

In an oil layer is present, read the tape at the top of the oil mark to the nearest foot. Note
in the comments section of the data form that oil was present.

Repeat this procedure a second time and note any differences in measurement in the field
data collection notebook or application. If needed, repeat additional times until two
consistent depth readings are obtained.

After completing the measurement, disinfect and rinse the part of the tape that was
submerged below the water surface.

Rev. 08/12/2024 Page 8 of 11

25



5.3.1.2 Electric water level meter

This method of measurement employs a battery-powered water level meter and a small probe
attached to a ruled length of cable. Depth to water measurements collected using this equipment
are recorded to the nearest tenth of an inch. This instrument is sometimes referred to as a
“sounder.”

The following steps must be completed prior to taking a measurement:

Review the field data sheet for the well and note whether oil has been present at this well
in the past. The electric water level meter should not be used in wells where oil is present.
Ensure that the reference point on the well can be clearly determined. Check notes in the
field data collection notebook.

Confirm that the water level meter is functioning and is turned on so that the beeping
indicator will operate properly.

To collect a measurement:

Review previous depth to water measurements for the well to estimate the length of tape
that will be needed.

Lower the electrode into the well until the indicator sounds, showing the probe is in
contact with the water surface.

Place the tape against the reference point and read the depth to water to the nearest 0.1
foot. Record this value on the field data sheet.

Make a second measurement and note any differences in measurement in the field data
collection notebook or application. If needed, repeat additional times until two consistent
depth readings are obtained.

After completing the measurement, disinfect and rinse the part of the tape that was
submerged below the water surface.

5.3.1.3 Sonic water level meter

This meter uses sound waves to measure the depth to water in a well. The meter must be adjusted
to the air temperature outside the well. There is a card with reference temperatures in the case
with the sonic meter.

Making a measurement:

Insert the meter probe into the access port and push the power-on switch. Record the
depth from the readout.

Record the depth to water measurement in the field data collection notebook or
application.

No disinfection of the instrument is required because it does not come into contact with
the water surface.

‘Rev. 08/12/2024 Page 9 of 11

35



5.3.1.4 Pressure transducer

Automated water-level measurements are made with a pressure transducer attached to a data
logger. Pressure transducers are lowered to a depth below the water level in the well and fastened
to the well head at a reference point. Data points are logged on an hourly basis.

The Agency uses factory-calibrated, vented pressure transducers; the specific model and cable
length is customized for each well. A desiccant is also used to avoid damage to the equipment
from moisture.

Agency staff collects the pressure transducer data once per quarter. During the data collection
process, data loggers are stopped, and the data is downloaded onto a laptop, and then the data
logger is reactivated and scheduled to begin collecting data again on the next hour.

Section 6 Groundwater Quality Monitoring Program

6.1  Geographic Extent

The Agency monitors groundwater quality in the coastal region of the Salinas Valley
Groundwater Basin and at selected monitoring wells in the Forebay Aquifer (3-004.04) and
Upper Valley Aquifer (3-004.05) Subbasins (Attachment C).

6.2 Record Keeping
Wells that are part of the Agency’s groundwater level monitoring network are required to be
registered, per the criteria described in Section 3 of this Policy.

6.3  Data Collection

The Agency collects groundwater quality samples twice per year from wells in the groundwater
quality monitoring program. Additional samples may be collected as needed for special projects
or to meet the needs of a Requesting Entity.

Field blanks and field duplicates are collected as part of the groundwater quality monitoring
program to evaluate the sample collection process for contamination from exposure to ambient
conditions, sample containers, or improper sampling and handling techniques. Field blank
samples are obtained by pouring deionized (DI) water acquired from the Monterey County
Consolidated Chemistry Laboratory into a sample container that has been triple-rinsed with DI
water at the sampling location. If target analytes are identified in field blanks, sampling and
handling procedures will be reevaluated and corrective actions, consisting of but not limited to
re-training of field personnel, contact with the laboratory, invalidation, or qualifying of results,
will be taken.

Field duplicates are collected and analyzed for the same analytical parafneters as the native
samples. The duplicate sample will be collected immediately after collection of the native
sample, following the same sampling protocols.

The Agency adheres to the protocols set forth in the Quality Assurance Project Plan for Water
Quality Monitoring Associated with the Salinas Valley Integrated Water Management Plan (EPA

Rev. 08/12/2024 Page 10 of 11

57



R9#03-238, X-97994701-0) approved by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency in August
2007.

6.3.1 Groundwater Quality Sample Identification and Handling

Sample containers are high density polyethylene (HDPE), 0.25-gallon (approximately 1 liter)
size for complete mineral analysis. Sample containers and caps are purchased in bulk and the
caps for the containers are packaged separately. Sterility of the sample containers is not of
importance because samples are not analyzed for microbiological testing. No chemical field
preservation of the samples is required.

Sample containers are labeled with pre-printed labels. The collection date, collection time, and
sampler name are recorded in the field with an indelible marker.

All samples are handled, prepared, transported, and stored in a manner so as to minimize
contamination and spills. After collection, samples caps are checked for tightness, and the
samples are immediately placed in an ice chest. During travel between sites, ice chest lids are
kept tightly closed. Blue ice packs are used in sufficient quantity so that all samples are stored at
4+2°C.

Chain-of-custody (COC) forms are provided by the Monterey County Consolidated Chemistry
Laboratory and filled out by field personnel while in the field. The COC accompanies the
samples at all times in order to ensure the custodial integrity of the samples. The COC form
includes the sample site, which is identified by State Well Identification Number or Quality
Control sample, if appropriate. '

Upon relinquishing the sample(s) to the Monterey County Consolidated Chemistry Laboratory,
the sampler signs and dates the COC form. Lab personnel will then receive the sample(s), check
the temperature, mark the date and time received, assign unique lab identification numbers (lab
IDs) to each sample, and sign the COC form. The signed COC form is copied; the lab keeps the
original and a copy is given to the sampler. Hard copies of COC forms are maintained by Agency
for a period of ten years.

6.3.2 Analytical Methods

Groundwater samples, including field blanks and field duplicates, are analyzed for an “Ag
Waiver Panel” consisting of the following analytes: calcium, cation-anion balance, chloride,
conductivity, magnesium, nitrate, pH, potassium, sodium, sulfate, total alkalinity, and total
dissolved solids.

Samples are analyzed at the Monterey County Consolidated Chemistry Laboratory, which is part
of the Monterey County Health Department and holds Certification Number 1395 from the
Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP). ELAP is part of the Division of
Drinking Water at the State Water Resources Control Board.

Rev. 08/12/2024 Page 11 of 11



ATTACHMENT A

59



’ 'SAND’CITY
o f
MONTEREY.

MARINA SALINAS
L

SEASIDE

RE
‘ L 3
&
\\,‘ \ :
“ S
-ad ’\
PY ]
]
0\ 4
»
\~ ‘..\,
| 3
N.‘\ ‘-
. LS
i o=
‘ -
) ¥
N -
% \\
. A
>, 3
N
R - Em s w m owm ow om - ‘.
= e e owm e o o s e o omm A
Legend N
) zone 2c
MCWRA Zone 2C and Salinas Valley Basin Subbasins
Salinas Valley Basin Langley Subbasin w E
subbasins Monterey Subbasin
180/400 Subbasin
East Side Subbasin S Monterey County
0 5 10 Water Resources Agency

Forebay Subbasin
Upper Vailey Subbasin

Date : 7/9/2024

5



ATTACHMENT B

61



SAI! D CITY

- [ 4
DEL REY OAKS
~
MONTEREY

\----_-

LI -

L
vh
(SR
L W N
. €
v N
A [
(I
&
TR
i
’
A}
*
o

Legend

Water Level Program Wells

Groundwater Level Sk
Monitoring Program ® Aupusc Tough
QO Annuals
Wells O Other
= Zone 2C

Salinas Valley Basin
Subbasins

Langley Subbasin
Monterey Subbasin
180/400 Subbasin
East Side Subbasin
Forebay Subbasin
Upper Valley Subbasin

N
W E
S
0 4.25 8.5
B ] Miles

Monterey County
Water Resources Agency

Date : 7/9/2024

52



ATTACHMENT C

ks
S



XN 1
L4
; ’
t .
d
f A
\ Y ~
' N
1 A
L A
O N
A Y
o %e
A Y
P o @ .
p - 8 @ w Seet
0 2% = S
00 o @ @o S
600 o0 OO 93 i
. -?
O \@O % (9)) tr
0 O @ O ‘v‘
MARINA L3 Y
' @& S
&F° 0 al
o @ o 8 el Y
0o »
\
|
\ \
{ h)
N .
1 r——ry, »
;_I_' [ ]
, s s
: . .
3 e 7 =
o - 2 ..
hv2 N *a
X k]
P
-
GONZALES L4
N oy
A
© <
N b ’ -
\ 3
l:|| b A
[]
SOLEDAD A N
A Y
]
0]
@
GREENFIELD
Legend N
Water Quality Program SaIinas_Valley Basin
Groundwater Quality iy e W
M . t . P O Coastal ~__ Langley Subbasin E
oni Ormg rogram © Dedicated Monitoring . " . Monterey Subbasin
wells Wels . 180/400 Subbasin
East Side Subbasin S
M C
3 zone 2¢ | Forebay Subbasin 0 295 45 wateroFg;:trJiyrcezuRtgyency
__ 1 Upper Valley Subbasin B Miles Date : 7/9/2024




Memo

To: Eric Tynan, General Manager

From: Paul Tran, Senior Project Manager

CC: Geoff Morgan, Dana Cleary and Andy Hunter
Date: 8/14/2024

Re: Consider Contracting for Services with CHISPA For the Castroville Oaks Affordable
Housing Development

On December 17, 2019, the Castroville Community Services District (CCSD) accepted providing
services (sewer to single-family (SFD) and multi-family portions of the project) and maintenance of the
public streets, sidewalks and parks (within the SFD subdivision) for the Castroville Oaks affordable
housing project. This acceptance is contingent upon a contract that will require board approval. It is
the intent that revenue neutrality would be maintained and that all applicable costs that the CCSD
would incur by including the Castroville Oaks project into the district would be covered by the future lot
owners and service users of the community.

Attached is the sewer study prepared by AKEL Engineering Group, Inc., confirming that the CCSD has
the capacity (with recommended improvements) to serve the Castroville Oaks project.

Also attached is a map depicting the public areas to be maintained by the CCSD. The project is
currently being reviewed by Monterey County and an Environmental Impact Report is planned to be
prepared.

This is our formal request to enter into an MOU with the CCSD to provide services to Castroville Oaks
as described above at the time the project receives its entitlement approval by Monterey County and is
cleared for construction. This is currently estimated to be in 2026

55



Castroville Community
Services District

Castroville Oaks Hydraulic
Analysis

FOR

Castroville Oaks Sewer
Study

FINAL

December 2019

AKEL

ENGINEERING GROUP, INC.

o
<



__AKEL

Castroville Bivd
Lift Station (I
@

TROUR, g

Legend
Future Improvements
& Lift Station

* Manholes

Gravity Mains
Exlsting Modeled System
& Lift Stations
* Manholes
= Gravity Mains

== == Force Mains

Note:
| Improvement IDs shown are based on

| System Master Pian Update.

the CCSD 2013 Wastewater Collection

Figure 1
Planned Wastewater
Collection System
Castroville Oaks

Hydraulic Analysis o

Castroville Community Services District

7




Table 1 Capital Improvements
Castroville Oaks Hydraulic Analysis
Castroville Community Services District

2013 Wastewater Callection System Master Plan Update - Capital improvement Projects (2021 Dollars)"

€
: q Baseline Estimated
E i j i Unit Capital I !
H Stset E’"s- el Length wa AL m_ Constr, Constr, ) ":va
e Diameter Diameter Cost’ 3 Cost’
g Cost Cost'
E
5 {in) (f1) {in) {$/LF) 1) 1s) s
GW-1 Field Alij from lle Rd to Tembladera St New 1,025 12 230 235,925 235,925 294,906 383,378
GW-2 Washington St From Tembladera St to Merritt St New 200 12 230 46,034 46,034 57,543 74,805
GW-3 Field Alignment Casing Crossing SR-1 New 200 32 480 96,000 96,000 120,000 156,000
Subtotal 614,183
AKEL T
Nates:
1. Recommended improvements shown are based on up devel information d from District staff August 2019 and p d in the Ca: CSD 2013

Wastewater System Master Plan Update.
2, Unit costs were escalated from the previous master plan based on the following

- 2013 Master Plan ENR CCl: 9483.7

-June 2019 ENR CC): 11268.48

- Estimated 2021 ENR CCl: 11863.41 {Extrapolates 2019 ENR CCl assuming average annual change fram 2013 to 2019)
3. Basetine construction cost plus 25% to account for unforseen events and unknown conditions.

4. Estimated construction cost plus 30% to cover ather casts including: engineering design, project administration {developer and District staff), construction management and inspection, and legal costs.



Table 2 Capital Improvement Allocation
Castroville Oaks Hydraulic Analysis
Castroville Community Services District

2013 Wastewater Collection System Master Plan Update - Capital tmprovement Projects (2021 Dollars)"

é Suggested Cost Allocation® Capital Improv. Cost Allocation

3

= Capital Future User Detail

S Improv,

£ Cost* Existing Future . .

3 Users Users  Castroville Merritt Street  Cypress North 2 Merritt

8 Oaks Corridor  Residentlal Entrance Infil Castroville Sy hee Cypress North

E Oaks A Residential Entrance

= Corridor

< (%) (%) {341 5] {%) 5 { 5) (5 {5)
GwW-1 383,378 0% 100% 20.9% 11.7% 37.0% 23.0% 73% 0 383,378 80,294 44,971 142,009 88,075 28,028
GW-2 74,805 0% 100% 20.9% 11.7% 37.0% 23.0% 73% 0 74,805 15,667 8,775 27,709 17,185 5,469
GwW-3 156,000 0% 100% 20.9% 11.7% 37.0% 23.0% 73% 0 156,000 32,672 18,299 57,785 35,839 11,405

Subtotal 614,183 0% 100% 20.9% 11.7% 31.0% 23.0% 7.3% o 614,183 128,634 72,045 227,503 141,099 44,902

-A K EL ST

ENCIHEERING QNOUR INC.
Notes:
1. Recommended improvements shown are based on updated development information received from District staff August 2019 and p der dations pi d In the Ca: ille CSD 2013 System Master
Plan Update.
. Unit costs were escalated from the previous master pfan based on the following
- 2013 Master Plan ENR CCk: 9483.7
-June 2019 ENR CCl: 11268.48
- Estimated 2021 ENR CCl: 11863.41 {Extrapolates 2019 ENR CCl assuming average annual change from 2013 to 2019)
3. Baseline construction cost plus 25% to account for unforseen events and unknown conditions.
4. Estimated construction cost plus 30% to cover ather costs induding: engineering design, project administration (developer and District staff), construction management and inspection, and legal costs.
S. Suggested Cost Allocation based on peak dry weather flows d from the C; ille CSD Collection System Hydraulic Model.

~N




1.

Minutes of the Castroville Community Services District
December 17, 2019 Regular Board Meeting
Page 2

in Monterey County. Since its incorporation in 1980, CHISPA has built and renovated 2,268 single-
family homes and apartments for low and moderate-income people in Monterey, San Benito, and
Santa Cruz Counties. In addition he has been very involved in the Castroville Community Plan. This
45 acres parcel is the last high density large parcel in Monterey County that is available to do this
type of development. Moreover, Mr. Tran and Mr. Hunter provided the Board with a PowerPoint
presentation on design of the proposed Castroville Oaks affordable housing development; to be buiit
on their 45 acres property that they have owned for over 25 years now. This property is adjacent to
the Monte Del Lago Mobile Park near Highway 156 and Castroville Boulevard. While presenting the
project he also addressed any questions or concerns the Board had. CHISPA plans to move
forward with this housing development and is requesting Castroville CSD provide similar services as
they do for the Rancho Moro Cojo subdivision. CHISPA staff thanked the Castroville CSD for their
time and this opportunity.

NEW BUSINESS:

Consider contracting for services with CHISPA for the Castroville Oaks affordable housing
development - Director Padilla was concerned that there was no written contract/agreement on what
services and fees would be assessed and that sewer capacity was available. General Manager Eric
Tynan informed the Board that he would not recommend Castroville CSD contract with services
without these concerns being addressed first. He had this item as motion only for the reason to give
the Board the ability to move forward with a contract if they wish to consider providing services to the
Castroville Oaks affordable housing development but it is contingent upon a contract that will need to
be approved by the Board. (HSES |

Consider obtaining quotes to replace pump at Well #2 — General Manager Eric Tynan let the Board
know that the pump went out and needs to be replaced. Well #2 is down which means Well #5 is
also down because you need Well #2 to blend with Well #5 to cool it off. He has already received
two quotes for Maggiora Bros Drilling with one for rebuilding the pump and the other for replacing it
with a new pump. He recommended replacing the pump for $6,000 with this contractor since he has
already had them pull and inspect the pump. A motion is made by Ron Stefani and seconded by

Glenn Oania to approve Maggiora Bros Drilling with replacing the pump at Well #2. The motion
carried by the following vote:

AYES: 5 Directors: Cochran, Oania, Stefani, Padilla and Melgoza
NOES: 0 Directors:
ABSENT/NOT

PARTICIPATING: 0 Directors:

Approve one-time incentive bonus of $250 for Operator Orozco along with a $1 pay increase per

hour for certification obtained from State Water Resources Control Board for Grade 2 Water

Treatment certification. Once copy of certificate submitted, certification incentive bonus and

certification pay will be effective the next full pay day, which begins on a Thursday — General

Manager Eric Tynan reported to the Board that per section 8.4 Certification Incentive Bonus and

section 8.5 Certification Pay of the Employee Handbook, CCSD shall pay a one-time incentive bonus

of $250 per certificate for employees who obtain authorized certifications and CCSD provides a one-- '? 0



LEGEND
[T o cmes oz s wamiwes
[ 7] wonitmr e o a0 s montice £ womtimes

[T e own 0 warcurcn

et W [zze 2N

OWNERSHIP/MAINTENANCE EXHIBIT

CASTROVILLE OAKS

MONTEREY COUNTY, CAUFORNIA

AL 1t - =
o
Fes 07, 2023 Whitsom | so=™"

Prolect Mo 2317 01

WieInnARS Sheel ) of

71



RGS

REGIONAL
GOVERNMENT

SERVICES AUGUST 2024 CLASSIFICATION STUDY REPORT

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Castroville Community Services District (District) engaged Regional Government Services
(RGS), to conduct recruitment for the position of General Manager after the current General
Manager announced his retirement. The purpose of the study is to develop an updated position
description representing the current responsibilities and expectations of the position and to
review the current salary to determine if it is appropriate for the updated position description.

METHODOLOGY

The methodology employed in conducting this study was as follows:

e Review of the General Manager job description written in 2000 and other community
services district General Manager job descriptions

e Interview with the General Manager, Eric Tynan, to review the current duties and
responsibilities

* Interview with the District Board at the August 6, 2024, Special Board meeting to understand
the Boards expectations and desires for the next general manager

e Analyze the scope and complexity of the responsibilities and tasks performed and the skills,
knowledge, and abilities required

e Analyze the current salary

e Develop recommendations based on the analysis of the above information

BACKGROUND

Currently, the District provides a variety of services that support the community. These services
include providing drinking water to Castroville; collections systems and storm water in
Castroville and Moss Landing; and street lighting in Castroville and Moro Cojo; supporting
regional recreation effort; and providing open space and street maintenance in Moro Cojo. The
District cleans and maintains all the sewer mains in Castroville, Moro Cojo, and Moss Landing.

[In 2000, when the current General Manager job description was created, the District was smaller
in its scope of services providing only drinking water for the City of Castroville.

FINDINGS

After review of all documentation and notes from the August 6, 2024, Special Board meeting,
RGS determined that the General Manager job description created in 2000 did not adequately
describe the breadth and depth of the duties, responsibilities, and expectation for the position
based on the current needs of the District.

In the subsequent twenty-four years, the District has increased its service area and breadth of
services provided. The State of California has increased the legal requirements needed to
provide drinking water and maintain sewer lines. The breadth of services has increased, the

Page 1 of 2



RGS

REGIONAL
GOVERNMENT

AUGUST 2024 CLASSIFICATION STUDY REPORT

Board expects that the next General Manager will find and successfully obtain alternative
funding sources for capital projects, understand and advocate for drinking water resources
based on the current political climate, and create written reports and visual presentations to the
Board and the public on a variety of topics, issues, and concerns to improve the quality of
information provided for transparency and decision making.

Our analysis also determined that the General Manager would provide policy guidance and
program evaluation to the Board; encourage and facilitate the provision of services to District
customers; foster cooperative working relationships with intergovernmental and regulatory
agencies and various public and private groups; and pursue appropriate avenues of economic
and community development.

RGS conducted a salary survey and review of the base salary for the position of General Manager

based on the recommended job description. We surveyed nine (9) agencies:
e Monterey 1 Water

Soquel Creek Water District

Marina Coast Water District

San Lorenzo Valley Water District

Scotts Valley Water District

Monterey Peninsula Regional Park District

Carmel Area Wastewater District

Aromas Water District

Pajaro Sunny Mesa Community Services District

This review found that the current salary for the General Manager is approximately 9.10% below
the median of the comparator agencies when Monterey 1 Water is excluded: 12.71% below the
average of the comparator agencies when Monterey 1 Water is excluded; 10.48% below the
median of all comparator agencies; and 15.98% below the average of all comparator agencies.
(See attached Salary Review Data)

RECOMMENDATIONS

RGS recommends that District approve the new version of the General Manager job
description based on the findings (see attached draft job description).

RGS recommends the updated General Manager salary be set as follows based on approval of
the updated job description:

General Manager
Average of Comparators (Without M1W) Top Step
\Annual 1$210,132.99

Page 2 of 2

73



GENERAL MANAGER August 20, 2024
CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

SUMMARY

The multi-functional District, governed by a five-member Board of Directors, provides potable water
treatment and distribution; sewer and storm water services; street lighting; street maintenance;
open space management; and recreational services.

Under policy direction, the incumbent plans, organizes, and provides administrative direction and
oversight for all District functions and activities; provides policy guidance and program evaluation
to the Board; encourages and facilitates provision of services to District customers; fosters
cooperative working relationships with intergovernmental and regulatory agencies and various
public and private groups; pursues appropriate avenues of economic and community
development; and performs related work as required.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED
Receives policy direction from the Board of Directors. Exercises general direction and supervision
to the District staff. Exercises oversight of contractors and consultants as necessary.

CLA HARACTERISTI

The General Manager serves as the Chief Executive Officer of the District, accountable to the Board
of Directors, and is responsible for the enforcement of all District ordinances, policies, procedures,
the conduct of all financial activities, and the efficient and economical performance of the
District’s operations.

EXAMPLES OF ESSENTIAL JOB FUNCTIONS
Duties may include, but are not limited to the following:

e Plans, organizes, administers, and evaluates the work of the District in accordance
with applicable laws, ordinances, and regulations and the adopted policies and objectives
of the Board of Directors.

= Develops, implements, directs, and coordinates development and implementation of long
and short-range plans, goals, objectives, policies, and programs accordance with the
strategic plan; implements administrative policies, procedures and work standards to
assure that goals and objectives are met; and that programs provide mandated services in
an effective and efficient manner.

e Directs and coordinates the preparation and administration of the District’s annual budget
and capital improvement plan; reviews and evaluates current programs, anticipates future
needs, and formulates and recommends long-range financial goals of the District; sources
additional financial resources; reviews all District expenditures; provides financial
management for the District.

e Advisesthe Board on issues, programs, and financial status; prepares and recommends
long- and short-range plans for service provision, capital improvements, and funding;
direction the development of special proposals for action regarding current and future
District needs.

o Oversees the administration, construction, use, maintenance, safety and security of all
District infrastructure, facilities, equipment, and property.

Page 1 of 5

74



Represents the District and the Board in meetings with governmental agencies, community
groups, and various business, professional, educational, regulatory and legislative
organizations; acts as the District liaison with the media.

Directs and coordinates preparation of rate schedules for the resale of water delivered to
customers and other agencies; directs and coordinates preparation of rate schedules for
the collection, treatment, storage and disposal of wastewater.

Responsible for the District’s Conservation Program, including performing audits as
necessary.

Consults with legal counsel concerning matters of litigation, contracts and District
operations.

Monitors changes in laws, regulations, and technology that may affect District operations;
implements policy and procedural changes as directed or required.

Oversees and participates in the selection, training, professional development, and work
evaluation of District staff; oversees the implementation of effective employee relations
and associated programs; provides policy guidance and interpretation to staff.
Recommends changes in organizational structure and position classification.

Prepares a variety of correspondence, policies, procedures, reports, presentations, and
other written materials.

Oversees the maintenance of working and official District files.

Ensures that the Board is kept informed of District functions, activities, and financial status;
and legal, social, and economic issues affecting District activities.

Directs and reviews special studies; provides for contract services as required and
administers various service, construction and equipment contracts; signs and accepts
development plans and specifications for conformance with District standards on behalf of
the District.

Performs as the District Incident Manager when Emergency Response Plan is implemented.
interfaces with District customers and resolves service-related issues and complaints.
Performs other duties as assigned.

QUALIFICATIONS

KNOWLEDGE:

Principles and practices of public administration in a special district setting, public works
administration, personnel and fiscal management, Brown Act compliance, Special District
law, and Proposition 218.

Functions, authority, responsibilities, and limitations of an elected Board of Directors.
Administrative principles and practices, including goal setting, program development and
evaluation, budget development and administration, and supervision of staff.

Principles and practices of water, wastewater, and water resources management.
Current social, political, and economic trends affecting the District and its service
provision.

Political attitudes and concerns surrounding water and wastewater services, control and
utilization.

Functions, services, and funding sources of a special district.

Applicable Federal and State laws, codes, ordinances, and regulations; legal opinions
relating to District administration, water rights, water supply and transmission activities,
water quality, and wastewater.

Page 2 of 5 i
75



+ Organizational and management practices as applied to the analysis and evaluation of
programs, policies, and operational needs.

» Principles and practices of safety and risk management.

e Project management, budget principles, and fiscal controls.

e Cost estimating, contract administration, research, and evaluation methods.

e Record keeping principles and procedures.

e Modern office practices, methods, and computer equipment.

o English usage, grammar, spelling, vocabulary, and punctuations.

e Techniques for effectively representing the District in contacts with government agencies,
community groups, and various business, professional, regulatory, and legislative
organizations.

e Techniques for effectively communicating with a diverse range of individuals including
Board members, coworkers, professional agencies, and the public in person, over the
telephone, and with digital technology.

ABILITIES:

o Plan, administer, coordinate, review and evaluate the functions, activities, and staff of the
District.

e Work cooperatively with, provide staff support to, and implement the policies of the Board
of Directors.

¢ Develop and implement goals, objectives, policies, procedures, work standards, and
internal controls.

e Oversee all District financial activities, including administering investments, the
development and implementation of the District budget, and the control of all expenditures
and purchases.

o Interpret, apply, and explain complex laws, codes, regulations, and ordinances.

o Evaluate and make recommendations on improvements to existing District operations,
programs, and services.

« Effectively represent the District in meetings with governmental agencies, community
groups, and various business, professional, educational, regulatory and legislative
organizations and the media.

« Directthe preparation of and prepare clear and concise reports, correspondence, policies,
procures, and other written materials.

o Make public presentations and conduct public meetings and hearings.

° Analyze problems, identify alternative solutions, project consequences of proposed
actions, and implement recommendations in support of goats.

e Use sound independent judgment within general legal, policy, and procedural guidelines.

o Communicate effectively both orally and in writing in one-to-one and group settings.

e Operate a variety of modern office equipment, including computer equipment and
specialized software applications.

e Evaluate District policies and procedures; define problem areas and direct the
implementation of policy decisions and practices to improve operations.

e Use tact, discretion, and prudence in dealing with those contacted in the course of the work
including Board members, staff, and members of the public.

e Understand the necessity for and maintain confidentiality of information where necessary.

e Establish and maintain effective working relationships with a diverse range of individuals,
including Board members, coworkers, professional agencies, and the general public.

Page 30of 5

76



PHYSICAL, ENVIRONMENTAL, AND WORKING CONDITIONS

Physical Demands

The conditions herein are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully
perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential job functions.

Must possess mobility to work in a standard office setting and use standard office equipment,
including a computer; to operate a motor vehicle; and to attend meetings and to visit various sites;
vision to read printed materials and a computer screen; and hearing and speech to communicate in
person, before groups, and over the telephone. This is primarily a sedentary office classification
although standing in work areas and walking between work areas may be required. Finger dexterity
is needed to access, enter, and retrieve data using a computer keyboard or calculator and to
operate standard office equipment. Positions in this classification occasionally bend, stoop, kneel,
reach, push, and pull drawers open and closed to retrieve and file information. Employees must
possess the ability to lift, carry, push, and pull materials and objects up to 40 pounds.

Environmental Elements

The environmental and working conditions herein are representative of those an employee
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may
be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

Employees work in an office environment with moderate noise levels, controlled temperature
conditions, and no direct exposure to hazardous physical substances. Employees may interact
with upset staff and/or public and private representatives in interpreting and enforcing District
policies and procedures.

May be required to function in one or more of the following: on uneven or slippery terrain,
construction sites, inclement weather; and distribution and production areas where the use of
personal protective equipment such as hard hats, safety glasses, and hearing protection is
required. May occasionally be exposed to dust, dirt, water, and significant temperature changes;
may be around machinery with moving parts or stationary equipment; near hazardous chemicals;
exposed to fumes/smoke/gases.

Working Conditions
May be required to work a varied schedule of hours, which may include evenings, weekends, and
holidays.

EDUCATION AND EXPERIENCE
Any combination of experience and training that would likely provide the required knowledge and
abilities is qualifving. A typical way to obtain the knowledge and abilities would be:

Equivalent of a bachelor's degree from an accredited four-year college or university in public or
business administration, engineering, law or a closely related field; and five (5) years of experience
in a public agency management position responsible for the formulation and implementation of

Page 4 of 5

)



programs, budgets and administrative operations with a public works agency, water resource, or
water utility.

CERTIFICATIONS

Water Treatment and Distribution Operator Licenses (State of California) Level Il must be obtained
within 2 years after date of hire.

LICENSE
e Must possess a valid California Class C driver's license and have a satisfactory driving

record.
e Must be bondable by District's fidelity bond insurer.

FLSA STATUS: EXEMPT
PAY GRADE: Per Employment Agreement

Page 50of 5



Salary Review Data 8/13/2024
Castroville Community Services District
General Manager
Base Salary
Comparison Agencies Top Step
1{Monterey One Water $291,950.40
2|Soquel Creek Water District $287,119.92
3|Marina Coast Water District $235,000.00
4|San Lorenzo Valley Water District $185,000.00
5|Scotts Valley Water District $207,996.00
6|Monterey Peninsula Regional Park District $201,774.00
7|Carmel Area Wastewater District $235,996.80
8|Aromas Water District $165,360.00
9|Pajaro Sunny Mesa Community Services District $189,5632.75
10|Castroville Community Services District $183,417.40
Average of Comparators (Without M1W) $210,132.99
Castroville % Difference from Average -12.71%
Median of Comparators (Without M1W) $201,774.00
Castroville % Difference from Median -9.10%
Average of All (Including M1W) $218,314.73
Castroville % Difference from Average -15.98%
Median of All (Including M1W) $204,885.00
Castroville % Difference from Median -10.48%

79



CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT

From the desk of
Eric Tynan — General Manager
Phone (831) 633-2560

TO: Castroville CSD Board of Directors
DATE: August 20, 2024

RE: Emergency Repair Work for Main Break at Merritt and Salinas Street

RECOMMENDATION;

Approve payment to J Johnson & Company, Inc. for emergency repair work for main
break at Merritt and Salinas Street; not to exceed amount of $155,000.

SUMMARY:

In January of 2023 a leak developed in the 8” main fronting the Burger King Restaurant
On Merritt street. The main was inside of a steel carrier pipe making overall pipe
condition difficult. The leak was repaired and a decision to replace the main after valve
scheduled for replacement was exposed. Subsequently, the contractor failed to replace
the valves, so the pipe was not exposed and properly evaluated.

On Sunday evening 14™ of June, I saw a section of pavement in front of Burger King
rising up with water pouring out a seam in the asphalt. J Johnson & Company Inc.
responded to the emergency and stopped the leak but stated that the pipe entering a
concrete kicker looked in terrible condition. At this point the main valves were closed,
with one that continued leaking about 3-5 gallons a minute. With the condition of this
pipe, I authorized an emergency repair after notifying President Padilla.

Fearing another rupture, I instructed the contractor to replace all the pipe, about 80 up
to and including the 3 main valves. During this work we discovered multiple 6x6x6
concrete “kickers” that took excessive time, energy and cost. Finally, it was determined
that the fire hydrants immediately adjacent to the main break needed to be relocated
from Merritt Street to Salinas Street.

The first emergency repair work was from June 14-21, 2024, and the Board authorized
payment for that work due to it being an emergency. After further review and inspection
on the 28" of July I found that the structural integrity of the main would need to be
replaced and was such that its replacement could not be deferred until such time as we

1|Page o[
LPag 30



award a contract to do the work. As this was an emergency, the District needed to avoid
further damage to the roadway and other infrastructure. This matter could not wait for
the next Board meeting.

After an exhaustive 2 weeks water service was restored, the pipe and valves replaced,
and the hydrant relocated on 14® of August. I hope that the Board will approve the work
by J Johnson & Company, Inc.

Also, T have instructed staff to relocate the service for the gas station on the other side
of Highway 156 bridge so we can ascertain the condition of the pipe going over the
bridge.

Respectfully,
J. Eric Tynan

2|Page

81



Iidia@cast:gvillecsd.org

From:

Sent:

To:

Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

Follow Up Flag:
Flag Status:

Eric,

Jay Johnson <jay@jjohnsonandco.com>

Wednesday, August 14, 2024 1:44 PM

Eric Tynan

lidia@castrovillecsd.org

Merritt St Main Replacement Quotation

Merritt St Main Replacement Preliminary Quotation.doc

Follow up
Flagged

As requested and based on our conversation prior to the work, | have complied a quotation for the
project. Please keep in mind, this is based on our "Pre-construction Expectations" and is not the final
costs. Due to extensive issues encountered during the excavations, there will be additional costs along
with CMS Traffic Control items Caltrans had placed on the permit requirements just a day prior to

starting work.

My expectation is this quotation will be 60-70 % of actual cost once compiled. Don't forget, the loops will
also need to be accounted for as well, that will be close to another 10K.

James “Jay” Johnson
Johnson & Company, Inc.



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-07

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CASTROVILLE
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT APPROVING A PROPOSAL FROM J.
JOHNSON & COMPANY, INC. FOR WATER MAIN REPAIR IN AN AMOUNT NOT
TO EXCEED $155,000

WHEREAS, Castroville Community Services District (“District”) is a Community
Services District created pursuant to Government Code Section 61000; and

WHEREAS, in January 2023, a leak developed in the 8” water main fronting the Burger
King Restaurant on Merritt Street;

WHEREAS, the District determined the water main located at Highway 1 and Merritt
Steet & Salinas Street (“Project”) requires repair, which includes relocation and replacement,
trenching, installation and backfill;

WHEREAS, the estimated costs to complete this Project is approximately $155,000;

WHEREAS, in June 2024, a section of the Project water main unexpectedly failed and
created an emergency call-out to stem the flow that was creating a hazardous condition and
undermining the California Department of Transportation (“CalTrans”) roadway;

WHEREAS, Jay Johnson and Company, Inc. (“Contractor”) responded to the District’s
emergency, and performed repairs on a section of a water main;

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors authorized and ratified the emergency repairs
performed by Contractor;

WHEREAS, after further review and inspection of the Project area, the District’s
General Manager has determined the structural integrity of the water main is at risk, and that
such repairs must be performed immediately and cannot be deferred;

WHEREAS, Contractor, who recently performed emergency repairs, is uniquely
positioned and qualified to complete the remainder of the District’s repair and replacement work
for the Project on an expedited basis;

WHEREAS, the District General Manager has determined that the emergency work is
necessary to expedite the repairs and stem any further leakage, while also replacing the necessary
pipes and valves in coordination with CalTrans, and the economic efficiencies in performing the



remaining work while already on the Project site makes Contractor a uniquely qualified company
to render the Project services required;

WHEREAS, Contractor submitted a proposal for the Project for an amount not to exceed
$155,000, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A (“Proposal™);

WHEREAS, Contractor is a licensed contractor, with State Contractors license number
794964,

WHEREAS, the District has previously engaged Contractor to perform construction
services, and is currently engaging Contractor; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager has determined that the nature of the work to be
performed by Contractor for which the District seeks to engage Contractor is of unique and
specialized work, and Contractor is uniquely positioned in terms of time, labor and materials, as
set forth in the Sole Source Justification document attached hereto as Exhibit B; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager has determined Contractor has the demonstrated the
specialized skills, demonstrated competency, and holds the professional qualifications necessary
for the satisfactory performance of the work and services, and is uniquely positioned to perform
the services most efficiently and economically for the Project; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the Castroville Community
Services District Board of Directors hereby finds:

1. The District Board of Directors hereby finds and determines that the foregoing
recitals are severally ratified, confirmed, approved and adopted in all respects.

2. Contractor’s proposal attached as Exhibit A is hereby approved, and the General
Manager is authorized to take further actions as may be necessary to give effect to
this Resolution.

3. The nature of the work to be performed by Contractor for which the District seeks to
engage Contractor is of unique and specialized work, and Contractor is uniquely
positioned due to its experience with the Project, completion of prior emergency
repairs, and ability to concurrently perform needed work with the District.

4. Engaging Contractor for the work associated with the Project is appropriate and
consistent with the public interest because the nature of the services and emergency
work required for the replacement of water main service lines is of such a nature that
competitive proposals would be unavailing or would not produce an advantage, and
the advertisement for competitive bid would thus be undesirable, impractical, or
impossible; and

S. The District Board approves Exhibit B, the Sole Source justification.



6. Replacement of the water main is categorically exempt from the provisions of the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under Section 15301(d), 15302(c) and
15303(d) of the CEQA Guidelines. Further CEQA review therefore is not required for
the District to accept the Contractor’s Proposal.

7. The District Board hereby directs the General Manager or designee to take all steps
necessary to implement this Resolution, as set forth herein.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Castroville Community Services District duly held onthe  day of 2024, by
the following vote.

Ayes: Director(s)
Noes: Director(s)
Absent: Director(s)

Abstained:  Director(s)

ATTEST:

Cosme Padilla, Board President

Lidia Santos, Secretary
(SEAL)

35



g\ah\‘oﬂr /i\
— General Bngmeering Contractor & Ca Lie, #79.490.8

J ] ohnson & Company, Inc.

737 %45 m s 722 e

C/dfo K

I“U‘ -‘cl- « ‘{U L) SOy ( \ ,‘““'. hARN
( abhasas \ld \Ill n |”L. ’ S ( ‘\

Castroville Community Services District July 31, 2024
P.O. Box 1065
Castroville, Ca. 95012

Attn: Eric Tynan District Manager

Subject: Billing Invoice 24-1405-01
Project: Merritt St Emergency Main Repair/Replacement

6/18/24 EWR 1 Sawcut and Excavate to Repair Main LS $ 9,532.24
6/19/24 EWR 2 Sawcut and Excavate to Repair Main LS $ 7,297.53
6/20/24 EWR 3 Excavate and Replace Main LS $11,930.53
6/21/24 EWR 4 Replace Main, Backfill and Plate LS S 8,724.08
6/24/24 EWR 5 Slurry Backfill Trench and Plate LS $ 4,780.69

Further Work Pending Caltrans Permit Total $42,265.07

4% CARB Environmental Surcharge  $_1,690.60
Total Due  $43,955.67

2% Charged to all Accounts 30 Days Past Due

D]
3



bt A

General Engineering Contractor @ Ca. Lic. #794964

4 ohnson & Company, Inc.

722-2975

h 3 ] _.‘i"‘t.'._ L] [ ax
SON 5 )_‘()]() = (‘;. ‘) -
[{()d(l L] V‘Val\(" \|“L C /\

600 Calabasas

Castroville Community Services District August 14, 2024
P.O. Box 1065
Castroville, Ca. 95012

Subject: Merritt St Main Repair Quotation
Project: Merritt St at Salinas St intersection Caltrans Route 183

Mr. Tynan,

We quote the items listed below for the approximate sums shown as each. This includes all tools, labor,
equipment, and material require to complete the work as described and as per Caltrans, CCSD
Specifications, Monterey County Requirements.

1) Traffic Control LS S 6,720.00
2) Sawcut, Demo, and Dispose of AC 450 SF S 9,830.00
3) Excavate and Replace Existing Steel Pipe in Casing 90 LF S 29,940.00
4) Install New 8” Gate Valves 2 Ea $ 9,050.00
5) Install New 6” Gate Valve 1Ea S 3,160.00
6) Remove and Install new 2” Water Service 1Ea $ 7,270.00
7) Replace AC Paving as Per Caltrans 600 SF $11,380.00

This does not include:
1) Permits of Fees of Any Kind
2) Survey or Layout
3) Soil Testing Outside Street Backfill or Engineering
4) Building Department Inspections
5) Installation of Utilitys From Property Line to Building, Testing, Flush or Final Connections
6) Over Excavation of Unsutable Materials, Disposal or Re-compaction
7) Concrete Curb, Gutter and Sidewalk Removal or Replacement

1of2

g7



evhibik N\

8) Dewatering if High Water Table is Encountered

9} Trench Shoring, Trench Sheild or Plywood Shoring Materials If Required
10) Hand Excavation Around High Pressure Gas Main if Required

11) Removal or Disposal of Hazardious Materials

12) Excavation or Removal or Disposal of Excessively Hard Soils, Sandstone or Rock Type Materials
13) Excavation or Removal or Disposal of Silding Soil or Sand

14) Dump Fees of Any Kind

15) Repairs to Non U.S.A. Utilitys

16) Relocation of Utilities in Conflict

17) Repairs to Existing Landscaping, Irrigation or Electrical

18) Relocation of Materials in Area of Proposed Work By Others

19) Stand-by Time for Material Relocation

20) SWPPP Smart Requirements or info Uploading

21) ESCAPE Plan, BMP’s, or Implementation

20f2



“hist R

Sole Source Justification
Castroville Community Services District

/ /
VENDOR'S NAME: Jay Johnson & co pATE: /(5 J 2-¢f
-_—
ADDRESS: 600 Calabassas rd INITIATED BY: / A / v/ AV

Watsonville CA, 95076 PROJECT NO:

PHONE or EMAIL: 831-332-8452

Enie @ Coaxfrovill e €SO O/Qg,

'I'Description of ltem(s) and cost. Explain why this good or service is needed.

Emerg@ncy main repair in Hwy 183/Merritt St.

Justification for Goods, Materials, Equipment and Service Contracts

|J| Only known supplier of item or service. (Explain how this was verified.)
did previous repair so knows the challenges

there are no alternate equipment providers that can bid on the same proprietary item.)

[:I Supplier proprietary item. (Supplier is the only manufacturer of this item. List the reasons why no substitute item can be used. Explain why

| / | Required for Emergency Response. (Describe emergency and date of occurrence. Why is item essential to emergency response.)

Other (eg. Previously approved sole-source equipment by GM, pilot or experimental) Attach equipment list or provide explanation.
leak in same location in January

Justification for Professional and Technical Services

Firm is a highly recognized authority in a field or specialty, or has unique and/or specific knowledge regarding project.
(Explain below)

I/ ' Firm has satisfactorily performed the previous stage of a project or has acquired extensive background and working
knowledge relevant to the project. (Explain below)

REPAIRED SAME MAIN SEVERAL MONTHS AGO AND IS MOST FAMILIER WITH PROBLEM

D Other (eg. pilot or experimental) Provide explanation.

JERICTYNAN, ___—— '
General Manager : SRINT NANE <> = a?’ /j 7/{
b 7 Date:
SIGN ﬁ?ﬁ:f/@/ﬁ
/ / //‘-“'"’L/'\‘____
—

49



ﬁ (G# TT3M) Jeaur

S#ETIIM > P TN ==

# 1IN ==

C# T\ e

yz-ony

PNV £2-9NY

EC NVl ¢ ONY CONVP L2 ony LE NV 0 onvy
AR

¥202-8102 ST3ATT T1dM ITIIAOYULSVO

02 Nvr

6/ onv

61 NV 81 9NV

81 NV

50

0'0cl-

0'00L-

008

o.o&..._..lm_

0o

00¢-

REGERNRED

00



California Coastal Commission

COASTAL DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

Amended CDP 3-83-92 (through CDP amendment A1)

Castroville Community Services District
Issue Date: July 29, 2024
Page 1 of 2

CDP 3-83-092 (originally numbered P-78-772) was originally approved by the Regional
Commission on June 30, 1980 and authorized the construction of public sewer system
infrastructure,’ including sewer lines along various County roads, a sewer main along
Highway 1, lift stations, and a pump station, to serve the unincorporated community of Moss
Landing. The CDP was conditioned to allow for the construction of the sewer system with
several special conditions imposed to address other Coastal Act issues, including related to
ESHA, wetlands, agricultural protection, and inappropriate growth inducement by ensuring
that such sewer system would not directly or indirectly facilitate development within these
resource areas. CDP 3-83-92, as amended, maintains all of the existing aforementioned
conditions, but would authorize various repairs, replacements, and improvements to the
Moss Landing sewer system including the repair/replacement of four lift stations,
improvements to 14 manholes, the extension of sewer service to a single parcel, removal of
several trees, and repair/replacement of approximately 5,735 linear feet of sewer line
including replacement of the force main under the Highway 1 bridge over Elkhorn Slough.
Work would occur within or directly adjacent to Highway 1, Struve Road, Sandholdt Road,
Potrero Road, and Moss Landing Road. Temporary single lane closures and limited
closures of public street parking would occur at various locations during construction. 3-83-
A1 includes the standard and special conditions beginning on page 2 of this amended CDP.
By my signature below, the amended CDP is issued on behalf of the California Coastal
Commission:

DocuSigned by:
Kevin Kadin

UL UL

Kevin Kahn, Central Coast District Manager. for Katé Huckelbridge, Executive Director

The undersigned Permittee acknowledges receipt of this CDP and agrees to abide by all terms
and conditions thereof. The undersigned Permittee acknowledges that Government Code

! The CDP authorized conveyance infrastructure in the community to rid itself of individual septic systems. The
actual wastewater treatment is now the Monterey One Water plant in Marina. Thus, the CDP did not authorize a
new wastewater treatment plant specific to/within Moss Landing.

Please note that this amended CDP is not valid unless and until a copy of it with the signed acknowledgement has been
returned to the California Coastal Commission’s Central Coast District Office (14 Cal. Admin. Code Section 13158). q l




COASTAL DEVELOPMENT PERMIT

Amended CDP 3-83-92 (through CDP amendment A1)
Page 2 of 2

Section 818.4 (that states in pertinent part that “a public entity is not liable for injury caused by
the issuance of any permit”) applies to the issuance of this CDP.

g thﬂ; . ﬁlﬂw 5:«/% ) 6._41{/{ / //:{O}f?{.)j 7/-’5/ / 2 Y

Castroville Commgnity Service District Signature " Printed Name/Title *  Dhite

Standard Conditions

1. Notice of Receipt and Acknowledgment. The permit is not valid and developmentshall
not commence until a copy of the permit, signed by the Permittee or authorizedagent,
acknowledging receipt of the permit and acceptance of the terms and conditions, is
returned to the Commission office.

2. Expiration. If development has not commenced, the permit will expire two years from the
date on which the Commission voted on the application. Development shallbe pursued in
a diligent manner and completed in a reasonable period of time. Application for extension
of the permit must be made prior to the expiration date.

3. Interpretation. Any questions of intent or interpretation of any condition will be
resolved by the Executive Director or the Commission.

4. Assignment. The permit may be assigned to any qualified person, provided assignee
files with the Commission an affidavit accepting all terms and conditions ofthe permit.

5. Terms and Conditions Run with the Land. These terms and conditions shall be
perpetual, and it is the intention of the Commission and the Permittee to bind all future
owners and possessors of the subject property to the terms and conditions.

Special Conditions

Please see the attached conditions from the original permit.

¢

~.

"o



ADOPTED a
P-78-772 MICSD PAGE 19

RECCMMENDED CCNDITIONS

LIMITS OF 1. a. The approval of this project is limited to those facilities shown
PROJECT on Exhibits 1 and 2, Other than normal repair and maintenance as defined in
APPROVAL Section 30610(d) of the Coastal Act, any modifications to any approved project
(SECTTONS - camponents within the Coastal Zone or any additional camponents shall require

30250a, 30254) an amendment to this permit.

b. Additions to the service area, beyond current service area, shall require
a separate Coastal Development Permit.

FINATL, PIAN 2. Prior to the bid award ard camencement of construction, permittee shall

REVIEW submit final plans and specifications for Cormmission review and approval.
Plans shall include alignment, depth, designaticn of vegetation to be re-
moved, revegetation and landscaping, any permanent above-grourd structures
and other construction details. 1In approving the final plans, the Camis-
sion shall impose any other conditions deemed necessary to minimize the im-
pacts of the construction of the pipeline or of the individual comnections.

PIMP STATICN a. The Moss Landing pump station shall not be located in a wetland, as
(30233) certified by the Department of Fish and Game. No diking, f£illing or
dredging of wetlands is authorized by this permit.

ACCESS b. The plans shall cutline procedures to minimize the disruption of public
INTERFERENCE access including a public notification system identifving construction loca-
(30211) tions and time schedules, and public safety precautions.

HARBOR . Cc. The pipeline shall be rercuted to cross Moro Cojo Slough only along
EXPANSTON Highway 1 sc as not to interfere with possible harbor expansion alternatives
(30233, 30240a) (see Exhibit 1).

_or—

The permittee shall submit for Executive Director and Deputy Attorney General
review and approval a binding legal docurent specifying the mechanics ¢f pipe-

REVISED line relocation to the route noted above if necessary for future harbor expan-
sion into Moro Cojo Slough.

HAZARD d. Plans shall incorporate the recammendations of the geotechnical investi-

MITIGATICN gation.per cordition 6. ’

(30253 (1) & (2) ) . .

DESI&N e. Structural plans shall include landscaping orovisions and designs com-

30253 (5) patible with surrounding structures.

30251

AGRICULTURAL £. Plans shall include measures to prevent intarfermcg with agricultural

LANDS operaticns (e.g. dust control, construction in non-growing season) and to

30241 pramctly restore agricultural lands, or shall show a line relocated out of
agricultural lards.

ENERGY g. Plans shall incorporate energy saving and alternative energy camponents

CCNSERVATION to the maximm extent feasible.

20253 (4)

93




COASTAL
RESOURCE
LANDS (30233,
30240, 30241)

REVISED

SERVICE
PRIORITY
(30254, 30222,
30255, 30010,
30007.5)

REVISED

P-78-772

PAGE 20

3. Prior to the certification of the North County segment of Monterey
County's Local Coastal Program, the permittee shall neither guarantee nor
provide sewer service to any dune, wetlands or agricultural parcel not cur-
rently generating wastewater flows. (See Exhibit 3).

After certification of the appropriate Local Coastal Program,service shall
be provided only in conformance with the certified Iocal Coastal Program.
A development shall be deemed to be in conformance with a certified Iocal
Coastal Program if (1) the local government has issued a coastal development
permit and the appeal period to the State Commission has expired without
appeal, or (2) in the event of an appeal to the State Coastal Commission,
the Commission has taken final action to approve the development. Prior to
commencement of any construction the permittee shall incorporate necessary-
provisions in its procadures to implement this condition. The permittee
shall not cause the dune, wetlands, agricultural parcels to be "assessed
for benefit" from the project approved unless and until: (1) the parcel
has received a coastal development permit; or, (2) specific parcels are
approved for development by the ILocal Coastal Program in which case the
parcels specifically approved for development may be assessed.

4. a. Priority for service shall be assigned to:

Ist existing uses within the service area

2rd Moss Landing State Beach and/or Salinas River State Beach and
Moss Larding Harbor District pump—out facility

3rd new or expanded coastal-dependent industries within the service
area on suitable land

4th new or expanded essential public services, basic industries
or recreational uses on suitable land within Moss Ianding
proper excluding Struve Road area, or minimm other uses on
vacant parcels within the service area

5th all other uses '

b. Allocations shall be subject to the availability of capacity in
proposed project facilities and at the Castroville plant.

Cc. Capacity shall be reserved for the existing seafood processing
operation (first priority) equal to their estimated flow (industrial
and sanitary), unless and until the Regional Water Quality Control
Board certifies that approved alternative wastewater disposal systems
exist.

d. Capacity for State Parks and the pump—out facilities shall be
based on average peak visitor and boat use projections (second
priority).

24




LANDCWNER
NOTIFICATION

REVISED

HAZARDS
MIUTIGATION
(30253 (1) &
(2)

STAGING
AREA PLANS
(30240,
30241, 30251)

t
P-78-772 MWD PAGE 21

e. Capacity and allocations within priority categories shall be based on
provisions of a certified Iocal Coastal Proaram. If there is no certified
Local Coastal Program at the time that the permittee is ready to guarantee
sewer service to other than existing uses, it shall submit for Executive
Director review and approval an interim program to implement this condition.

f. The permittee shall not cause non-resource vacant parcels in the service
area shown on Exhibit 3 to be assessed for benefit greater than for a single
family equivalent use unless and until (1) the parcel has received a Coastal
Development Permit for a more intensive use or (2) the specific parcel is
approved for a more intensive development by the Local Coastal Program in

which case the parcels specifically approved for development may be assessed.

g. The permittee shall not cause existing developed parcels in the service
area to be assessed for benefit greater than the existing use unless and un-
til (1) the parcel has received a Coastal Develomment Permit for a more in-
tensive use or (2) the specific parcel is approved for a more intensive
development by the Local Coastal Program, in which case the parcels speci-
fically approved for develcprent may be assessed.

h. Thig condition does not guarantee Coastal Commission approval of any
hew or intensified uses within the service area, All proposals must be
reviewed: for consistency with the Coastal Act.

5. Prior to comrencement of construction, the permittee shall provide
written notice to all property owners of record affected by Conditions 3

and 4. Such notice shall provide landowners with copies of the conditions
and exhibits, indicate their effect on obtaining sewer service, and describe
any available remedies.

No construction shall cammence until the Fxecutive Director has certified
that the permittee has provided him with adequate proof of notice to the

affected land owners, a final service district map, showing all legal parcels,

a map showing all rescurce parcels as described in Condition 3, and service
charge categories pursuant to Conditions 3 and 4 and any necessary provisions
to implement these conditions in its operating procedures.

6. Prior to the award of the bid and comencement of construction, permittee
shall submit the geotechnical investigation for the proposed project for
Executive Director review (in consultation with the staff geologist and Div-
ision of Mines and Geology staff if necessary) and approval. The report
shall cover flooding, lateral spreading, liquefaction, and tsunami potential.

7. Prior to comencement of construction, permittee shall submit final
staging area plans for Executive Director review and approval. Provisions
shall include locations out of agricultural lands or wetlands and then as
removed from the public view as possible; screening; non-interference with
agricultural operations or public access, and site restoration.

@
(@]}




ODOR

CONTROL
(30253 (3)

30414)

ARCHAFOLOGY

30244

PUBLIC
ACCESS
30211
30212

P-78-772 MLCSD PAGE 22

8. Permittee shall prepare and implement a detailed program employing
highest "state of the art" methods to prevent project odors. Prior to
camencerent of construction of the project, the design unit of the Divi-
sion of Water Quality - State Water Resources Control Board shall certify
in writing to the Camission that the project design meets the above
mentioned objective for odor control.

9.a. The permittee shall follow all the recommendations of the archaeo-
logical consultant as may bhe modified by the State Water Resources Control
Board's Cultural Resources Officer or the State Historic Preservation
Officer or his designee. If the archaeological monitoring reveals signi-
ficant resources and indicates their likely presence in areas subject to
excavations for individual connections, this entire condition shall be -
followed with respect to these areas as well. (see Exhibit 6)

b. For any final pipeline routes or staging areas within the Coastal Zone
not previocusly surveyed by the consultant: unless permittee presents veri-
fication by a recognized professional archaeologist to the State Historic
Preservation Officer that the site has no apvarent prehistoric scientific
values warranting further mitigation, permittee shall provide an evaluation
of the significance of the archaeologic values of the site, prior to any dis-
turbance of the surface area of subject property. Such evaluation shall be
prepared by a professional archaeologist or by other person(s) aqualified in
accordance with the standards of the State Historic Preservation Office, and
shall be submitted for approval by the Executive Director.

c. If the archaeologic resources are found to be significant, permittee
shall then submit a plan of mitigation, prepared by a qualified professional
archaeologist and using accepted scientific techniques, orior to any (addi-
tional) disturbance of the surface area of the property. Such plan shall be
submitted for review by the State Water Resources Control Board's cultural
resources officer and the approval of the Executive Director. The plan
shall provide for reasonable mitigation of archaeologic impacts resulting
fran the develomment of the site, and shall be fully implemented.

d. A report verifying coampliance with this condition shall be submitted
upon campletion of excavation, for review and approval by the Fxecutive
Director,

10a The permittee shall agree to allow public access over any portions of
its easements or land within the Coastal Zone, so designated for public
access in a certified Local Coastal Program. This agreement is subject to
the permittee granting only such rights as it may have and it is under—
Stood that the applicant will not obstruct any other party's establishment of
public accessways in the project vicinity. The appropriateness of public
access in any given area (especially agricultural lands) shall be examined -
through the ICP planning process. Public use shall be regulated consistent
with the provisions of Sections 30212 and 30214 of the Coastal Act. The
prermittee may delegate public access management responsibilities to another
public agency. Any surface easements associated with this project, running
fram the first public road to or along the shoreline, which are acquired by
the applicant prior to certification of the applicable Iocal Coastal Program
shall include provisions which would allow public access over the subject
area.

<L




WATER
CONSERVATTON
30231/30250 (a)
30254

REVISED

WATER
CONSERVATION

SPOILS

DISPOSAL
30233

LIABTILITY

DISCIATMER
30253 (1)
& (2)

RELATICNSHIP
WITH P-78~773
REVISED

OTHER
APPROVALS

P-78-772 o MLCSD PAGE 23

b. The permittee shall, by accepting the terms and conditions of the
permit, agree that permit issuance and capletion of the authorized
development shall not prejudice any subsequent assertion of public
rights, e.g. prescriptive rights, public trust, etc.

11. . All development within the coastal zone to be connected to the proposed
project shall be provided with water conservation kits — at a minimam, tank
capacity reducers for all toilets and flow restrictors or aerators for all
faucets and showerheads. This shall be provided by the County of Monterey
and verification that this has been accamplished shall be submitted to the
Executive Director prior to comnection of the community to the new project.

The County shall establish water conservation requirements as a part of
building regulations for all new units within the Coastal Zone of the
service area. These requirements shall be submitted for Commission review
and approval. The requirements shall be used in granting coastal permi ts
and considered as part of the lLocal Coastal Program.

12. 1If available, treated wastewater or other non-potable water shall be
used to flush the sewer lines.

13. Off-site disposal of excavated spoils within the Coastal Zone shall
be subject to prior review and approval by the Executive Director. Any
excavated materials shall be carefully removed so that spoils are neither
placed within or allowed to slide into any wetland.

14. In accepting this permit, permittee acknowledges that portions of the
permitted project facilities lie within an apparent high geologic and
flood hazard area; ard further acknowledges that the State of California
assumes no liability for loss of life or property which may result fram the
installation of the project.

15. Prior to award of the Step III construction contract for the interceptor
line from Moss Landing to Castroville, the permittee for P—78—77§ shall have
obtained Coastal Cammission approval of a facility designed to dispose Qf
the project's (P-78-772) wastewater (e.g. expanded treatment at Castroville,
interceptor to regicnal treatment plant).

1l6. a. Prior to the bid award and commencement of construction, permittee
shall submit to the Executive Director evidence of approvals if necessary
fram Fish and Game, Monterey County Plamning Department, Moss Landing Har-
bor District, U.S. Ammy Corps of Engineers, consistent with the provisions
of this permit.

b. Prior to coamencement of construction, the permittee shall obtain a
written determination fram the State Iands Camission that:

1. No State lands are involved in the development; or

2. State lands are involved in the development and all permits
required by the State ILands Commission have been obtained; or

3. State lands may be involved in the development, but pending
a final determination, an agreement has been made with the State
Iands Commission for the project to proceed without prejudice
to that determination.




CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT AUGUST 20, 2024

“ Regulatory Compliance

0O 0O0OD0DU0DO0ODODDO

Last SWRCB-DDW inspection of water system April 2021 — due soon

Working on PFA regulation re: PFA’s mandated by EPA

Submitted State mandated Drought Resiliency Program for April, May, June
Initiated EPA mandated Lead pipe inventory& Replacement (LPIR)due Oct 15
All routine samples coliform samples negative for July, 2024

Well #3 future desalter use under investigation

Completed Bacteriological sampling plan for 2024

Submitted water reports to 7 large Water system customers 7/5/2024
Regulatory documentation for Castroville, Moss Landing & Moro Cojo- “No Spill
Report” to SWRCB for July 9, 2024

% Current Projects

0O0OD0OD0DD0DDDODOD

Institute Community outreach with School District and other organizations
Initiate bidding for Well 6 construction

Need to stop Illegal semi truckers from using local streets as truck stops
Researching De-Salter feasibility for Well #3 as brackish water supply well
Secure $3.2 million in funding for construction of Washington sewer by-pass line
Repair leak in front of Burger king on Merritt Street

Collaborate with the SVGWBGSA on developing a long-term water supply
Oversee grant funding, permits and design of new Overhead sign from CalTrans
Research new grant funding opportunities for grants for new Castroville water
supply for $7.2 million



< Completed Projects

0O0o0oo

OO

000D

60% draft design completed for Washington BP

Replaced faulty valve @ Merritt & Preston

60% Design for Moss Landing Sewer Rehab

60% Planning for Well site #4 modifications for filling storage tanks from
distribution system & additional 600,000-gallon water tank- Design-Build will take
it to 100%

Operators inspecting and confirming lateral replacement work

Completed Coastal; permit for MLRP, ready to apply for grants

or low interest loans

Review proposals for new/existing projects in 2024/2025

Met with Supervisor Church re: homeless trash on Del Monte Rd- REMOVED
Met with MCPW to resolve deteriorated fencing on Overpass & overhead sign
Located old water connections for replacement during County’s Road repair on
North side of town

Upcoming Projects

Q

[N O A Ay ]

0O 000D

Coordinate with CalTrans for lateral & saddle replacement/abandonment

on Merritt/HWY 183- Start Jan 2025

Tie-in to MPWSP Desal water line(research)

Reconsider projects for CIP 2024/2029

Investigate installing solar power @ office and additional sites

Follow up with Supervisor Church to resolve flooding and I / I issue on Struve
Work with County to install Stop signs on Wood, Geil & Castro Streets (and
others)

Follow-up with MCPW re: schedule repair of deteriorated fencing on Overpass
Meet with M1W Source control re: illegal connections in Castroville

Initiate community collaboration with NMCUSD & Student Ambassadors
Design, secure, Bid funding for New Deep Well#6

investigate depressions in street for sewer repair

+ Meetings/Seminars (attended)

b O

[ S S N

Sarah Hargrave & Jennifer Murray re: CCSD Outreach efforts
Senator Laird Water forum @ Middlebury Institute
Met with Jay Johnson and Jeremy of Signs by Van to resolve issues with
Overhead Sign design & installation
Paul Tran re: consider providing contracted Services for Castroville Oaks
Met with Seema Chavan of Brown and Caldwell to assist in grant submission
Billie Issa re: MCPW regarding lateral replacement prior to street repairs
Cal Trans-Multiple meetings/ conversations re:

1. Replace Castroville Overhead Sign,

19



2. Improve/enhance Pedestrian Over-pass
3. Merritt Street Improvement & overlay

% Meetings/Seminars (upcoming)

Monterey Bay Water Works Association training & Board meeting
Water Solutions Group

NMCUSD & Community engagement

Moss Landing Community Plan Update

Castroville Community Plan Update

Monterey 1 Water- Grant assistance

1807-400 Aquifer- Advisory Committee

Quarterly Water Managers meeting

Quarterly Special District Managers meeting

0000 O0OD0DO0COdOD

< Improvements/Ideas/Suggestions

o Install “For fire use only- all others will be fined” on all fire hydrants

o Design & find funding for new sewer mains to replace Cypress Alley sewer main



7 N
Z# IIBM C# [ISNA V# IS G# 1S 000
T - — Sk — 0
00}
866°CT
00¢
00¢
00¥
009
£6'659 009
o) suoj|es uol||iN
H S £
r — N
S#113aAm “C#113M “E#7713M v #173IM C# lISM # lISM i 119 S# IIBM
Mvado 2T 3 r = 000
Mvad 00002
WVILdvd®m
0000t
Mv3d 440
00009
00008
- 000001
00°00¢!1

%

101



State of California — tlealth and !uman Services Agency Department of Public Iealth

Dnoking Water Program

MONTHLY SUMMARY OF DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM COLIFORM MONITORING
(including triggered source monitoring for systems subject to the Groundwater Rule)

Syatem Name E_\m-m Numnher

CASTROVILLE CSD 2710005
JULY 2024

Number Number Number Total Number Fecal/
Required Collected  Coliform Positives E.coli Positives
1. Routine Samples (sec note 1) 2/IWK 10 0

2, Repeat Samples following Samples that are Total Coliform

0
Positive and Fecal/E coli Vegative (see notes 5 and 6) 0 0 :l

3. Repeat Samples following Routine Samples that are
Total Coliform Pesitive and Fecal/E.coli Positive

(see notes 5 and 6) 0 i |

4. MCL Computation for Total Coliform Positive Samples

a. Totals (sum of columns) 10 0

b. If 40 or more samples collected in month, determine
percent of samples that are total coliform positive

[(total number positive/total number collected) x 100] = NA %
c. Is system in compliance.. ... with fecal/E. coli MCL?
(see notes 2 and 3) Yes [0 No
with monthly MCL? Yes [ No
(see note 4)
5. Source Samples Triggered by Routine Samples that are Total Coliform Positive 0 0 :’

(This applies only to systems subject to the Groundwater Rule - see notes 7 and 8)

6. Invalidated Samples
(Note what samples, if any, were invalidated; who authorized the invalidation; and when replacement samples
were collected, Aftach additional sheets, if necessary.)

7. Summary Completed By:

Signalure Tikls Date

J. ERIC TYNAN GENERAL MANAGER 8/5/2024

NOTES AND INSTRUCTIONS:

L. Routine samples include:
a. Samples required pursuant 1o 22 CCR Section 64423 and any additional samplcs required by an approved rouline samplc siting plan cstablished pursuant 1o 22 CCR Scction 64422
b Extra samples arc required for systems collccting less than five routine samples per month Lhal had one or morc total coliform positives in previous month;

c. Extra samples for syslems with high source water lurbiditics thal arc using surface waler or ground under dircet infl of surface waler and
do nol practice filtration in compliance with regulations;
2. Note: For a repeat sample following a total coliform positive sample, any fecal/E.coli positive repeat (boxed entry) i an MCL violation and
requires immediate notification to the Department (22, CCR, Section 64426 1)
3 Note: For repeat sample following a fecal/F.coli positive sample, any total coliform positive repeat (boxed entry) i an MCL violation and

requires immediate notification to the Department (22, CCR, Section 64426.1)
Total coliform MCL (Notify Department within 24 hours of MCL violation):
a, For systems collecling Iess than 40 samples, if two or morc samples arc tolal coliform positive, then the MCL is violated
b. For syslems collecting 40 or morc samples, if more than 5.0 percent of samples colleeled arc total coliform positive, then the MCL is violated
Posilive results and their associated repeat samples are to be tracked on the Coliform Monitoring Worksheet
Repeat samples must be collected within 24 hours of being notified of the positive results. For systems collecting more than one routine sample per month, three repeat samples
must be collected for each total coliform positive sample. For systems collecling one or fewer routine samples per month, four repeat samples must be collected for each total coliform
positive sample
For systems subject to the Groundwater Rule: Positive results and the associated triggered source samples are to be tracked on the Coliform Monitoring Worksheel.
For triggered sample(s) required as a result of a total coliform routine positive sample, an E.coli, enterococci, or coliphage positive triggered sample (boxed entry) requires
immediate notilication to the Department, Tier 1 public notification, and corrective action. 10/2009 - 8477

IS

o w»

© -



CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT

OPERATIONS REPORT
July 2024

Emergencies:
Fire Hydrant Knockdown on Del Monte. (Roberto on Call).

Maintenance:

o Fix Leak — 10441 Seymor St.

e Well 5 — Tank “A” & “B” Backwashed.

o Chic Events — FH Head was Replaced.

» West Valley Replaced Valves on Preston St. and Merritt St.
» Prepare Generators Analysis Report.

e Well 2 - R.O. Leaking.

o Well 2 & 4 — R.O. Filters Replaced.

e Took Generator’s Oil Samples to Seaside.

e Coastal Cooling — Investigate Leak.

e |Lead and Laterals Inventory Data.

e Walk Bridge - Meeting with Caltrans.

e Trash Pump — Fixed.

¢ Burger King Main Line.

e 11165 Seymor St. — Lateral Repair.

e Moro Cojo — Pump # 2 Float was Replaced.

e 11483 Geil St. — Water Lateral was Replaced.

e 11467 Geil St. — Water Lateral was Replaced.

e Water Lateral Walk bridge Geil St. & Main St. Tapped.
¢ 11381 Geil St. — Lateral was Replaced.

e Lateral Replacement Program Inspections (3 Days).

(Deliver Shut Off Notices, Shut Off Main Line, Assist Teichert Construction, Take Bac. Samples, Update
Cartegraph Records Efc.)

/103



CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT

OPERATIONS REPORT
July 2024

Emergencies:
Fire Hydrant Knockdown on Del Monte. (Roberto on Call).

Maintenance:

e Fix Leak — 10441 Seymor St.

e Well 5 — Tank “A” & “B” Backwashed.

e Chic Events — FH Head was Replaced.

e West Valley Replaced Valves on Preston St. and Merritt St.
e Prepare Generators Analysis Report.

e Well 2 - R.O. Leaking.

o Well2 & 4 - R.O. Filters Replaced.

* Took Generator’s Oil Samples to Seaside.

» Coastal Cooling — Investigate Leak.

* lLead and Laterals Inventory Data.

» Walk Bridge - Meeting with Caltrans.

e Trash Pump - Fixed.

e Burger King Main Line.

e 11165 Seymor St. — Lateral Repair.

e Moro Cojo — Pump # 2 Float was Replaced.

e 11483 Geil St. — Water Lateral was Replaced.

o 11467 Geil St. — Water Lateral was Replaced.

e Water Lateral Walk bridge Geil St. & Main St. Tapped.
e 11381 Geil St. — Lateral was Replaced.

o |ateral Replacement Program Inspections (3 Days).

(Deliver Shut Off Notices, Shut Off Main Line, Assist Teichert Construction, Take Bac. Samples, Update
Cartegraph Records Etc.)

104



Weekly

Monthly

Work Orders:

Well sites (Check water softeners, Chlorine Generator, tanks, pumps, efc.)

Water Valve Boxes — Inspect and Clean Using Vac. Trailer.
Exercise Valves.

Respond to e-mails.

Rounds - Lift stations (Check fluids, oil, alarms, floats, etc.)
Jetting. (Castroville, Moro Cojo, Moss Landing).

Water samples (Bacteria).

Mapping reports.

Office grounds keeping.

Wash and clean trucks.

Lift stations grounds keeping.

Maintain Cartegraph records updated.

Take Garbage and recycle out.

Take Deposits to Bank.

Inspected Water Meters - 11

Run Generators.

Water Loss Report.

Read and re-read meters.

Deliver 72 hrs. notices.

Replace registers.

Reset logs for Lift Stations and Well sites.
Fire Hydrants readings.

Troubleshoot computers, printer, Internet.

a) 7 Day Disconnect Notice — 18
b) Final Bill Read Meter - 6

c) Investigate — 1

d) Miscellaneous — 2

e) Turn On Service - 2

f) Padlock Srvc, no Tenant - 2

TOTAL WORK ORDERS - 31

105



|Castroville Community Services District

Percent Water Loss

Monthly & Year

Well #5 | Site 2 Well | Site 3 Well | Site 4 Well Totals Totals miscellaneous Unaccounted
Month Gal. Gal. Gal. Gal. Water Pumped | Water Sold Water %
i L e e i E e
14k Leaks Hydrant 430k FD 2k Softner
10-Jul-23| 4820471 4531000 0| 13970000 23321471 20524468| 672380 2« 9.11%
10k Leaks,Hydrant 40k FD 2k Softner
10-Aug-23| 4819912 5168000 0| 15081000 25068912 21745961| 265213 x« 12.20%
s e
15k Leaks,Hydrant 105k FD 2k Softner
11-Sep-23| 4234326 4392000 0] 15081000 23707326 21619564| 292970 x« 7.57%
15k Leaks,Hydrant 105k FD 2k Softner
10-Oct-23| 3239607 3891000 0| 15451000 22581607 19453385| 181655 x« 13.05%
31k Leaks,Hydrant 62k FD'Zk Softner
9-Nov-23| 3931482 4014000 0| 14286000 22231482 19549855| 238000 2« 10.99%
T ——
32k Leaks, Hydrant 65k FD 2k Softner
11-Dec-23| 3975125 3983000 0| 12256000 20214125 17837399| 100000 2« 11.26%
T . e
14k-Leaks,Hydrant 20k FD 2k Saftner
10-Jan-24| 3446900 3432000 0 9525000 16403900 14105926| 52236 x« 13.69%
14k-Leaks, Hydrant 20k FD 2k Softner
9-Feb-24| 3413503 3377000 0 8875000 15665503 13503592| 60452 2« 13.41%
T - .
18k-Leaks,Hydrant 190k FD 2k Softner
11-Mar-24| 3208928 3286000 0 9749000 16243928 14057276| 331428 « . 11.42%
L gk}
26k-Leaks,Hydrant 112k FD 2k Softner
9-Apr-24| 3627567 3584000 0 9327000 16538567 14723310| 222820 x« 9.63%
65k-Laaks, Hydrant 122k FD 2k Softner
10-May-24| 4874667 4755000 0] 11017000 20646667 18085585| 292248 =« 10.99%
29k-Leaks,Hydrant 140k FD 2k Softner
10-Jun-24| 5239342 5134000 0| 11849000 22222342 19527640| 299682 2« 10.78%
13k-Leaks,Hydrant 143k FD 2k Saoftner
10-May-24| 5522444 5294000 0] 12947000 23763444 21046850 351106 2« 9.95%
Average

16.00% -+

14.00% &

12.00% +

10.00%

8.00% 4+

6.00% i

4.00% 4]

2.00% -+

0.00% =

10-Jul-23 10-Aug-2311-Sep-2

1]

310-Oct-23 9-Nov-23 11-Dec-23 10-Jan-24 ©-Feb-

I ‘

11.25%




CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

CASTROVILLE - ZONE 1

MONTHLY O&M REPORT
JuLy 2024

% LIFT STATION #5 Del Monte

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/4/2024

a Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/11/2024

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/18/2024

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/25/2024

< LIFT STATION #6 @ Sea Garden

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/4/2024

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/11/2024

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/18/2024

a Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/25/2024

137



< LIFT STATION #7 @ Via Linda

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/4/2024

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/11/2024

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/18/2024

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/25/2024

% JETTING ACTIVITIES

o Total jetted approx. 3,293 feet

< OTHER MATTERS
o Responded to 14 Underground Alert marking requests
o Submitted no-spill report to SWRCB on 8-5-2024
o Cleaning and inspecting storm drains in October-January

< Improvements/CIP/Suggestions
o Confirm that storm drain drainage ditches are clear & free of debris
o Confirm that storm drain interceptors are clear & free of debris

108



D
10200Roberta
10300Geil
10300Seymour
10400Seymour

10750BlevinsCir.

11300Cooper
11400Blevins
11400Cooper
11450Blevins
11500Blevins
11500Cooper
11600Blevins
11700Blevins

12800VialLinda
12850VialLinda

12875Vialinda
Siphon Geil

Castroville

Materiat
SDR356"
18" Clay
6" Clay
6" Clay
SDR356"
6" Clay
SDR356"
8" Clay
SDR356"
SDR356"
SDR356"
SDR356"
SDR356"
PSM SDR35
8"
8"PVC
PSM SDR35
g
12" Clay
TOTAL

.

JULY 2024 JETTING

Length
149
311
194
345
288
330
236
310
230
394
219
109
122

206
235

91
103

3872

Street
Roberta Place
Geil St.
Seymour St.
Seymour St.
Blevins Way
Cooper St.
Blevins Way
Cooper St.
Blevins Way
Blevins Way
Cooper St.
Blevins Way
Blevins Way

Via Linda
Vialinda

Via Linda
Geil St.

8/9/2024

Downstream
MH
MH12.9
MH 10
MH11.1
MH 11.1
MH 12.7
MH 11
MH 11.6
MH11.1
MH 11.8
MH 11.9
MH 12.10
MH 12.6
MH 12.6

MH12.9
MH 12.5

MH 12.5
MH11.4

Upstream MH
c0129
MH 11.4
Cc011.7
MH11.2
C012.7
MH11.1
MH 11.8
MH 11.6
MH 11.9
MH22.3
C012.10
C012.6
MH 12.7

MH12.10
MH12.9

MH 12.6
MH 11.5

109



CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

MORO COJO - ZONE 2

MONTHLY O&M REPORT
JULY 2024

< LIFT STATION @ CASTROVILLE BLVD

a Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/4/2024

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/11/2024

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/18/2024

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/25/2024

< LIFT STATION @ COMPO DE CASA

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/4/2024

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/11/2024

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/18/2024

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/25/2024

10



% JETTING ACTIVITIES

a

Q
a
a

O

Jetted sewer lines btwn MH #61 to-MH #62
Jetted sewer lines btwn MH #61 to-MH #60
Jetted sewer lines btwn MH #70 to-MH #71
Jetted sewer lines btwn MH #69 to-MH #70

Total jetted approx. 541 feet

% OTHER MATTERS

]

00 D0OD0

Cleaned lift station and weed-whacked site
SWRCB-Reported “no-spill” 7/5/2024

Need NCP&R to Clean EQ Basins

Performed inspection of all storm drains in November 2024
Open Space mowing scheduled for August 2024

% Improvements/CIP/Suggestions
o Confirm that storm drain interceptors are clear Responded to semi tractor

a

trailers parking on open space and advised them they would be charged
for the damage and the cost to restore the landscape
Detention ponds are clean & fence secured

1Ll



Moro Cojo
JULY 2024 JETTING

8/9/24

&
I// By QO
v
i) )
& 2N (/V .'/ ‘g‘
‘\ . *5 __.' ZQQ_
& &
L&
L""':‘P).
» ..‘.’.f\? "8:-
f’&“’m <
/ e 8]
. /9 S
<
\ ]
. <
Downstream Upstream
ID Material Length Street MH MH
PSM SDR35
Apts 2 6" 77 Esperanza Cir MH 82 C082.2
PSM SDR35
Apts 3 6" 113 EsperanzaCir MH 82 c0823
PSM SDR35
Apts 4 8" 177 Esperanza Cir MH 82 MH 82.1
PSM SDR35
Apts 5 6" 50 Esperanza Cir MH82.1 co824
CB3 8"PVC 123 Castroville Bivd MH 53 MH 54 12
TOTAL 541



CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

MOSS LANDING-ZONE 3
MONTHLY O&M REPORT

JULY 2024

“ LIFT STATION # 1 (Struve Rd)

a

a

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/4/2024

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/11/2024

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/18/2024

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/25/2024

% LIFT STATION #2 (Hwy 1 @ Pottery barn)

Q

a

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/4/2024

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/11/2024

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/18/2024

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/25/2024

13



% LIFT STATION #3 (on Sandholt Rd)

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/4/2024

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/11/2024

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/18/2024

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/25/2024

<+ LIFT STATION #4 (Potrero Rd)

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/4/2024

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/11/2024

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/18/2024

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 7/25/2024

< JETTING ACTIVITIES
o Jetted sewer lines btwn MH #32 to-MH #33
o Jetted sewer lines btwn MH #33 to-MH #34

o Total jetted approx. 590 feet

% OTHER MATTERS
o Received California Coastal Commission- Coastal Development Permit
o Finalizing construction grant application for $7.5 Million for upgrades
and repair of sewer system
o Performed Bi-annual inspection of grease traps at
various facilities in and March 2024 and November 2023
o Submitted “no spill” to CIWQS 8-5-2024
o Need to replace manholes on Sandholdt and Jetty Road
o Manhole at Jetty Rd scheduled to be sealed-leaking approx. 3,480 gal/day

% Improvements/CIP/Suggestions
o Video sewer line on causeway next to Whole Enchilada
o Consider options for Elkhorn Bridge Force Main replacement
o Schedule pigging of Station #1 & Station #2 force mains

14



Moss Landing
JULY 2024 JETTING

| !
| \

A 25
MA 291
" Byn 29
_-.i"'j i 280
ID Material Length Street
MH33>MH32 PSM SDR35 8" 255 Soundholt Rd.
MH34>MH33 8" Clay 335 Soundholt Rd.
TOTAL 590

Al 25
{

Downstream
MH

MH32 ML
MH33 ML

8/12/24

Upstream M
MH33 ML
MH34 ML

[15



Z jo | abey Aewwing - 9|qeAI229Y SHUNODIY WdLS:0S:}L $Z0Z/S/8
w
0v'208'/81$ (00°0z$) (Upa1d uadQ JuswAed)S3S JOPIO SONSS UILVM gy
o¥'/28'/81% (lz'8ec'vd) (ipeig uedQ yuswAhed)abieyd Yy31vm  =—
19°'691'Z61% {rz'ces) (¥pa19 uadQ Juswhed)abieyd IDYVYHOENS
G8'8YC'Z61$ (S9'11$) (wpa1g uado Juswhed)ebieyd INITIHIS
junouwny Juswihed uado
oLesSy'vs paynddy uadQ |ejo)
05°09¢'261$ 0LE5Y'v$ ypa1D uadQ juswAed ¥I1VM
Junowy paiddy uado
00°0v$ 234 J4SN JejoL
0'208'281$ 00°0v$ 294 4SN ¥3LVM
ov'/92'/8)$ 000$ 884 4SN INITIYIL
junowy 294 4SN
(00 0¥2%) penddy ysodag jeror
ov'292'/81% (rrocLs) Ipa1Q uadQ HILVYM
¥8/68'/81% (95°601%) abieyd YI1YM
Junouwy paiddy jisodag
00°0$ Aousnbujjag je101
0t°'200'881$ 00°0$ fjeusd Y31vm
0 200'881$ 00°0$ Aeuad 39UVYHOHENS
0v'200'881L$ 00°0$ Ajeusd INMILI4
junotuy Aauanbuijag
T ATAR EALS 96'6£¢°19$ 05°£86°65% abieyo jejol
0v'200'88t$ 62'651$ I 491D 0072082 62'651% 00°0$ abIeyd ANdIND JILVM
11'8Y8' /819 18°Z8¥'€01$ 8zv'L 14921anD  00°206'708'2 812v1'19% 69°6EE'ZPS aBieyd yI1vMm
¥2'59¢'v8% 9¢°0.6'LL$ 8cl 000 00°0$ 9£'0/G'LLS abieyd IDYYHOUNS
88'¥6.'2.$ #6°0LL'9$ (9 142G 00°9¢5°1 6r'ces G¥'2,0'9% ab1eyd INNFYIL
|elol sig uopdwnsuon aberanp winwiuip abieyo
¥6'£89'99%
aouejeg
0} pajuwin

¥2ozae/L ybnowyl $20z/1L/. ‘woid
Alewiwing - a|(eAIad9Yy SIUNOIIY

12141810 S3DIAYIS ALINNINNOD FTTIAOYLSVYO



Z Jo z abed Alewwing - 8|qeA1829Yy SJUNOIVY INd 1505 ) e«om.ﬁﬁl
$9°0¢ _‘.oww .oouejeg m:_wo_o
(60'59%) HO-9JUM €301
9°0€1'09% (00°02%) 894 J3PIO 90IBS HILVYM
¥9°051'09% (60°6¥%) abreyd YI1IVM
junouwy HO-93LM
00°08L$ 994 19pJQ 992IAIBSG |e10)
€1°661'09% 00081$ 294 J3pIO JDIIBS YILYM
Junoury 394 JopIQ 99IMISS
v ocLs punjay [ejol
£2°610'09% v ocL$ ypa1d usdo YI1YM
Junouwy punjoy
1°685% |esianay juafed |ejol
62'588'66% 1Z°062% abieyd ¥ILVYM
Z0°'565'65% 18'¥62$ abieyo INMFAL
junoiuy [eSIoAay JuswiAed
(sz°205'8Z19) juawied |ejoL
G1°00£'65% (og012%) 884 JapiQ 821G HI1VYM
LG'01G'65% (06'9z6'c$) ypard usdo HIIVM
Ly LE1'€9% (00°02$) 294 4SN ¥ILYM
L 26P'€9% (ov'2.$) aBieyd ANJIND YILVYM
18'625'¢9$ (2Z'0¥9'501%) abreyd Y31V
80°0/1'691% (Ko e 4K Y] abreyd 3DYVYHOUNS
65£9'181% (ze1e19) ypa1d uado AN
96'G9/'181% (PP LP0'9%) abreyd INNFIS
JunoLwy juawhed.
(oL°esv'p3) juswAed uadQ |ejoL

!



_ 2] ®) . o«.&
\> O o » ¥ )N
W Py & ) W \%

7 o N & > o & &

| s ? 3 i e 3 i

| | - 00°0%

_ 00°000°0L8

- 00°000°02%
- 00°000°0€$

m - 00°000°0v$

_ - 00°000°0S$

- 00°000°09$ |

|

Ov'EZELZLS  $60LL9S  FEESELS HEGIBTS  Lb60Y0Z$ LECOSQLS  €ET9K'SZS  /986/9v¢  SIeIOf
unr
Aew
idy
Jepyy
qo4
uepr
29
AON
190
dos
bny

9r'€2eLCLS P60LL9S PEEGELS £'698°2% lV'60r'02% LEE€0EBLS £ezer'ces 19°86/°8r$ mnr

s|ejoj aulplIH syled JuswiuIdA0Y  Jelsnpul  [eldsewiwo) juswiuedy Apweq ajbuls

¥202-£20Z uoneayisseld Ag anuaray Jojepm [enuuy

18



. unrm
o
. Aewm N
_ v/.v
dym 2
o
Jeym _ ?
0
o 000002
uerm | .
= 000007 |
Jedno

® I 000°009
AOND _

N ———t + 000‘008
oo | &| -3 000°000°L |
doSh | memm——du - 000°002Z°L
bny®m |
nrm i

05.°€18°C 9€5°) 069 6€ 64 /. 0¥b €9/ o XA ,£8'GzH £6G'€80°L  s/ejoy
unp
Aey
1dy
Jep
qo4
uer
28Qg
AON
90
das
6ny

0S/°€18°C 9€G°L 069 ‘6€ 65 L/ 0¥ €9/ Sre'zey 1£8°GZY £66€80°s nr

sjejoy auljell4 Syied  JUBWILIDAOS [elysnpu]  [ejosowiwo) juswuedy Ajpweq 9jbuls

¥202-£20Z uoneayisseln Ag abesn sajeM [enuuy

|3

————



01} jo | abed

%L '20L L1¥19'101 80°SEL'SLZ'Y ST LVELLE'Y
%25 2l 85912'2E1 00ZL'66S 85 OVE'LLO
%000} ¥0°0 96'SS¥'8LL  00°95¥'8LL
%00 ¥0°005- 0005 000
%6LZH1 £8'G6€'9 ¥0°000'05 18'G6€'95
%9.'86 56'98€'Z- 0000026}  SO'€L9'68L
%00 008914 '€- 00'89L'E 000
%9€'G/1 0,°G/8'LEL 96'666'V.L  99'G/8'90€
%G/ 66 vz vee- YOvLE'EE 08'6.0'c6
%¥6'8Z1 £€°/68'29 96'€GE'/1Z  62'152'082
%pyES1 VG LEV'ES 96'666'66 Ly LEV'ESL
%E6'991 S1'G€0'6 00005l S1'6€5'2Z
%000} 000 00°009'€€E 00°009'€E
%9001} L9°vTy 00'+52'0L 19'819'0L
%ZL 6 €£1°/10'86- 26'/5€'999'L  6.0VE'89S'L
%S0 LLL 19'590'8€ 96'66V'V¥E  £9'G9S5'Z8E
%Z'EY 96'29G- 96'666 00°ZEY
%000} 000 00°9€€'9 00°9€€'9
%bEBLL 1Z90'vLL 00'000'006  2Z2'%90'V.0'L
%b0'Z 96'6.0°0LE-  96'LZS'9LE  00°Z¥H'9
%66 66 Ve 00°000'€€E 61'166'Z€
%L2°001 90°€0S ¥0°000'S9 01'€05'S9
%99'82 05°20%'12- 00°000°0€ 05'266'8
%ELZIL S¥'G¥S'0€ 00°000'0¥Z  S¥'S¥S'0LZ
%8¥ 86 £0°1L0G- 91°9¥8'z€E €1'SPE'ZE
%S6 101 50'/SS 80'9¥5'8Z €1'€01'62
%6Z'8. ¥0'092- ¥0°005'€ 000v2'2
%EE LS 00821~ 00°00€ 00Z.1
%099 ¥0'0LL- 0005 00°0€€
%E8'86 96°1G1- 96'666'C} 00'8¥8'Z1
%89'991 S1°094'04 00'L£2'Gl G1'/6€'SC
%90°2Z1 09862 00059 ¥9'862'8
%G8'96 80°/G9'GL- 00°000'29€'L  Z6'ZHE'OVE'L
Jobpng JO %, JobPNg JOAD §  Jebpnd bz unr - £2, Inf

¥zoz aunr ybnouayy gzoz Aine
|enjoy "sA }9b6png sso R }1j0.d

o
ol

awoou| |ejo] —

ANNIATY (Buipue] ssoy) Jamag |ejo)
Jueio Buluue|d SAIIUNWWOY |EWS JOJEA UBD|D
€ 9UOZ JOMAG-aNUBAY "ISIIN
pauleq }salau| ¢ sU0Z
$994 uonejues MmLIN
€ 9UOZ S994 UOIIAUUOY) IOMIS
%02Z-soxe] Auadoid walojep py
ANNIATY (Buipue ssojy) 1amag
L0LvL. died "GO ' SHON S93} Jasn
ANN3ATY (Orod OHOW) Z INOZ [el0L
%0 1-soxe] Apadold walojep py
paule }salsju] Z suoz
LOLE L# SIYBI J19911G-100.18-00edg UadO
LOLS.# Jomag g uledq WI0)S S99} 1as
3INN3IA3Y (Orod OYOW) 2 INOZ
anuaAay (ajj1noa)se)) | auoz [ejo]
pauJed }saidju|
anuaAay "9SIN
$994 UOIJOBUUOY) JOMBG
%,0.-soxe] Auadold walojep py
ub|g peaylaAaQ-juels) suesen
LOES L# SIYBI 10918 sa9y Josn
LOES L# ulelq wiolg sa9y 1asn
anuaaay (3ljlrodise)) | auoz
ues9 v| doid AMYI ¥MA
pauJed JualujsaAul-}salalu] JOJBM
ANUIAJY "SI |BIO]
J9}Q - @NUBAIY "ISIN
sabieyn ao4 du)
sabieyn 4SN
sabieys j0auu029y
anuaAay "oOSIN
anuaAay mojpjoeg
uolje|ejsu] 9dIAI9S MaN
991A198 JueupAH Aiesjodwa )
sajesg J9)ep\ palajoN
awoou|

rav A03 vdO ONION3d 9suadx3/awoou| Ateuipio

siseq [enidoy

JouISIQ S991AI3S AJlunwiwo? djjIn043se)

vZ/SL/80
AWV ZL:HL



0l jo z abed

%.0°€8 001 LG- ¥0'000°8€€ 00'062'08¢
%GS5 LE v6'Ch.'8- Z6'666°ClL 86'952'G
%LE6 L£°€90°6- 96'666'6 G9'9€6
%1080} 1€°0¢¢ 96'666'€ €€'02EY
%G8'€6 98'89/- 76'66v'CL 90'LELLL
%6296 66°0.¢- 96'666'6 16'829'6
%60°v8 18°/6¢- 96'667'C 602012
%8G 96 CC ¢8S- 26'66691 0421191
%61°68 £6'9€0'L- 96'666'9 £0°€96°G
%SG 0L LLvSY 96'666'6 L9YSY'0L
%00 ¥0'00G€- ¥0'005'€E 000
%0°0 00°000°¢- 00°000'€ 000
%00 ¥0°005- ¥0°00S 000
%16°€01 2L ¥9.'9 26'666'CLL ¥9'¥92'6.1
%LL€9 ShyLg'L- ¥0°000°G 65°G8L'E
%9¢ 0v 89°68¢€'¢- 96'666'C 8Z°019°L
%S 0€C ¥€'G0E'L 96'666 0€'50€'C
%LV 17256~ 96'666 S9'¢y
%cCl L8¢C 6EVGL'E ¥0'000'C EY'¥SL'S
%6E vl 06'0S6'L ¥0°000°8 ¥6'056'6
%€0'94 ¥8'8GE'€- 96'666'€ ¢L'iv9
%6G°50L lLEVIT'8 96'666'LVL EEV.2'951
%8569 29'2vZ'8- 96'660'L2 v€°268'8L
%8¥°'6. 9.°010¢C ¥0'008'6 82°68.'.
%LVl 8¢ /G8- 96'666 89°¢rl
%019 96'650'¢- 96'661'8 00'0v¥'S
%1816 ¥0'G9- ¥0°008 00'seL
%S2'601 ¥5'¢6 96'666 06'260°L
%C8°G8 0L°€8¢- ¥0°000°C veE9LL'L
%C9'8¢E LZ¥8'L- 00°000'€ £L°8G1'L
%8¢'8. WA YA 96’666 18'¢81

"Jbpng 40 %,

uwmvsm_ FIEYY XS «mmu:m yz unr - ¢Z. Inr

¥zoz aunp ybnouys gzoz AIne
|enjoy “SA }9bpng sso R Jjoid

JouISIqg S99IAI8S AJUuNwWWo) dj[IA04ISe)

121

asuadx3 uonedaidag

asuadxg saul Jajep |eloL
uley/dieday - saul J9lepp
saljddng - saul Jo)ep

asuadx3 saul Jajepp

osuadx3 jueipAH |ejoL
euajuieiy Jieday - JueipAH
sol|ddng - jJueipAH

asuadxz juelpAH

asuadx3 J919|N |elOL
aoueuajuiey/ieday - 13180
sal|ddng - 1919\

asuadx3 1910\

asuadx3g aAJep |e}o|
2oueuajuiey/lieday - aAleA
salddng - aajeA

asuadx3 aA|ep

osuadx3 salg ||9M [eloL
asuadx3 19yYjQ - S91S I1oM
ulep/iieday Jauayog/auo|yn
asueuajuiey/ieday Buipjing
aosuejule/dieday yue |
aoueudluie/siieday siojelauan)
S3)IS |1oM 9 sdwnd Joj sanddng
asueudjulep/dieday dung
30 Od-sainn

asuadx3 says |IaM

asuadx3g suonesadQ |eidudn) RO
$934 wayshg Jjajep
Bunsa] mopjoeqg
saa4 Bunsa] Jojep
suoneayua) siojeradp
sauoyd Je|nj|9n
swuiojlun siojeradQ
S|00] |[ewS
so1ddng doys

asuadx3g suonesadQ [e1auas)

asuadx3 uonesadp 131eM
asuadxy

siseg |enJaay

v2/S1/80
Wv it



01 jo ¢ abed

%Ly L6 5222 ¥0°009'Z 619/€'C
%9€'901) 19'LEL 96'66V'L €9'1L€2'Z)
%E’9 vy 96’ L- ¥0°000'8 09°€0S
%682 §1'S9Z' - 00°000'9 SZTYEL'L
%89°20} 9’62 ¥0'001'} 0562}t
%9E V01 ££°99G 96'666'Z} 62'995'€)
%SZ' LG 96'v.16- ¥0°000'Z 80'S20‘L
%/8'G9 60°€/2- ¥0°008 $6°92S
%00 ¥0°000'C- ¥0°000'Z 000
%L¥'Sh $9°096'2- ¥0°00G'€ 6€'6EG
%S84/ €0'Eb- ¥0°000'Z L0°2SS'}
%Z'19 86'618- 96'66V'Z 86°6.9'L
%96 66 5'6- 26'608'92 8€£'008'92
%9666 ¥5'6- 26'608'92 8€°008'9Z
%LE'Z6 66'S0V- 26'182'S £6'G/8'y
%GL'ES zLzel 00282 88'6¥ |
%8601 Z6'Le 96'66€ 88'LEY
%S9 76 vE YL 0000L'C 99'656'Z
%S L6 SYL9L- 96'668'L 1G'8€L'L
%6. 6 26°226- 96'v2L'L) ¥0208'9}
%9/ 00} 80°LY ¥0°002'9 Iz A)
%000} 11922 000 11922
%/9°99 00°G.- 00'62Z 00°0S}
%00 96'666- 96'666 000
%Z8'86 FAYAS 96'662'0} §1'81'0)
%L 68 £2°€9/'v/- 21°80S'20L  6V'SpL'ZE9
%S0°001 10'GS 96'80V' VLl L6'EIVTLL
%S0 00} L0'SS 96'80V' VLl L6'EIV'VLL
%E 89 2 985'2- ¥0°000'8 08'€9¥'S
%00 00°005'L- 00'005'l 000

%9v 621 92'685 ¥0°000'2 0£'685'Z
%88'€9 05°529'L- 00°00S'¥ 05'v.8'2
— = =

jabpng Jo %, 3ebpngJaaQ $  39bpng  pz unr- £z, Inp

vz0z aunr ybnouyy gzoz AIne

|enjoy "SA jJabpng sso- B j1j0id

JouysIg S99IAIaS AJlUnWWoY d|IAoLISe)

aoueuajule/siieday aolyo
sang diysisaquiay
sJ10j0a1g/Buluies] JJeujwag
yeyg/buluiel | /sjeujuag
s394 Jueg
sapeibdn/swesbouid 193ndwo
saxe] Auadoid
291A19g BuLiojuoy wiepy
yoeannQ Ajunwwon
asuadx3g 32140 "ISIN
juawdinb3 ao1yo
salddng 22140

asuadx3 ao140

asuadx3 asuensuj {B}o]
|eJauan g oJny - IsueINSU|

asuadx3 aosueinsuj

asuadx3 sanynn [ejoL
19JepALIN - SIHIBN
[esodsiq - samIN
sauoydala] - samnn
3% Od-sanllN

asuadx3g sann

asuadxz Buljjg pjoL
asuadx3 Buig J9y3j0
sjuawisnipy-s 4O S3IM
21eqay j9jio]
sa||ddng Buljg
abeysod

asuadx3 Buijjig

asuadx3 aApessiuIWpPY J9)BAA
asuadx3 uonesadQ 19)eM [BJO).

uoljesadQ Jajep| asuadx3 |joshed [ejoL
sabepp Jojep siojesadQ

uonjesadQ Jajepn asuadxy [joihed

asuadx3 ajiqowoiny |BJo |
asuadx3g ojny Jay10
aoueuajuiey/iieday - oyny
[EUE]

asuadx3 ajiqowolny

122

siseq |enJooy

vZ/S1/80
AV it



0l jo  abed

asuadx3 ajigowolny
asuadx3 uoperoaidag Jamag
asuadx3 uonejs Y |eyo)

%L1 v0' 788 7L~ #0°000'G9 00'9L1'0G
%/ 66 80'9¢- 000L2'Cl 26'€/9'l
%00 96'666- 96'666 000
%.S'1L04 008 000LS 00’815
%9€'G6 V2SS 00°00Z'L 6T YLl
%96°EL | G1'869 ¥0°000'S 61'869'S
%22 S0L vy eLe 00°000'9 reLe'9
%E Tl #8'199'L- 21°000'9 8Z'3¢E'y
%82°G01 LZ'9v ¥0°008 GZ'9r8
%952/ 6L2¢1- ¥0'00S 68'29¢
%Y. 99 91°699- 70'000'2 88'vEL’l
%.8'8€ 86°91L6- 00'00S'} 20'€8s
%6001 8z'LL 00'002°} AN A
%E9 ¥6 71'256'/2- 96'188'025  78'626'C6Y
%S8°16 82'208'G- 9666112 89'/6€'G9
%6196 LS L- ¥0°000'05 L6'G¥2'8Y
%GE"96 06°'¢L2- 00°006'Z oL'9ze'L
%0°'S8 00'S0v- 000022 00662
%96'S 29'28G'9- 96'666'9 Ve LY
%Ve 081 eelT'e 96'666'C SR AN
%60°001 8y ELE 00'G98'LYE  8¥'8.1'CYE
%0°001 6€°0- ¥0'128'61 59'0/8'61
%00 ¥0°0G- ¥0°0S 000
%LY'.6 1t 066- v0'0PL'L2 15'68L°'L2
%2l 76 vz 9¢- 96'G19 2l6.5
%00 96'0~ 960 000

%68 66 86'0¢- 00°008'82 20'69.'82
%2610l 69'696'L 96'/ZZ'00L  §8'/61'201
%2520l 69°2Yl 00°0£9'G 69Z18'S
%1386 GE'1L66- 00'¥25'8 G9'2€S'v8
%E8'66 19'8¢L- 00'59¢'6. €£'922'6.
%85 €9 68'¥2L' LT 0Z'000'8S 1£6/8'9¢
%910 91'666'2- 00°000°¢ ¥8'v

=== S o

Jobpng jo %, 19bpng J18A0 § Jabpng pz unr- ¢z, Inp

asueuajuie/aieday Buipjing
$10)BI3UIN) 10} 394 HULdd
uonels dwnd Jo} saiddng
ooueUdUIR/Jleday UOlRIS YIT
3 '? Od sIN Ilameg

asuadx3g uonejs Y
uadx3 uonesad(Q |eidudY) |BIO]

sauold Jejn|jan
suonediIan sioyesado
swJaojiun s1ojesadp
juawdinb3g @ s|00] jlews
s9i|ddng doysg

uadxg uonjesadQ jelousn

23

)

asuadxg uonesadp | suoz
asuadx3 aApelssiuIWpY J3JBAA [BJOL

asuadx3 Bunnsuo) |ejol

$994 Bun|nsuo) 1ayj0
s994 Bunpunosoy

sa24 10}934iq

s994 Bunoauibug
s094 |eban

asuadxg Buyjnsuosn
sasuadx3] |joihed |ejo

asuadx3 |eaipay Juswihojdw] }sod Jajep-g3d0

sjyouag aakojdwg painay

asuadx3 void

asuelnsuj 917 aakojdwg

J19hojdwg Tyn 9suadx3 uoisuad

l104Aed Apjaapy-1g suonnguiuo) J1afojdwg syyauag Juaalldy SH3d
sjijouag yjeaH 9akojdwg

dwoy SIaION - a2URINSU|

aAneJis|ulwpy - sabepp

Jabeuepy |eJauag - sabep

sasuadx3 |joshed
asuadx3 a914o |e1oL

asueuajuiely Buipjing

20z aunp ybnouyy £zoz AInr

|en}oy “SA jJabpng sso B jjoid

JoL3SIqQ S92IA19G AJUunwiwio) 3|jInodise)

siseq |enJoay
ve/SLig0
WY 2ZLLL



0l jo G abed

%LZ L0 68661 96'0/1'91 G8'99¢'9l
%4610l GZ'ZES') 00'556'/L Gz /8V'6L
%2520\ 86°011 000L¥'Y 86'02S'Y
%S56'86 02'969- 96'L¥¥'99 9/°162'69
%6566 80°25Z- 00'822'19 26'S.¥'19
%8'GS L¥'096'v |- 96'6¥8'CE 61'683'8L
%00 ¥0°005- ¥0'00S 00°0
%00 ¥0'000'2- ¥0°000'2 00°0

%S vl GZ's0g') 00°000'6 GZ'S0E'0L
%29 9/'029'G 00°000'9 vT'Tle
%92 L1 £Y'682'¢- 96'666'¢€ €501
%E9 06 vz 96- 00009 9/°¢vS
%96°18 6106 ¥0°005 G8'60Y
%8€°'96 09°04- 00°0S6'} 0v'6.8°L
%¥€ 89 G¥'992' I 96'666'C 1G'€€L'2
%86 1 £€£°09¢' |- 96'665'L £9°682
%9t LY 10°88.- 00°005°L €612
%L bY 15912 }- 96'661C 6£°€86
%Eg'G8 ¥1'696'LE- 800V /LT ¥E'SEV'S8I
%E 85 69'8SV- ¥0'001 '} GE'1LH9
%€'8S 69'851- #0°004') Ge'L¥9
%% 88 82'/10'¢- 26'666'G2 ¥9'286'22
%E6' L6 ze'210'c- 96'666'17C v9'286'C2
%00 96°666- 96°666 000
%ZE" L 95°/92'6- 96'666'6 ov'zel
%2E' L 96°/92'6- 96'666'6 ov'eel
%/ 86 0v'Z9L - 96'760'68 95°7£6'/8
%/, 86 ov'29l'L- 96'¥60'68 95°2¢6'/8
% L. G818V L- ¥0°005'9 6.'810'S
%SE'Z2 69%9L°L- 00005’} LE'GEE
%6294 02'62¢ ¥0°000'Z v1'62€'2
%L5'8L 98'2¥9- 00°000'€ ¥1'/GE'C
3abpng jo %, 3abpng 13A0 ¢ 3abpng yz unr- ¢z, Inp

¥zoz aunr ybnoayy gzoz Ainr

[en)oy "SA }Jobpng sso B jljoid

JoL3SI S99IAI9S AJUNWWOY d|JIA0IISB)

asuadx3 yIol4
s}jauag yjjesH aakojdwg
dwos SI9)IOM - doueINSU|
ulwpy | auoz sabep
IND | auoz sabepp
ulwpy asuadx3 |jolhed
asuadx3 as1yQ IeJo1
pung Jamag-sjO 914 3930 peg
aoueuduiely Buipjing
san( diysJaquap
s10j0341q/Buluies jieujwag
yejg/Buluiels ] /sieujwag
saxe] Auadoid
291A198 Bunojuop waely
aoueuajuiey/iieday asyoO
speibdnjwelsboid 193ndwon
asuadx3 a2y "ISIIN
juawdinb3g 932140
saijddng asiy0
asuadxy ao140
asuadx3 oAljeASIUIWPY | SUOZ
osuadx3 uonesadQ | ouoz |ejo|
asuadx3 ajiqowoiny uledp wWiols |ejol
$)9N.] Jo} |aNn4 uleip WI0}g
asuadx3 ajiqowolny ulelp u.o}g
asuadx3 ujelp ulo}§ |BJO|
aoueudjuiey/ieday-ulelp wiolg
soljddng-urelp w.olg
asuadx3 ulesp wlolg
asuadx3 aui] Jamas |ejol
osueuajuiey/lieday-aui] Jamas
asuadx3 auj] Jamag
uoneladQ-asuadxy |jolhed |ejo]
sabepp | auoz siojeiadQ
uonesadQ-asuadx3y |joihed
asuadx3 sjiqowolny [ejol
asuadx3 oyny JayjQ
asueudjuiey/ieday -ony
s)ondj Joj |an4

I24

siseq |enJaoy

¥2iS1/80
WV ZibL



0l jo g abed

%1566 VL Ove- 96'95/'8Y  GZ'915'8Y
%vE LLL 00'0%5 96'95/ 96'962' 1
%0°0 96'666- 96'666 000
%18'/9 18 E79- ¥0'000'2 £2'95¢'L
%Z6'L0L  90'€98 00'000'GY 90'€98'Gl
%82 €8 66 765'G9- 80°/¥€'26€  60'25.'9Z€E
%0°0 ¥0'000'Z- ¥0'000'Z 000

%0°0 ¥0'00G- ¥0°005 000

%00 96'666- 96'666 000

%00 ¥0'005- 0'005 000
%9L"Lb- 69°0/9'GE- ¥0'6€2' V2 59 LEY'LL-
%9/ .- 69'025'GE- ¥0°000'0Z §9'025'GL-
%EE €8 00'004- 00°009 00'00S
%0°00L ¥0°0 96'885'C 00'685'€
%00 005 005 000
%9266 vZ GG L- 00'000'LZ 9/ ¥¥8'0Z
%92 66 vZ'GS1- 00°000'}Z 9/ ¥¥8'02
%1.'89 59'8/0'CL- 96'66.4' LY 1€'12.'82
%0'G8 00'GLE- 00'001'Z 00'G8.'L
%8629 9/°G1G'8- 26'666'CZ 9L ¥8Y' vl
%9'86 0164 00°002'G 0€'029'S
%y vl Z9°€EL'S- 00'000'9 8€'998
%LE6LL £1'696 ¥0'000'G LV'G96'G
%9/ 98 9t'985- 91 '0EV'y 0L'EV8'E
%P6'G0L  ¥5'9 VO'0LL 85941
%G6¥0L  S8'GL +0°02¢€ 68'GEE
%2y 98 ve'zLe- ¥0'00€°C 0'/86'L
%95 28 15 962- ¥0°002°} £5'€0V'L
%2Z€ 001 95'958 26'/20'69Z2  8v'¥88'S9Z
%E6'€6 9l '62- 0008 ¥8°0S
%0°00L 60°0- ¥0'GSY'Gl S6'¥SY'Gl
%00 96°0- 96'0 000
%8666 201 00°08€'22 £6'G/€'2Z
1ebpng Jo 9, 18bpng A0 $  18bpng  pz unr- gz, Ine

25

asuadx3g julep ® uonesadQ JaYjQ | dUOZ |ejo]
asuadx3 uone1saidaq | 2uoz A0D
92UBUIJUIBIN SSOJD JOAQ UBLISApad
ubig peayIanQ ajjlrolise)
1s0D Annn wbi yeans
asuadx3 juiely @ uonesadQ JaYyjQ | duoz
asuadx3 aAnesSIUIWPY | 2UOZ |BJOL
asuadx3 Huninsuo) ulelp wWI0S [}
4 Buiginsuo) Jayjp ulelp WIOIS
$934 J9auIbug ueipwliolg
s394 |eba ulesp wiolg
asuadx3 Buninsuon ulelp w.olg
asuadx3 ‘}1jua) 'g ueoT ‘puog |ejo]
JUSLWIISAAU| SSOTJUIBD) pazZijeaiuf
994 UlWPY JUBWISSISSY 7| VYSD Uep|iim

asuadx3 uoneziHowy gsdd-vi VSI
S391AJ3g/osuadx] JusWISaAU|

asuadx3 ‘o9 p ueo] ‘puog
asuadxg asueinsuj |ejo]
|eJauan) R ojny -aduelInsu)
asuadx3 aosueinsuj
asuadx3 Bup|nsuon 1amag |ejo|
sa94 Jojoaliqg
saa4 Bupinsuog 1930 J1amag
$934 Bunpunoooy Jamag
S$934 Joauibu Jamasg
s$99 |[eba] Jomag
asuadx3 Bupjnsuos Jomog
asuadx3 sapin 1ejo
J9J1epALIN - s8N
[esodsiq - saiNn
sauoydaja] - sainn
J289d - sellinN
asuadx3 sannn
ulwpy asuadx3 jjolhed |e3o|
asueunsu| 911 99kojdwig
1509 jJudwhojdwy }sod 1amasg-g93d0
19fojdw31vn asuadxy uoisuad
Ajeamig |joiAed suonnqLiuos safojdwg syauag juswalney S¥Id

vzoz aunr ybnousys £zoz AInp

[enjoy "sA }obpng sso @ J04d siseg [eniooy

¥2/S1/80

JouIsIg S99IAI9S AJlunwiwion) djjiAnod}se) WY ZLLL



01 jo L abed

ANV gees L 00°009 29'9zy
%L 16 Lt 08 ¥0'005'€ LS BLY'E
%SZ ¥ 19°€6€ 2- 96'661'C S€'901
%1€ /8 ZeviL'e 91'6/2'2L ¥8°001'€9
%0°0 00°006'L- 00°005'} 00°0

%00 96'666- 96'666 000

%00 ¥0°005- ¥0°00G 000

%G8 0 $6'286'L- ¥0'000'Z 6021
%G8'0 $6'286'L- ¥0°000'2 60°L1

%21 66 L0'5Z2- 00'GZV'SZ 66'661'GZ
%266 L0'GZz- 00'GZY'SZ 66'661'GZ
%62 S 59'/62'¢ 00°002' ¥ 5£'206'L
%18°0€ 16'GhE- ¥0°00G L0'VSL
%E9 62 02'662°L- 96'661'C 9,0V
%96'€8 8 Z61L- 00°002°} 25°200'L
%8Z'90L  96'86L'} ¥0°001'61 00'662'0Z
%6808 L1 6EY'E- 00'000'81 £2'095'71
%00 ¥0'00G- ¥0'00G 000

%Ll bl 98'858- 96'666 0L 'Lyl

%9 LG 10021z ¥0°000'S £€0'088'C
%PE00L  ¥L'6E 96'661' L1 0L'BES' LI
%L ¥S 06'/26- 80'050°Z 812zl
%E. 96 IVs- 96'64Z 6L 11C
%ES'GY LO'6LL- ¥0'0GE £'0€Z
%LL V8 589~ 00°0S¥ 9v'18¢
%LE 0E 91'8ve- ¥0°00S 88’15}
%ZE €T Zv'ege- 0°005 29911
%0°001 0'0- ¥0°000'0LL  00°000°0}1
%0001 ¥0°0- ¥0°000°0L}  00°000'04}
= —

19bpng Jo %, 18b6png A0 §  38bpng  pz unr- €z, Inp

pzoz aunp ybnouys ¢zoz Aine

|enjoy "sA jJobpng sso B j1j0id

JouISIg S99IAI9S AJlUNwWWo) 3fjIA0LIse))

0
sal|ddng 2310 N
sang diystoquiapy —
sJojoalig/Bulules | jJeuiwag
asuadx3 3o
asuadx3 aAljessiuILIpY Z BUOZ
asuadx3g uonesadp z a2uoz |ejo
asuadx3 uleiq wi0}s |Bjo]
osueuajuiey/dieday-ulelp uLIO}S
sa|ddng-ulelp wi0lg
asuadx3 ulelqg wiols
asuadx3 aul Jamag |ejo)
doueuauiey/ieday-aul] Jamag
asuadx3 aul] Jamasg
suonesadp-asuadx3 jjoihed |jo)
sabepp z suoz 1ojesadQ
suonelsadp-asuadxy |joJAed
asuadx3 ajiqowolny |ejo]
asuadx3 ojny J8yj10
asueudjuie/lieday-ony
S$)onu] 1o} [an4
asuadx3 ajiqowoiny
asuadx3 uoneidsaidag Jomag
asuadx3 uonels Y7 [ejol
asueuajuiepieday Buipjing
uone}s dwnd Joj saijddng
aoueualuie/ieday uoneis Yi
sann
asuadx3 uoneis Y
asuadx3 uonelsadQ |essuan |Bjo|
sauoyd Je|njjan
suofjealyian siojesadgo
swojiun siojeradQ
juswdinb3 % sjoo] |jewsg
saljddng doyg
asuadx3 uoneladQ jeisuan
asuadx3 uojjeladQ z auoz
asuadx3 [euoijeasaay | auoz |ejol
1PISIA Yied 1 93y "0D 'ON
asuadx3 [euoljealddy | auoz

siseg |enJaoy
¥2/S1LI80
Wy 2L Ll



01 jo g abed

%1028 22€19'L2- 96'891°0Z}  ¥.'655'86
%E6 66 Zr'v- ¥0°'096'S 29°'G56'G
%E6 66 v ¥0°096'G 29'G56'G
%91 €8 26'622- 88'¥9¢'L 96 vEL'L
%EE €. 99'9- 96'6€ 0£°€E
%E0'96 16°¢- 96'66 6656
%88'06 86°95- 9629 86°/95
%G6'2. L€'Z9L- 00009 69'LEY
%952 98'62.'2L- 009122 81°0EY'6
%6666 ¥0°0- ¥0'€€S 00°€€S
%0°'G8 00°06- 00009 00015
%8Z'€9l 11°2€9 96'666 €1°2€9'1
%22 6. vz LZh- ¥0'220'2 08'509'L
%00 96'666'¢- 96'666'€ 000

%8/ '9¢ 6E158'8- ¥0°000' 1 G9'87L'S
%/8'86 95°898- 26°'€/8'9L 9€'500'9.
%¥Z 98 6€ 15/ 00°09%'G 19802y
%6666 0€°0- 009L¥'y 0LSLY'Y
%20'Z6 JANAL v0OvL 18821
%00 96'0- 96°0 000
%6666 18'0- 96'€6€'9 60°'€6€'9
%8101 ¥9° 0L 96'662'22 09°0L2'22
%25'201 LLLE 0009Z'1 L2 L62')
%LG /6 Z8'6.1- 009926} 81'98.'8l
%29'66 0v'99- 002€9'2) 09°0.S'/1
%99'EY 9v'08.'/- 80°018'EL 29'620'9
%6 L1 Ze 191 ¥0'000'Z 21'8€2
%9089 0066 96'60€ 96012
%¥5'85 v6'28- 0002 0bLLL
%yl 9L z8'291- 96'669 AR
%G5S 8€E ¥6'82Z'L- $0°000'C 0L'LLL
%00 96'666- 96'666 000

%Z8 LT 26°09¢- 0005 Z1'6EL
%65CL oL LEV- 000G 629
39DPNg JO % 190pNg JOAQ $ _ 19BpNG bz unr - £2, INf

>~
.l

asuadx3 uiep 3 JodQ J9yjQ g 3uoz —
asuadx3 aAnesSIUjWPY Z SUOZ |BJOL

asuadx3 aoueinsu| |[ejJo]
|eJauan g 0Jny-adueInsuy|
asuadx3g asueinsuj
asuadx3 sapnnn |ejoL
191 pALIN-SBIIININ
[esodsig-sapin
auoydaja] -saipn
3°Od-senlinN
asuadx3 sann
asuadx3 Bunjnsuo) |ejo|
asuadx3y uopeziuowy uonexauuy ofo oJoN
$994 J0}934IQ
s934 |[efa] Jomag
s394 Bunpunoooy 1amag
$994 Jaauibug Jomog
s394 Buynsuo)
asuadxg Bun|nsuon
uoljensiuiwpy asuadxy jjoihed B30
asuadx3g void
s}ijouag jJuswWalay 1sod 12410
aouelnsu| 9} aakojdwg
J19hojdw3 yn asuadx3 uoisuad
lloJhed Apj@amig uoningquiuo) takojdw3 sjyauag juswainey Sy3d
sjyjouag YjjesH aakojdwig
dwoy sI1a}JOAL BoUBRINSU|
ulwpy gz auoz-sabepp
IO Z duoz -sabepp
uopessiuiwpy asuadxy |joihed
asuadx3 92140 |elo]
yejg/Buiuies] jsieujwag
soxe] Auadolid
s991A19g Bulojiuop wuely
adueudjuie/dieday aso
apeibdnjweibold se3ndwon
9oueuajuiey Buipjing
asuadxg 32140 2SN
juawdinb3 asiyo

¥202Z aunr ybnoay £zoz Ainp
Jenjoy "sA JobBpng sso 9 1304d

Jou3sIg S99IAI9g AJlunwiwo? djjIAcLISe)

siseq |enJooy
ei/SLigo
WY ZLLL



01 jo g abeg

%¥G'8G v6'28- ¥0°00Z 0b'ZLL
%61 1L 69°651- 96'669 LZ0vS
%.8'8E 99'222'L- ¥0'000'2 8¢ /1L
%z 8l z8'80v- ¥0°00S zz'16
%89 0¥ ¥9'962- ¥0°005 0v'€02
%¥0 9y 8L €ze- 00'009 22912
%z 88 0£'840'LL- Y0'GLL'Y6 1'960'€8
%20 /8286’9 96'666'9 60°/1
%¥Z 0 18'286'9- 96'666'9 60°L1
%LL00L  0L'6Z 00'SZV'SZ 0L ¥S¥'SZ
%LL'00L  OL'6Z 00'6Zv'Ge 0 ¥SP'6Z
%62 S 111622 00'00Z'% £2'206'L
%18'0E 86'Ghe- ¥0'005 90'¥G1
%EY 6Z 6L'65.'L- 96'661'Z LLOVL
%G6'€8 09'Z61- 00'002'L 0¥'200'L
%99'98 00°'708't- 00°000'9€ 00'96}'1€
%I86LL  YEFIR'E 00°005'61 v vLE'ET
TR D 98'858- 96'666 0L'Lbh
%606ZL  OV'ShL'L 00°000'9 ov'Sy'L
%6'E€ZL 08'/86'C ¥0°005'Z1 ¥ 181Gl
%¥Z 95 0}'/68- 80'050'2 862511
%EL 96 LLg- 96'61Z 61142
%98 98 66'Gh- 0'0G€ S0'v0€
%ZL ¥8 1189 00°0S¥ £Z'18¢
%9LLZ 22 v9e- ¥0°005 Z8'SEl
%208l $6'60- ¥0°005 60'06
%8109 £9°G/E'G- 00°005'€l ISVTL'8
%00 ¥0°00G- ¥0'005 000
%00 ¥0°000'G- ¥0°000'S 000
%9150} L'90Z 96'666'€ 1£'902'y
%S6'L6 96'18- 96'666'C 00'816'E
Jobpng JO %, 19bpNg JOAQ § _ 19bpng vz unf - £2, Inf

20z aunr ybnouyy 20z AInr

aoialag Bulojiuopy waee
asueuduie/eday aslyo
apeisbdn/swelbold 193ndwos
asuadx3z 92140 9SIN
juswdinb3 as1yo
sanddng 22140

asuadx3g ao1yo

[28

asuadx3 sAljesSIUILPY € 3UOZ
asuadx3 juiepy 3 uonesadQ ¢ aUOZ J19MIS €101

asuadx3 auj] Jamag |ejol
9oueuajuiey Jieday-au|] Jomasg
asuadx3 aui] Jamag
suopnesadp-asuadxy |joifed |ejo]
¢ auoz sabepp Buipue] ssoy-siojesadp
suonesadQ-asuadxq |jolhed
asuadx3 ajiqowolny |Bjo]
asuadx3 ojny JoY10
aoueuajuiep/lieday
s)}onu] Joj |an4
asuadx3 ajiqowoiny
asuadx3 uoneaideq ¢ auoz (Buipue] sso) Jomag
asuadx3 uonejg YI |ejo
uone}s dwngd Joj saiddng
9oueuduiey/leday uoels Yi
3°9d SallINN Jomag
asuadx3g uoneis Y
asuadx3 uoneladQ |eia3uacs) |e}o |
sauoyd Je|njeo
suonesiua) siojesdo
swuoyiun sioyesadQ
juawdinbz %@ sjoo] |jewg
soljddng doys
asuadx3 uoneladQ |elauag

asuadx3 juiepy 9 uonesadQ ¢ sUOZ JaMag
asuadx3 uie g JadQ JaYJQO Z 2U0Z [BJO)L

abeubig 19918

Jleday peoy

3s09 Annn b Jeang

Sa2|AI9G 9pISInQ-ulely aoedg uadgp

|[en}oy "SA jJabpng sso B j1joid
JoUISIg S99IAI9S AJlUNWiWo) 3[|IA0l Sk

siseq [enJaoy
v2/SLiI80
WY ZL:iL



01 jo 01 abed

%S59°0Z1 11°098°29¢ 96°281°18L°L £L'8v0‘6YLZ
%90°68 00°9%2'992- ZVSYS'YEY'Z  ZL662°89L°T
%95 98 89€8Y'8L- 21'926'2€L  v¥'Tr0'6LlL
%E6 66 Ly b #0'096'G £9'G56'G
%E6'66 s ¥0°096'G £9°GG6'G
%1S'S/ 10'90.'6~ Zl°129'6€ 11°126'6C
%0°'G8 0006~ 00°009 00°01LS
%89'8Z 1€916'7)- 00°000'L2 £9'€20'9
%2¢ 6. ve ey ¥0'£20'C 08'G09'}
%6991 £E'GOL v~ ¥0°000'S LLveES
%EY 061 £6'916'6 #0°000'L L 16'9v6'0Z
%2Z) €8 vE 0€Z- 88°79¢'| ySvEL'L
%81 €8 2Ly 96'6€ vz'ee
%96'G6 Y0~ 96'66 76'S6

%¥8 06 G2 /G- 96 729 L2195
%SG6'¢. €€°291- 00°009 19°1EY
%/.8'86 06°898- 26'€.8'9/ 20'500'9.
%56 16 LTLL- 700Vl 1182
%66 66 0€°0- 00°9LY'y 0LSLY'y
%00 96'0- 96°0 000
%8666 eLL- 96°€6¢€'9 £8'26€'9
%¥Z 98 6€° 162" 00°09%'S 19'80/'t
%¥8'1L01 £9°0LY 96'662'2¢ 650122
%2S'201 zZLLe 00092'} zl162')
%lS'26 1867 00'99Z'61 61°982'81
%2966 699 002£9'/1 19°02G'21
%66 £ 20'v.9'L- 91°002°€L 1°920'9
%00 96666 96'666 000
%6666 050 ¥0°005°€ vS66v'C
%SZ ¥ 09'€6€'C- 96'66%'2 9e'901
%¥6 L1 21921 ¥0°000'2 z18¢C
%568 L ve- ¥0°00Z £6'G/)
j)abpng 4o %, 19bpng JaAQ § }abpng pz unf - ¢z, Inf

129

awoou| AleuipiQ 19N
asuadx3 |ejo]

asuadx3 aA)eRNSIUIWPY € BUOZ [e}O ]

asuadx3g aoueinsuj |ejo]
|eJauan) R ojny-adueinsu|
asuadx3 asueinsuj
asuadxg Bun|nsuoy) Jamag |ejo
s994 Jojoaliqg
s394 Buiynsuog JayjQ Jamag
s334 Buipunosoy Jamag
$994 Joauibug Jomag
s294 |[efa] Jomag
asuadx3 Buynsuos) Jomag
asuadx3 saninn |BjoL
J91epALIN-SRIINN
Jesodsig-sailiin
auoydaja-samun
38Od-saIlN
asuadx3 saminn
uojjesjsiujwpy asuadx3 [|oshed jejol
aouesnsu| aj1 aakojdwy
s}jauag jJuawAhojdwy 3sod J3y1Q
19hojdwig Tyn asuadx3 uoisudd
l10JAed Apjaamig suolnnguiuo) Jakojdwy sjyauag Juswalnoy Sy3d
asuadx3g yold
s}iJouag yjeaH aakodwy
dwon siaJopp-9ouURINSU|
ujwpy ¢ sauoz sabep
IND € auoz sabepp
uonejsiujwpy asuadx3y |joihed
asuadx3 ao140 [ejol
9oueuajuiey Buipjing
sanqg diysiaquap
sJ10}93J1q/Buluie.] /sieulwag
yeig/Bujuiel] jsieuiweg
saxe] Auadoud

$z0z aunr ybnoayy gzoz Ainr
jenjoy "SA ummusm SSO07  }joid

JoujSI S99IAI19S AJUNWWOY 3jIAolISe)

siseg |enJooy

yeiSiLi80
NWvZi:Ll



0l jo | abed

GZIvE'LLE'Y  LEELL'0S G2 OPP'SS 11'682'269°) 8S0VE'L.LY ¥6°€99'/¥8°)
8G°0VE°LL9 000 000 000 8G0vE'LL9 000
00'9G67'8L ) 000 000 000 00°95¥'81L 1 000
18°G6€'9G 000 000 000 L8'G6E'95 000
S0'cL9'681 000 000 000 S0'€L9°'681 000
99'G/8'90¢€ 000 000 000 99'G/8'90¢ 000
08'6.0'c6 000 000 000 000 08'6.0'€6
6C°L52'08¢ LEE€LL'0S 000 000 000 26'/€1'0€2
LV 1EV'eS) 000 000 000 000 LV LEV'ES]
§1°6€5'2Z LE°ELG9L 000 000 000 8271209
00°009'ce 00°009°€€ 000 000 000 000
19'8/9°0L 000 000 000 000 19'829'0.
62.°0v€'895'L 000 LS Y68'EY 000 000 ZT ovy'ves' L
€9'G9G'28¢ 000 8L VSV’ 000 000 G80LL'8lE
oozey 000 000 000 000 oocey
00°9¢€'9 000 000 000 000 00°9¢€'9
22¥90'v20°L 000 000 000 000 L2¥90'vL0'L
00°Cvy'9 000 002Zhy'9 000 000 000
61°/66'CE 000 6.°166'C¢ 000 000 000
0L°€0G'G9 000 000 000 000 01°€05'G9
05°/65'8 000 000 0574658 000 000
S¥'S¥5'0.2 000 000 GY'61S'0Le 000 000
€1 'GYE'CE 000 89°GPG L1 G¥'66.'02 000 000
£L°€01'62 000 89°GYS'LL Gy /GG 000 000
00'ovL'e 000 000 00°0vL'C 000 000
0o0cLL 000 000 00¢/L 000 000
00°0€e 000 000 0o'oce 000 000
0088l 000 000 00'8¥8°ZL 000 000
Gl'L6E'GT 000 000 Gl°/6€'Ge 000 000
¥9'85¢2'8 000 000 ¥9'8G2'8 000 000
z6'zre'ore’l 000 000 Z6ZYEGrE'L 000 000
1ejol Z duoz | duoz | auoz € auoz Z duoz
pung aon 9jlIaolse)  9jjlaonsen  Buipue ssop | 8uoz
pung Ao9  pung Jajep pund Ioamag  pund Jamas

(30

awosu| |ejol

INNIATY (Buipue] ssojy) 1amasg jejo)
Juein Bujuueld SaIUNWWOY) [[EWS JOJEAA UBS[D
pauJeg }salaju| ¢ auozZ
$994 uonejiues MLIN
% 0Z-saxe] Auadold walojep py
3INNIAIY (BuipueT] ssoly) 1amas
L0LY . Mted 'O '® SHOWN S39} Jasy
3aNN3AIY (0roD OYOW) Z INOZ 1301
%0L-soxe] Apadoid walojep py
paule] )saJaju| g auoz
L0.LEL# SIYBIT 19a.18-)901)g-90edg UBQ
L0ZE# Jomag 9 UiRI] WI0)G S8} Jas
INN3AZY (Orod OHOW) 2 INOZ
anuaAay (a||IAn01}SBY) | BUO0Z [BJO |
pau.e] }salaju|
aNUBAY "ISIN
$924 UOI}OdUUOY) JOMIS
°%,02-s9xe| Auadoid walojep py
ub|g peaylaaQ-juels) sueiye)
L0ESL# SIYBIT 19138 S99y JBsN
LOES # ulelq uLlolg $99) J13sn
anuaAdy (a||1Aolise)) | auoz
jueis yi doud WAYI ¥MA
paule] JUaWISaAU|-}SIa)U| JOJeA
9NUIADY "ISI| [eJOL
JaYj0 - 9NUaAdY "ISIN
sabieyn aa4 duj
sabieyd JSN
sabiey9 jo0auuoosay
9NUAAIY "ISIN
anuanay mojpjoeg
uojje|jelsu| adIAIDS M3BN
991A19g juelpAH Aiesodwa |
S9|Beg JOJeAA PRIAJRN

awoou|
asuadx3jewosu)] AieuipiQ

4rv A0O3 vdd ONIAN3d

¥z0z ‘gz sunr ybnoayy ¢zoz ‘I AInp
sse|) Aq sso B jyo0.d

JouISIq S92IA19S AJlUNWIWOY 3|jIA0IISR)

siseg [enJooy
¥2/SLi80
NV 62:01



01 jo z abed

05¥.8°C 000 000 05v28°C 000 000
00'06.'082 000 000 00°06.'08¢ 000 000
86'952'G 000 000 86'952'S 000 000
§9'9¢€6 000 000 G9'9¢€6 000 000
€€°02¢E'Y 000 000 ££°02E Y 000 000
90'LELLL 000 000 90'LEL' LL 000 000
16'829'6 000 000 16'829'6 000 000
60'20L'Z 000 000 602012 000 000
0L/1¥'91 00°0 00°0 0/.°21¥'91 000 000
£0'€96'G 000 000 £0'€96'G 000 000
L9'Y51°0L 000 000 L9VSY'0L 000 000
¥9v9.'6/1 000 000 ¥9'¥92'6.1 000 000
65'S8L'E 000 000 65°G8L'E 000 000
82°019°1 000 000 82019l 000 000
0€£'60€'C 000 000 0€'G0€'C 000 000
G9'¢y 000 000 S9'ey 000 000
EV'v¥S.'S 000 000 EVYSL'G 000 000
¥6°056'6 000 000 v6°056'6 000 000
Zl'Ly9 000 000 ¢L'Ly9 000 000
€E'V/2'951 000 000 EEV/C'9SL 000 000
vE 1G8'8L 000 00°0 ¥€'258'81 000 000
87°68.°L 000 000 82'68.'. 000 000
89¢vl 000 000 89°¢rl 000 000
00'0v¥'S 000 000 00°0vY'S 000 000
00'geL 000 000 00's¢es 000 000
05'260'} 000 000 06'260'L 000 000
ve9LLL 000 000 yeE9LLL 000 000
€2°8GL°1 000 000 £2°8GL°L 000 000
18'2¢8. 000 000 18282 000 000
jejoL Z auoz | auoz | auoz ¢ auoz Z duoz
pung Ao9 3jjinoaise)  ajjlaoayse)  BulpueT ssoly | duoz
pung A0S  punjJidjepy pung Jamag  pung Jamasg

JouISIqQ S99IAI9S AJUNWIWOY ajjIAosse)

¥202 ‘8z aunr ybnoayy gzoz ‘L Aine

sse|) Aq ssoT g Jyoid

1an4

asuadxg ajiqowoliny

asuadx3 uoneidaidaq

asuadxg sau|T J9)epp |B)JoL
ulepydieday - saul J9}epp
saljddng - sau| Jo)epp

asuadx3 saul JJep

asuadx3 juelpAH |ejol
rUBjUIRA Jieday - JurIpAH
saijddng - JueipAH

asuadx3 juelpAH

asuadxg J9)9|\ [B10L
doueuajule/ireday - 1910
salddng - 13)9 N

asuadx3 1919\

asuadx3 sa}s |ISM |Bjol
asuadx3 49YjQ - S91S [IPM
ulep/dieday Jauayog/aulolyd
2oueuajuiep/lieday Buipjing
aouejuiey/areday yue|
aoueuajuiep/siieday siojelauan)
S39)IS |I9M % sdwind Joj salddng
asueudjuiepieday dwng
4% Od-salilN

asuadx3 s9)S [I8BM

asuadx3 suonjesadQ [el2Ud9 |BJO|
$994 WaIsAg 191
Bunsaj moipjoeg
so04 Bunsa] 1o
suonesia) siojeladQ
sauoyd Je|nj|ao
swliojiun siojesadp
s|00] ||ews
saliddng doyg

asuadx3 suonjeladQ |esauan)

asuadx3z uonesadQ 191eM
asuadxg

aArv A03 vdO SNIAN3d

siseg |enJaoy
vZisiLi80
WV 62:01



0L jo ¢ abed

6.°9.€'C 000 000 61'9.€C 000 000 aoueuajuie/siieday 80140 m,../sw
€9°'1eZCl 000 000 €9°1€2°21 000 000 sanq diyssequapy —
09°€0S 000 000 09°€0S 000 000 sJojoalig/Buluiel ] reujwag
GZvel') 000 000 GeveEl'l 000 000 yeig/bulutel ) sieujwag
05°62)') 000 000 05'62L°L 000 000 $994 jueg
62°99G'¢l 000 000 62'995°¢c! 000 000 sapesbdn/sweiboid 1aindwon
80°G20°L 000 000 80620} 000 000 saxe] Auadoid
G6°'9¢S 000 000 G6'9¢S 000 000 99IA198 Bupiojuop wuely
6£°6¢€S 000 000 6E°6€S 000 000 asuadx3 2o "osIN
L0°LGG°) 000 000 LO°2GS‘L 000 000 wawdinb3 aoy0
86'6/9°1L 000 000 86'6/9'l 000 000 salddng aosuo
asuadx3y ao140
8€°008'92 000 000 8¢'008'9¢ 000 000 asuadx3 asueinsu| jejo|
8€£'008'92 000 000 8€°008°9¢ 000 000 Jelauan) g ony - aosuUBINSU|
asuadx3 asuelinsuj
£6'G/8'¥ 000 000 £6'G/8'v 000 000 asuadx3g saniun jelol
88'61L 000 000 88°6¥1 000 000 19)eMLIN - s9lINN
88’ LEY 000 000 88'LEY 000 000 |esodsiq - sain
99°G5S'2 000 000 99°GSS'z 000 000 sauoydaja] - sagun
1G'8EL) 000 000 1G'8EL) 000 000 3% 9d-sa3in
asuadx3 sapinn
£0'208'9} 000 000 ¥0°208'91 000 000 asuadx3 buig |ejol
rAWA A 000 000 rANAZA’) 000 000 asuadx3g buljig J9y30
ll9ze 000 000 L1'9¢¢ 000 000 sjuauysnipy-s 40 alIM
00°0G1 000 000 00°0G1L 000 000 a2jeqay j9i0 1
G.'8.1°0l 000 000 G/L8/1'0) 000 000 abe)sod
asuadx3 Buyig
asuadxg aAljesisjulwIpY Jajepn
617'Gv.'2e9 000 000 61'Gv.'2€9 000 000 asuadx3 uonesadQ 191ep |BJIO]
16'COV' VL 000 000 167911 L 000 000 uoniesadQ 193ep osuadx3 jjolhed |ejoL
000 000 000 000 000 000 sabepp AepijoH-siojeradQ
L6°E9' VL L 000 000 L6°E9' VL 000 000 sabepp 191epp siojeladp
000 000 000 000 000 00°0 sabepp uonesep siojesodp
000 000 000 000 000 000 sabep yo1g siojesadQ
uonesadQ 19)ep) asuadxy [joiked
08°'€9¥'G 000 000 08'E9%'S 000 000 asuadx3 ajilqowo)ny [ejo)
0£'68S'C 000 000 0£'686'2 000 000 9oueUAUIRN/TRdDY - OINY
lel01 Z suoz } suoz | auoz € auoz Z suoz arv A0O3 vdO 9NIAN3d
pund Ao 3jjiaosse)  ajiaodse)  Bulpue ssop | auoz
PUnjA0D  punjuslep punglamag  pung Jamasg
¥Z0zZ ‘8z aunr ybnoays £zoz ‘i AInpe
sse|) Aq sso 9 1joid siseg [eniooy
v2iSL/80

JouIsIg S92IAI9S AlUNWIWOoY 3jjIA0I)Se) T



0l Jo ¢ abed

26'€19'€l 000 000 000 000 Z6°€/9°Cl
00'8lS 000 000 000 000 00'8LS
TA24" 000 000 000 000 6C L)
61°869'S 000 000 0070 000 61°'869'S
PP ELE'9 000 000 000 000 vreLe’'e
8¢'8EE'Y 000 000 000 000 8Z'8EE'V
SC 918 000 000 000 000 G298
G829t 000 000 000 000 G8'29¢
88'vee't 000 000 000 000 88°vee'l
20'€8S 000 000 000 000 20'€8s
A A 000 000 000 000 geLlz'L
28626 'CoY 000 000 28°626'¢6Y 000 000
89°/6€£'G9 000 000 89°/6€'G9 000 000
L6'Gve'8y 000 000 L6°GVZ '8y 000 000
01L°92¢'/ 000 000 0179222 000 000
00662'¢ 000 000 006622 0070 000
12 W AR 000 000 veLLY 000 000
€CELTL 000 000 g€l 000 000
8¥'8.1'ZvE 000 000 81'8/1'ZVE 000 000
59°0/8'6l 000 000 G9'0/8'61 000 000
1568L'LE 000 000 1668L'LC 000 000
C¢L'6.S 000 000 cL'8.S 000 000
2069.'82 000 000 2069.'8¢ 000 000
G8/61'20) 000 000 G861 201 000 000
000 000 000 000 000 000
69218's 000 000 69¢C18'S 000 000
000 000 000 000 000 000
000 000 000 000 000 000
G9ZES'v8 000 000 G9'2E5'v8 000 000
€€°922'6L 000 000 €€'922'6. 000 000
L£G/8'0¢ 000 000 L€G/8'9E 000 000
8’ 000 000 8t 000 000
1elol Z duoz | auoz | suoz € auoz Z duoz
pund A0 3jjla0l)se)  3|llAoayse)  BuipueT ssopy | sauoz

pung Aogy

pung Jajem

pun4 jamag

pund 1amag

asuadx3 uonejs Y [ejoL

SJ0JBIBUIYL) 10 99 JIwIdd
uoljelg duind Joj sajddng
asueudjuiep/dieday uonels Y
3 ® Od SaIN Jamas

asuadx3 uolels Pl
uadx3 uorjesadQ [B12UAY) |BJO|

sauoyd Je|njj@)
suoljeayiua) siojesadQ
swiiojiun siojeradQ
juswdinbg g sjo0] |eWS
salddng doys

uadx3 uorjesadQ |e1ouaD)

133

asuadx3 uonesadQ | auoz
asuadxg aAneJjsIuIWpPY JOJBAA |BIOL

asuadx3 Buiynsuo? jejo|

saa4 Bunsuo9 JayjQ
s994 Bununossy
$934 Jojoauiq

s004 Bupssuibug
saa{ |eba

asuadx3 Bupjnsuon
sasuadx3 [joJhed |ejo]

asuadx3 |eaipay JuswAhojdw3 3sod J31epA-93d0
asuadx3 voi4

asuelnsu| 3j1 aako|dw3

lloJAed Apjeapn-1g suonnquiuoy Jakojdwg sjjauag Juawalnay Syid
s)yjouag yyeaH a9hojdwg

sabepp AepijoH uonessILIWPY

dwo) siajJopp - aoueINSU|

sabepp uonesep uonessiujwpy

sabepp yo1g eakojdwg

aAneJISIUIWPY - Sabep

Jabeuely |esaudan - sabepp

sasuadx3 |joJhed
asuadx3 ao1yQ |eloL

aoueuajurepy buipjing

arv A03 vdO ONIAN3d

¥z0z ‘gz aunr ybnouay gzoz ‘L Ainp
sse|9 Aq sso 2 Jyoid

Jou3sIqg S921AI13S AJlUunwiwio) 3|jInodise)

siseq |enJooy

¥2/S1/80
v 62:04



0l jo g abed

GZ /8Y¥'6. 000 000 000 000 GZ'/8Y¥'6.
86°02S'v 000 000 000 000 86025V
9/.°162'69 000 000 000 000 9/°162'G9
26°G.1'L9 000 000 000 000 Z6°GlY'L9
61'688'81 000 000 000 000 61'688'8)
GZ'S0E'0l 000 000 000 000 GZ'soe'ol
veele 000 000 000 000 vZ'ele
€6°0LL 000 000 000 000 €5'0LL
9.°evS 000 000 000 000 92°evS
G8'60¥% 000 000 000 000 G8'60¥%
ovr'6.8'L 000 000 000 000 ovr6.8'L
1G'€eL'e 000 000 000 000 LG€EL'T
€9'6€¢C 000 000 000 000 £€9'6¢¢
€6'LLL 000 000 000 000 €6'LLL
6£°€86 000 000 000 000 6£°€86
vEGEY'S8L 000 000 000 000 YEGEV'G8L
GE'LY9 000 000 000 000 GELP9
SE Y9 000 000 000 000 Ge'Lv9
¥9°286'¢2 000 000 000 000 ¥9286'¢C
r9°286'CC 000 000 000 000 ¥9286'¢c
0v'cel 000 000 000 000 ov'cel
ov'ces 000 000 000 000 ) A2
95°2€6'/8 000 000 000 000 95°2€6'/8
95°2¢6'/8 000 000 000 000 96°2¢6'/8
61'8L0'S 00°0 000 000 000 61L°8L0'S
l£'GEE 000 000 000 000 LE'GEE
v, Gee'e 000 000 000 000 v.Gee'e
WA 000 000 000 000 v1°2G€'2
00911'0§ 000 000 000 000 00'9L1'0S
iejol Z duoz | duoz | auoz ¢ auoz Z duoz
pung A0S 9|jlA0lSBD)  d||IAolise)  BuipueT ssop | duoz
pung Ao  pun4 Jajepp pung Jjamag  pung Jamasg

Jo11S1 S99IAI9S AJlunwWiWo?) d|jIA0LSE)

¥z0z ‘8z aunr ybnoay) £zoz ‘) AInr
sse|) Aq sso7 » Jyoid

s)jouag yjesHy 9akojdwg
dwo? sia)Iopp - ddueInsU|
ulwpy | auoz sabepp
NS | suoz sabepp

ulwpy asuadx3 |joihed

asuadx3 aoiyQ jejol
sanQ diysiaquiap
si0}9a11g/Buiuies] Jeuiwag
yejg/buluiel] jsieujwag
soxe] Auadoud
aoia19g Buojluop wuely
asueuajuie/ieday 3oy
apeibdnjwesboid Jo3ndworn
asuadx3 aoiyo "9SIN
juawdinb3 232140
saiddng as140

asuadx3 ao130

134

asuadx3 aAnessIUIWPY | dUOZ
asuadx3 uonesadQ | auoz [ejo]

asuadx3 ajiqowoiny ujelp w.aojg |ejol
S)2NJ] 10} |an4 uleJp wi0)§

asuadx3 ajiqowolny ulelp wiolg

asuadx3 ulesp wuo}§ [BJO]
aoueudjuiey/ieday-ulelp Wio}g

asuadx3 ujeip wuolg

asuadx3 au|] Jomag |ejol
doueudjuie/ieday-aul] Jomag

asuadx3 auji Jameg

uoneladQ-asuadxy [joJhed |B1O|
sabepp | auoz siojesadp

uonjelsadp-asuadxy |joihed

asuadx3 ajiqowolny |ejo|
asuadx3 ojny 1ayl0
aoueuaduiep/ileday -ony
S)}9NJ] Joj [an4

asuadx3 ajiqowoiny

asuadx3 uonerdaidaq 1omag

arv A03 vdO ONIAN3d

siseg |enJ9oy
v2iS1i80
WV 62:01



0l jo 9 abeg

@)
asuadx3 uoneiadQ |BJaua) mn...\vu
asuadx3 uofjesadQ g auoz
00°000'0L} 000 00°000°0LL 000 000 000 asuadx3 |euonealsdy | auoz [ejol
0000001} 000 00°000'0L}L 000 000 000 PUISig died g 39y '0D 'ON
asuadx3 |euoijeald’dy | auoz
GZ'9L5'8Y 000 GZ'915'8Y 000 000 000 asuadx3 juiepy ® uonesadQ J2YlQ | duoZ |ejo]
96°962'1L 000 96'962' 000 000 000 asuadx3 uonerdaidaq | dUOZ A0
€2°9G€'lL 000 €2'9G¢°1 000 000 000 uBig peaylanQ 9f|inonse)
90°€98'GY 000 90°'€98'SY 000 000 000 3s09 Annn wbi jeans
asuadxz juiepy ® uonesddo J9Yyjo | duoz
60'252'92¢ 000 000 000 000 60'252'92¢ asuadx3 aAjjesIsiujwpy | dUOZ [ejo |
GO LEV'LIL- 000 000 000 000 GO LEV'LL- asuadx3 ‘yiue) 1 ueo ‘puog [ejol
G9'0¢S'Gl- 000 000 000 000 G9'02S'Gl- JuswisaAU| ssoTj/ules) pazijealun
00°00S 000 000 000 000 00009 994 UlWPpY JUBWSSIsSSY ¥ YSI UBP||IM
0068S'E 000 000 000 000 00'68G'€ asuadx3 uoneziuowy gSI39-vi VS
asuadx3 ‘jire) R ueo ‘puog
9/ v¥8'02 000 000 000 000 9. v¥8'02 asuadx3 aosueinsu| [ejoL
9.°v¥8'0C 000 000 000 000 9. v¥8'0C |edla3uag g ony -ajueinsu|
asuadx3 aosuelnsuj
L€12.'8C 000 000 000 000 1€°121'82 asuadx3 Bunnsuo) Jomag |ejo]
00°68.'L 000 000 000 000 00°684°L $994 Jojd2lig
9L v8v'vl 000 000 000 000 91 ¥8v'vl saa4 Bunynsuo) Joyj0 1omag
0£°029'S 000 000 000 000 0€°029's s994 Bununosoy Jameg
8€£'998 000 000 000 000 8£'998 S99 Joauibuz Jameg
lV¥'G96'S 000 000 000 000 L¥'G96°S $994 jeba Jomag
asuadx3 Buy|nsuos Jomag
0. €¥8'E 000 000 000 000 0L E€¥8'E asuadx3 saninn |ejoL
86911 000 000 000 000 85911 13JeMLIN - saBIBN
68°G€€ 000 000 000 000 68'GeE lesodsiq - sapnN
0.°/86°) 000 000 000 000 0.186°1L sauoydaja] - saIN
£S5 eov’l 000 000 000 000 £€5E0V'L 389d - salliin
asuadx3 sain
8V ¥88'G9¢ 000 000 000 000 8Y'788°G9¢ ulwpy asuadx3 jolhed |ejo]
805 000 000 000 000 ¥8°0Gt asueinsu| 8y aakojdw3
GBSl 000 000 000 000 G6' VSISl 3s09 juswho|dw3 jsod Jamag-g3do
£6'G/€£'22 000 000 000 000 £€6'G/£22 Ayaamig jjoiked suonnquiuog tafojdw3 syyauag juswaliey SY3d
G8'99€'9) 000 000 000 000 G8'99€°91L asuadx3 vold
1301 Z suoz | suoz } suoz g auoz Z suoz arv A03 vdd ONIAN3d
pund Ao9) ajjlaosiseD  9jjiaodise)  BulpueT ssopy } duoz
pun{ A0S  pund J3Jep pun4 Jamag pun4 Jamasg
202 ‘8z aunr ybnouyy ¢zoz ‘i Aine
sse|9 Aq sso7 B Jo0id siseg jenaoy

¥2iSL/80
JoLISIQ S99IAIAS AJUNWWO) 3)|IA0LSED WY 6Z:01



0l jo L abed

29'620'9 000 000 000 000 29'620'9
cl'8¢cC 000 000 000 000 ¢l'8¢e¢
96012 000 000 000 000 96°0lL¢
OL'ZLL 000 000 000 000 OLLLL
WA 000 000 000 000 YL°LES
0L'VLL 000 000 000 000 oL'LLL
Zl'eel 000 000 000 000 ¢l'6ElL
¥6°¢9 000 000 000 000 ¥6°29
29'92y 000 000 000 000 29°9¢y
.S6LY'E 000 000 000 000 1S6LY'E
Ge'90L 000 000 000 000 Ge'90l
¥8'001°€9 00°0 000 000 000 ¥8'001°€9
6021 00°0 000 00°0 000 60'L)
601 000 000 000 000 60°LL
66'66l'Ge 000 000 000 000 66°661'GZ
66'661°SC 000 000 000 000 66'661°GZ
GE'206'L 000 000 000 000 GE'206'L
L0'¥S1 000 000 000 000 L0¥S1
9.°0%4 000 000 000 000 9/.°0vL
25'100°L 000 00°0 000 000 2s'100°L
0066202 000 000 000 000 00'662'0¢
£2°09S'v1 000 000 000 000 €2°09G'vi
oLyl 000 000 000 000 oLyl
£0°088'2 000 000 000 000 £€0'088'¢
0L'6€S'LL 000 000 000 000 0L'6€G'LL
gL'zel'l 00°0 000 000 000 8L¢ceclL'L
6.\ vC 000 000 000 000 6L Lve
£r0ee 000 000 000 000 e oec
9'I8e 000 000 000 000 or'1L8¢
88°LGL 000 000 000 000 88°LGL
c¢9'9l1L 000 000 000 000 c9'9L1
lelol Z auoz | auoz | suoz ¢ auoz Z auoz arv AO3 vdo
pun4 A0S 3jjlA0liSBD)  9|IAosse)  BujpueT ssop | auoz

PUN4 AOD  pun{idjepr  pung JamMag  pund Jamag

$z0z ‘gz sunr ybnoayy gzoz ‘L AInp
sse|) Aq sso B Jyoid

JoL3sIg S99IAI9S AJlUNWIWOY) d|IA0IISB)

asuadx3 asiyQ |ejol
yejg/buluiel] jsieuiwag
saxe] Apadoid
$921A198 BuLIo}IUON waely
aoueuajuie/iieday asyo
apeisbdnjueiboid Jayndwon
asuadx3 92140 "ISIN
juswdinb3g ao10
soljddng as140
sang diyssaquiay
sJ10)0a41g/Bululel] j1euiwag
asuadx3 aoso

36

LY

asuadx3 aAljesISIUILIPY Z UOZ
asuadx3 uonesadQ g auoz |ejol

asuadx3 aui Jamas |ejo|
asueudjuiep/ieday-aul] Jomag

asuadx3 aui Jamag

suojjesadQ-asuadx] |joshed |BjO |
sabepp z auoz JojesadQ

suoneladp-asuadx3 jjoiAed

asuadx3 ajiqowolny |ejo|
asuadx3 ojny Jayl10
asueuajuiep/ieday-oiny
s)oni] Joj [an4

asuadx3 ajqowolny

asuadx3 uojeldaidaq Jomag

asuadx3 uolnejs Ji |ejol
uonjejg duwngd Joj saiddng
@sueudjuie/dieday uoneis Y
samnLn

asuadx3 uoneis Y

asuadx3 uoneladQ jeiauan |ejo|
sauoyd Je|njj@)
suoljeasyipa siojesadp
swuojiun s1ojelado
juswdinb3 g sjoo] [jewg
sol|ddng doysg

ONIAON3d

siseq |enJooy

vZi51/80
AV 62:01



0l jo g abeq

S0'¥0¢ 000 000 000 S0'v0E 000
€C'18¢ 000 000 000 €C’18¢ 000
28'sel 000 000 000 28'sel 000
60706 000 000 000 60°06 000
LEVCL'S /€%2L'8 000 000 000 000
1€'902'v 1£90Z'v 000 000 000 000
008l6'E 008L6'E 000 000 000 000
¥1'GGG'86 000 000 000 000 v/ G5S'86
Z9'G56'S 000 000 000 000 29'GS6'S
Z9°G56'S 000 000 000 000 29°'G56'G
96°vEL‘L 000 000 000 000 96'¥EL'L
og'ee 000 000 000 000 oc'ee
66°G6 000 000 000 000 66°G6
86°/99 000 000 000 000 86°.99
69°LEY 000 000 000 000 69°LEY
8L 0EV'6 000 000 000 000 81 0EV'6
00°¢es 000 000 000 000 00°ees
00015 000 000 000 000 00'0ls
€L°2€9'L 000 000 000 000 £2°2€9'l
08°G09‘L 000 000 000 000 08°'509'}
G9'8YL'S 000 000 000 000 G9'8YL'S
9£'G600'9. 000 000 000 000 9£'G00'92
1980.'Y 000 000 000 000 19804V
0LGlY'y 000 000 000 000 0LGlv'Y
18'8¢l 000 000 000 000 /8'8¢1
60°€6€'9 000 000 000 000 60°€6€'9
09°0LL'2e 000 000 000 000 09'0L22C
L2'Lez't 000 000 000 000 1L 162’
81-98.'8l 000 000 000 000 81°98.'81
09°0.S'/1 000 000 000 000 09°0.G'LL
lejol Z duoz | duoz | duoz ¢ auoz Z duoz
pung A09 3||IA0a)SB)  3||IA0lSe)  BulpueT ssop | auoz
punj Ao5y  pund Jajepp pund iloamag  pund Jamag

suoeslyIan siojelsadQ
swojiun siojesado
juswdinb3 g sjoo] jjewsg
s9ijddng doyg

asuadx3 uonesadQ [esouan

37

asuadx3 juiep ¥ uonesad ¢ UOZ JoMag
asuadxg uiey R JadQ J9Yj0 Z 2U07 |eJO.

1s0D Aynn 1ybi yeans
S891AI8G apISInNQO-ule asedg uadQ

asuadx3 ureyy 3 JodQ 19Yy3jQ g auoz
asuadx3 aAljensiulWpYy Z aUozZ |Bjol

asuadx3 asueinsu| |B}O|
|eJauas) g oJny-adueInNsu|
asuadx3 aosuelinsuj
asuadx3 san|nn |ewoL
J8¥epALIN-saBIIN
lesodsig-sain
auoydaja-saminn
3ROd-salIlNn
asuadx3 sapnn
asuadx3g Buinsuon |ejo|
asuadx3 uonezjuouwy uojexauuy ofo olop
$994 J0j)2a.ig
s994 [eba] Jamag
$994 Bununodoy Jamag
$994 Bunynsuo)n
asuadx3g bunjnsuon
uoljelisiulwpy asuadxqy {jolhed |ejo|
asuadx3 yold
sjljsuag JudawalnRay 1sod 12410
9oueinsu| 3§17 9akojdwg
lloJAed Apj@amig uonngluod Jakojdwy syyauag Juswaldy SyId
sjyyauag yjesH 2akojdwz
dwoy SI9}JOAL douRINSU|
ulwpy gz auoz-sabepp
IND Z 2uoz -sabepp
uonesisiujwpy asuadxsy jjoihed

drv A0O3 vdd ONIAN3d

$20Z ‘g8z aunp ybnoiys gzoz ‘L Aine
sse|9 Aq ssoT 9 Jyo.d

JouISIg S991A19S AJUNWIWOY d|IA0l}Se)

siseq [enJooy
vziS1/80
WV 62:01



01 jo ¢ abed

zL 162l 000 000 000 2L 162’} 000
61°982'8l 000 000 000 61°982'8l 000
1904521 000 000 000 190452 000
¥1°920'9 000 000 000 ¥1°920'9 000
¥5667'€E 000 000 000 ¥5667'C 000
9€'901 000 000 000 9€'901L 000
2L'8eC 000 000 000 21'8¢c 000
€6'GLL 000 000 000 €6'G/1 000
oL'ZLL 000 000 000 oL'ZLL 000
12°0vS 000 000 000 12°0¥S 000
8€'LL) 000 000 000 8€111 000
2Z'L6 000 000 000 [4AN3 000
0v'€0c 000 000 000 ov'e0c 000
XA Y XA 000 000 000 2c9.e 000
¥2°960'€8 000 000 000 ¥.°960'€8 000
60°L1 000 000 000 60°LL 000
60°LL 000 000 000 60°LL 000
01 ¥Sv'Se 000 000 000 01 ¥S¥'ST 000
0l ¥S¥'Ge 000 000 000 0l ¥St'se 000
£2206'l 000 000 000 £2°206'L 000
90'¥51 000 000 000 90151 000
LL0V. 000 000 000 L1°0k. 000
0v°£00'} 000 000 000 0¥ 200°L 000
00°96L°LE 000 000 000 0096L'LE 000
YEV.IE'ET 000 000 000 YEVLE'ET 000
oLyl 000 000 000 o'yl 000
ov'SvL'L 000 000 000 A7) 000
¥8°/8¥'S) 000 000 000 78 /8%'G) 000
86°2SL'| 000 00°0 000 86°251') 000
61'Lve 000 000 000 6.°L¥C 000
lejol Z duoz | 3uoz | duoz ¢ auoz Z duoz
punq AoD 3||IAosiSB)  3jjlIAolise)  Buipue ssop | duoz
pungd Acg)  pund Jajepp pund Jamag  pun4 Jamas

¥20z ‘8z aunr ybnouayy £zoz ‘L Ainp
sse|) Aq sso ® Jj0id

dwo9 sia)Jopp-aouURINSU|
ulwpy ¢ auoz sabepp
WO € auoz sabepp
uonensiuiwpy asuadxy jjoihed
asuadx3 as1y40 |eJoL
songg diysisaquiay
sJ0)oa4ig/Bulules | /sieuiwag
yejg/bujuiel ] /sieujwag
saxe) Apadoud
a91a19g Buliojiuop uueje
aoueuajuie/ieday 32140
apesbdn/swesboid 193ndwoo
asuadx3 99140 "9SIN
juawdinb3g 82130
saljddng a0
asuadx3 asy0
asuadx3 aAnesis|ulWpyY £ 3UoZ
asuadx3 juiely @ uonesadQ £ auoz Jomas |ejo|
asuadx3 auiq 1amag |ejo)
aoueudjuiely Jieday-aul] Jomag
asuadx3 au|] Jamag
suopeladQ-asuadxy jjoihed |BjoL
¢ auoz sabepp Buipue ssoy-stojesadp
suojjeladQ-asuadx3 [joihed
asuadx3 sjiqowolny |ejo |
asuadx3g ony J3ylo
asueuajuieN/ieday
s)onuj Joj |an4
asuadx3 ajiqowolny
asuadx3 uonervaidag ¢ auoz (Buipue sso) Jomag
asuadx3 uonejs Y1 jejoL
uonelg duing Joj saiddng
@oueuajuie/reday uolels Yi
38Od S3nlNN Jomag
asuadx3 uonels Yi
asuadx3 uonesadQ |elauan |ejo|
sauoyd Je|njen

138

3rv AO3 vdd ONIAN3d

siseq [entooy
vZisLi80

Jo13SIg S99IAI9S AJlUNWIWOY) djjiAol}SED) WY 62:01



01 jo 01 abed

tap
o
€1L'8v0'6vL'Z  00°686°LY 001269 08°'€L1 295 0v'L0Z 69 £6°'61L8°€90°L awoouj jJeN
000 000 00°000'0LL 000 000 000000} L- awWodU| JBYI0 ION
000 000 00°000'0LL- 000 000 00°000°0L1 asuadx3 19y)0 [ej0L
000 000 00°000°0LL- 000 000 000000} junoooy Buuea)
asuadx3 19y10
asuadx3zjowoauy Jayl0
€L'8¥0'67L'c 00686'LF 009/0°€0L- O08€ELL'29S 0¥ 102'69¥ €6°6L8'€LL°L awoou| A1eulpiQ 19N
21'662'891'2 /LEVZL'® G2'9L6'8GL LEG/Z9'GZL'L 8L'6EL'TOC LO'¥¥8'€.9 asuadxd [ejo]
Yy er06LlL 000 000 000 vy Zr0'6LL 000 asuadx3y aaness|UIWPY € 3UOZ |eJOL
£9'GG6'S 000 000 000 £9'666'S 000 asuadx3 asueinsu| |Bjo|
€9'GG6'G 000 000 000 €9'GG6'G 000 [eJauan g Ojny-adueInsuy|
asuadx3 aosueinsuj
L1°126'62 000 000 000 LL'LZ6'6¢2 000 asuadx3 Bunnsuo) 1amag [ejo|
00°0lS 000 000 000 00°01lS 000 $934 J030a11Q
€9°€20'9 000 000 000 £€9°€20'9 000 $994 Bunnsuo) Jaylp 1omas
08'G09°L 000 000 000 08'509'l 000 $994 Bununoooy Jamoeg
LLvE8 000 000 000 LLvE8 000 $994 Joauibu3 Jjomasg
16°916°0C 000 000 000 16'9¥6°0C 000 sa94 |eba Jomeg
asuadx3 Buinsuo’) Jomag
¥SvEL') 000 000 000 YSVEL'L 000 asuadx3 saginn [eyoL
yZee 000 000 000 yZ'ee 000 J91epMLIN-salIINN
26'G6 000 000 000 26'G6 000 |esodsiq-saninin
11199 000 000 000 L1 719S 000 auoydaja] -sapjin
19°/¢eY 000 000 000 19°/¢Yy 000 3R9d-saIIN
asuadx3y sanin
20°'500'9/ 000 000 000 20'500'9. 000 uogelisiulwpy asuadxy jjoshed |ejo|
1182} 000 000 000 11.°821 000 aoueunsu| )17 sakojdw3
0LGL¥'Y 000 000 000 0L'GLY'Y 000 sjjouag juswholdw3 3sod 18Y30
£8°¢6£'9 000 000 000 £€8'26€9 000 lloihed Apjaamig suonnquiuog 1akojdwy sjyauag Juswalney SY3d
1980.L'Y 000 000 000 19°80L"Y 000 asuadx3 vl
6501222 000 000 000 6501222 000 s)youag yeaH askoldw]
jeloL Z duoz | auoz | auoz € auoz z auoz arv A0O3 vdO 9NIAN3d
pung A0D JjIAolise)  3|llAogise)  Buipue] ssop | duoz
pung A05  pund Iajepy pund Jamasg pund 1amag

Jo1ISIg S99IAI8S AJlUnwiWwo ajjIA04Ise)

¥20Z ‘gz aunr ybnoayy ¢zoz ‘L AInp

siseq |enJooy

¥2/S1/80
WV 6Z:01

sse[) Aq sso7 %2 Joid



G jo | abed

zeez') 000 000 000 zeiee'L 000 £ 9uoZ Jamag-aoueinsu| predaid muu
00viC'y 000 000 000 000 00'vie'y | 2U0Z Jamas-su| pledaisd _—
1z21ec’h 000 000 000 000 Lgiee') Z 2uoZ Jamag-su| pledaid
88'/16C¢E 90'809 L1°L0€ 000 000 G9'800'¢cE C-| BUOZ-19MaG }SaIdU| PaNIIIY
€1°898'v¢ 000 000 £1°898'v¢ 000 000 13]eM-3[qBAIDDY jSalaju] paniddy
2zees'L 000 000 000 geczes'l 000 € 9UO0Z-1aMag )saldju] paniddy
00°00Z'1L- 000 000 00°002' - 000 000 JUNOJJY INJIqNOQ 10} IJUBMO|ly-I1d3)epy
9Z'610°'2 000 000 000 92610/ 000 S9Xe] g S99 J9SN-3|qAdY € suoZ
GO'LG/'8S 000 000 000 G0'1G/'8S 000 aunrjAe 10} S994 uole}IURS J2JeMLIN-IIGADY pund € dU0Z
2.S6L'Yy 000 000 000 000 2LS6L'Y S9Xe|-8994 J9SN-3|qeAIad8Yy pund g auoz
¥6'L€l 000 ¥6°.E) 000 000 000 $334 13sS)-9|qAdY AQD | U0z
€T L¥8've 000 000 000 000 €2 L¥8've sjuawuolpoddy xe]-saa4 19S() 9|qAOY JOMAS | dUOZ
15'0£6'99 000 000 /5'0£6'99 000 000 S9|eS pPaldlsN - ¥/V
88'860'885'C 000 000 000 000 88'8€0'885°2 SJUSWIS3AU| pung Jomag
00008 000 000 00008 000 000 yse9 Apad
$)O9SSY Jualing 1BYj0
20'22z'Se 000 000 25'998'8] 000 0G,G5€'9 9IgeAlad3Yy SIUN0JIY |B10 |
20¢eee'se 000 000 259988l 000 06°66¢€'9 1BYI0 - /v - 0911
9|qBAI223Y SIUNOIDY
06°129'29¢€'SlL  ¥1°€98'vZh Py685'L/2  8SLLL'09E'9 Z0'0L9'8LG'L 25 /ve'181'9 sBuiaeg/Bunoay ejoL
90 %9l 'v9l 000 000 000 90°'v91'¥91 000 J9mag T € suozZ-4iv]
€9°08.'tS £9°08/'VS 000 000 000 000 pung A09 g 3uozZ-41v1
¥8'¢ceL'Le 000 ¥8zel'le 000 000 000 pung Ao9 | duoz-41y1
881180422 000 000 000 000 88'118'042°C punj adwi jepded z g L-19Mag-4IV ]
00'8¥8'CL1L 000 000 000 000 00'8¥8'CLL pun4 aAIasdy | -19amag-4Iv
06°€5€'620° 000 000 06°'€G€'G20'E 000 000 sjuawanosdui] [eyided JajeM-dINYD
20°190'c.e 20°1902.2 000 000 000 000 |BJUILILIBA0D Z 3UOZ-dINVD
0¥ 202'2S 000 0v',02°2S 000 000 000 [BJUSWIUIBAOCY | BUOZ-dIAIVD
Zv'189'/60°L 000 000 000 Zv'189°260'L 000 sjuswanoidw] [endes Buipue) ssoy Jamas-dINYD
10¢v8'29¢ 000 000 000 000 102¥8'29¢C pung saIasay | -1amag-dINVYI
82'890°€€S'e 000 000 000 000 82'890'€€G'¢ pung idw jepde) | -19mag-dINVYD
90'v¥GL'EVLL 000 000 90'vSLErL') 000 000 pung Aldwi [eyded Jajep - 41V
G8'CZr'968'L 000 000 G8'22¥'968'L 000 000 PuUnd 9Alas3y J3jepM - IV
6V evy'19 000 000 6V ehy'L9 000 000 Jamag 7 Jajep-puny Jisodaq Jowolsny aseyn
99'1%9'788 6’1256 02'6¥2'26l 80'8££'82C ¥5'862°962 Ge'v1.'/0L Bunjosyy-punyg jessuss aseyn
sBuiaeg/bunjoayn
SJassYy juaiing
sS13ssv
lejoL ¢ duoz | duoz | auoz € auoz Z duoz rav AO3 vdO 9NIAN3d
pung Aoo ajjinonsen a|inosysey  BuipueT ssop } d2uoz
pun4 AoD pun4 Jajep pung Jomasg pun4 Jamag

202 ‘8Z 8unr jo sy
sse|) Aq J93ys aouejeq

JoLISIg S99IAI9S AJlUNWWo) df[IAoLSe)

siseg |enJooy
vZ/S51/80
WY 00:01



§ Jo Z obed —
et

6/.°¥8Z'cl) 000 000 000 000 6.'v82Z'cLl PAIG 2[1ACaSED UONELS YT
I18°€V9°19 000 000 000 000 /8°€V9'L9 9AY JJUOI |3 UolE}S PIT
88'620'6Y 000 000 000 000 88°'620'6V EpUIT BIA UONEIS YIT
09'1£6'89 000 000 000 000 09°'1£6'89 saul Jamag ofon oiop
1€°€61'EL 000 000 000 000 lee6l'el Saul Jamas pA|g d||lr0a)sBD
8¢'697'096 000 000 000 000 8¢°691'09G saulT Jamag 3|jlrodise)
€ 776'80€ 000 000 000 000 ¥ v16'80¢ Z % | auoz dw @ Buip|ing Jomasg
00°000°L2 000 000 000 000 00'000°LC ofo) oioy JojeIBURD
€/°660'181 000 000 000 000 €1°G60°L81 Siae(g-uapJles) eag uoljels Ji
¥0'¥82'0. 000 000 000 000 70 ¥82'0L PAIg 3]lIA0AISED JOJBIDUD
€8'791°9 000 000 000 000 €8°/91'9 Jamag | auozZ-yavas
Y€ PIv'e 000 000 000 000 e Yov'e Jamag Z auoz-vavos
¥2'891'8¥ 000 000 000 000 ¥2'891°8¥ ade|d epul BIA JOjeIdUlD)
90'2¢€l'26 000 000 000 000 90'¢¢ElL'26 juswdinb3 tomag
61°€91'08¢ 000 000 000 000 62°€91'08¢ $)2N1] Jaues|) 1amasg
S0'61S'/ 000 000 000 000 G0'GLG'/ Io|lel| JBA J9MIS 7861
26°925°'L6 000 000 000 000 26'92S'L6 e1) /m yonu] dnyald 1L00Z 19masg
69'G¥Z'8lE 000 000 000 000 69'5¥2'8lLE ssalbouid ul syoafoid 1amag
00'¢88'¥2Z'8- 000 000 00'€88'v¢Z'e- 000 000 Jajepp uoljerdasda pajejnwnoady
12'G28'18l 000 000 1262818l 000 000 walsAg Aijowala)
85°¢/'681 000 000 85°€/¥'681 000 000 swdinby Buidwng
£6'696'9¢¢ 000 000 £6'696'9¢¢ 000 000 juswdinb3 as1yo
80'668°19 000 000 8066819 000 000 uawdinb3 doyg
GZ'eS8'LE 000 000 GZ'es8'Le 000 000 13]le)-OBA
82°0S¥' Lyl 000 000 810GV LYl 000 000 sojny/syoniy
€9°21€'8¢ 000 000 €9°/1€8¢ 000 000 sjuelpfAy
GG'969'88¢ 000 000 G5'969'88¢ 000 000 CIGVET
v6'LlV'viL'6 000 000 6 Ll¥'VIL'6 000 000 sadid ' s||om ‘s1oaloid
0¥'Z5¥'852 000 000 0¥ 2Sv'85¢ 000 000 pue
00'8S}'LY 000 000 000 000 00'8S)'LY Jamag-pue]
82 0£8'V9Y 000 000 82°0£8'v9Y 00°0 000 sjuawanoidw) @ buipjing
GE'189'VE 000 000 Ge'189've 000 00°0 waysAs yavos
2zz8l'ele 000 000 zzesl'sie 000 000 ssaiboid uj uonanisuog/sioafold Jajepm
sjassy paxi4
96°/66'6G2'8,  02'1.6'vCy GG'820'z/¢ 12020125’  11'€Tv'/8S') 1Z'ELS'05Y'6 S]assy juaiing |ejo]
PO¥L1'898°C  90°809 % 18°Zhv' L) 5/°€18'89 G2'018'959°¢ sjassy juauing 18y)Q |ejoL
1£6e8'9¢e 000 000 GL¥6S'vE 000 96°0€2'C Aiojuaau)
Zy'evy's 000 000 AR AR 000 000 Jajepr-su| predald
jejol g auoz } auoz I auoz € auoz Z duoz rav A03 vdd 9NIAN3d
pung Ao a|[lnoJ)se) af|Inoa)se) Buipue ssop | duoz

pund Ao pun4 Jajep pund Jjamag pund 1amag

¥20z ‘gz aunr jo sy

sse|) Aq j99ys aosuejeq siseg [eniooy
JoMISIg S921A198 Ajlunwiwios) ajjInolisen _\ﬂw\m%%



G jo ¢ abey

00°190°6- 000 000 000 000 00°190°6-
00°000'9L 000 000 000 000 00°000'9}
00°€05'v9- 000 000 000 000 00'€0S'v9-
61699201 000 000 000 000 61'699°/0L
8EveS v~ 000 000 BE VS vL- 000 000
8EVvZS VL 000 000 8EVCS 11 000 000
00°000'G1L- 000 000 00°000°'GL- 000 000
00°000's1 000 000 00'000°GL 000 000
96'SL.'L- 000 000 96°GLL L~ 000 000
96°'GL.'VL 000 000 96'G.. VL 000 000
00°050'21L 000 000 000 000 00°'050'2L
00'6¥0'z1L 000 000 000 00'6¥0°C1 000
00'LLL'ZY 000 000 000 000 00'LLL2y
00'0¢z'vs 000 000 00°022'vs 000 000
§8'0L£'89 000 000 000 000 G8'0L£'89
91'68¢°20¢ 000 000 91'S8€'/0¢ 000 000
§GE'01E'89 000 000 000 Ge'0Le'89 000
LLvi0'682 000 000 000 000 VL'¥/0'682
EV'0€S'2/¥'9 000 S6'GE0'8SL  97°1z2'zS8'e 91L'08L'Le6 90'/80'91G'}L
26'9¢8'G- 000 Cc6'9¢€8'G- 000 000 000
ESELV YL 000 ESELY'YYL 000 000 000
YE'651'61 000 YE'65v'6l 000 000 000
00°000'01 000 000 000 00°000°0L 000
£6'G81'656 000 000 000 16'G81'655 000
00°691'8gz- 000 000 000 00'69¥'88z- 000
€2°9L1'09 000 000 000 €2'91209 000
89'/G68'02 000 000 000 89°/68°0¢2 000
€1°1658'¢1 000 000 000 €L186°el 000
00€L6'9 000 000 000 00°€L6'9 000
95°/¢/'8e 000 000 000 95°/¢1'8z 000
90'5/9'z1L 000 000 000 90'5.9°21L 000
§9'eG/'2ey 000 000 000 G9'€S/'eey 000
88'852'V. 000 000 000 88'852'v. 000
Ge'gee'sel) 000 000 000 000 GE'8ZE 6L
00'L2v'8z6- 000 000 000 000 00°'L/.¥'8z6-
00°098'692- 000 000 "~ 000 000 00'098'69z-
08'0/1'26 000 000 000 000 08'0/1'26
Iejo} Z auoz | auoz | suoz € auoz Z auoz
pung aon dllaoasen 8liironse)y  Bugpue ssopy | auoz
pung Arog pung iayep pun4 Jamag pung samag

¥Z0z ‘gz aunp jo sy
sse|D Aq jeayg asuejeg
PUIsIg sad1neg Ayunwiwos d|llInonse)

uoliezpuowy xauuy ofog ooy o)
309fo1d uoyexsuuy ofop ouopy e+
uogeziowy gsooL vy T
}s0D uoneziuebio gy VSO
994 |eba gz lI3M-uoneziowy
S994 |eba eoueui4 gz lem
94 |ebo joy puog-uonezpiowy
lUniy-saa4 [eba aoueuyey puog
Paziiowy sysog puog zgg),
$}s0Q puog zge|
g93d0 suofngLyuo)-smoyng Pa.ugjag-z Jomag

83d0 suosnquiuo-smoiing pausjag-¢ somos ™

83d0 suofngiucs-smopng paiiajaq-| Jjamag
83d0 Uonnquuog smoiynp paussjeq-ierepm
Z J1amag-smolinQ paisagag
J9)eM-smolnQ pautayaq
€ Jomag JN-smonE pausageg
} Jamag-smonQ pauiasaq
sjassy Jayio
sjassy paxi4 |ejo)

dllinonse) | suoz Juswularon-uoyeroaidag paje|nwnaoy

ubig jlewpue afjinonsen

PHOM 8y} jo usjuar oyYdaiuy-ubig peayieng a|jinonsen

€ 8uoz tamag-pue-

Jo8foud uoneyiqeyay wajsAg Jajemasep Buipue ssopy

Buipue ssopy ¢ duoz uoneoardag pajejnwnaoy
Buipue- sso ¢ auoz vavos
Peoy osailod yi uoneyg B
S.!ud Aq ¢# uonejg Hn
¢ ouoz dwj g Buipjing Jamag
I MAH zi# uoneis y
PeOY aAnng L# uoneyg M
€ auoz Buipue ssopy saur] Jomag
£ auoz-juswdinbg lamag
s393foid Aoxdwy uleiq wiolg | auoz
J9Mag | suoz uopeidsaidag pajenwnooy
1ameg-z auoz "idag Paje|nwnaoy
0qly so7 % odwes uoneig yin
rav A03 vdo ONION3d

siseq jeniooy
LAETTED)]

IANY NNn'n1



§ Jo v abed
22'980'046'2 000 000 12°980°0/5'Z 000 000
CE/9% 180" L S9°¥9G 8L L.y €1°9G1'cvG ¥9'L.L'96 25'2€8°9¢h
£6'S61 251 000 000 /8°28%'€0g 61'8LE'GY /8'68¥'c0Z
00'8£9'6¢2 000 000 000 000 00'8e9'6z
00'8£9'6¢ 000 000 000 00'8€9'6¢ 000
00°22Z°c0l 000 000 000 000 00/2/'¢0l
00'v9e'eelL 000 000 00'v9g'ceL 000 000
6L'€86'GL 000 000 000 000 61°€8G°GlL
61°08G'GL 000 000 000 61°085'G1 000
18°€2L'02 000 000 18°€Z1L'0Z 000 000
89'L¥S'pg 000 000 000 000 89°LYGpS
6€'1/2'629 S9°¥9G 8L Lvl'y 98'899'6¢€¢€ S¥'€66'0G S9°Zve'ese
LIyl '6eh 000 000 EE€'C9E'62Z ¥8'GZE'9¢ 0€'65¥'c9l
00€ll'L 000 000 00'€lL's 000 000
00'82/'L 000 000 000 00'82.°L 000
00'Zg.'L 000 000 000 000 00°Les‘)L
00'9%0°'9 000 000 000 000 00909
0l'68¢'/2 000 000 000 000 0/'68¢'/¢2
06°/8¢'22 000 000 000 06'/8¢'/2 000
8¥'6eg'ce! 000 000 8V'6EC'cClL 000 000
88'168'G6 000 000 000 000 88°158'G6
00°000°L 000 000 00°000°L 000 000
00°00L°9 000 000 00°00L'9 000 000
L1'5908'8g 000 000 L1'508'8g 000 000
86°050'G 000 000 v6'¢lz'e 01°G0S 6’222
eyr'av0'/9 000 000 08'LLL0E ¥8'¥02'9 82'LL1'0¢g
¢6'€21'002 S9°¥9S 8L Llvl'y £5'90£'0L1L 19°/29'v1L SGE€'£88'69
26'€Z1'00z S9'v9S 8L LY.y €5°90€'0L1L L9'229'1L GE'€88'69
GG'v91'/86'cz 02°'LL6'vZY 0S°¥90‘'0¢H 6¥'€58'vEL 01 82°£96'886'2 80°ZLE'B0%L)
95'9/9'¢58 000 000 9Y'G09°1L9¢ GE'65£'08 SLLLL LY

—— ——— —
1ejo) Z duoz L duoz | auoz € duoz Z duoz
pung aog 9jlnodisen 8lionse)y  Buipuer ssop |} auoz
pung Aog pungiajeps pung tamag Pung ramag

¥Z0Z ‘82 aunr jo sy
sse|9 Aq jeays soueeg

PIsIg sedmieg Aunwiwon 3|lInoase)

on
~ft
ajueleg pund sejepy
Aynbgy
Samiqer jejo)
sanlqer wiay buo [ejoy
Z lamag-Ay1qert g34o joN
€ 13mag W Aungert g34o 1eN
lamag-Ayngert g3do joN
Jarem-Aungert gago JaN
¢ Jamag- Ayijiqer uojsuay
€ 18mag TN-Aijiqer uoisuay
191em-Aljiqer uoisuay
} lomag-Ayjiqer] uoisuay
Saningery wiaj Buoq
Sanliger] yuauing jejo)
SanliiqerT juaung Jayo jejoy
191BM SMmojju) passagaq g3d0
€ 1amag smou| passsyeq g3do
C Jamag smopu| patisgeq g3d0
L 1amag smoju| passagag g3do
Z Jamag-smojpu) pasajaq
€ 1amag JN-smojuj passagaq
191 M-smopu| pasiaga(
} Jamag-smopu| paisagag
sysodaq uoneesu) -1ajep
sjisoda(g asjaleg JueipAy
susodaqg Ayunoag Jawolsny
lloJAed paniooy
uoijeseA paniooy
sajingerT juaung Jay;g
9lqeAed s)unoaoy jejo )
siqeded sjunoaoy
sIqeAed sjunoooy
sanliiqer yuaung
seiliqery
ALIND3 % S3ILIMgY
$13SSv V101
Sjassy JayiQ ejo)

rav A03 vdo oNIaN3d

siseg [entooy

¥2/S1/80
INY DnnL



G jo g abed

SSP91°285'6E 0Z'LL6'vZY 05°¥90'0¢ 8¥°'€S8'vEL 0L 82°€96'385°Z 60°CLE'80Y L1
£2°169'G05'vz GG'90¥' vEy clLeze'szy G/969°L6L01L 9 161°26¢'2 LG5°6.¥'116'01
ELero'srl'c 00686 (37 00'v2e'9 08'€LL'295 0¥’ 10Z'69Y €6'618'€90'1
ve'l6L's6L's ve'50.'e82 CL'€TL'9LL- 8L'¥2l'6LG'S G/'20S°€8."L 68'286'v8/'c
0029579/ 000 000 000 000 00'295'79/
002iL'ves's o000 000 00cii'ves'e 000 000
LV'6¥8'291 000 000 000 Ly'6¥8'29L 000
co'8ee’Ll 000 000 000 c0'8eeg'1. 000
SLvLL'sge's 000 000 000 000 S/'vLl'sse's
Yv'ezi'ses 000 ¥r'ezL'ses 0070 000 000
LECL.'86 L€C1.°86 000 000 000 000
lejoy Z duoz | duoz | duoz € auoz Z duoz
pung aog ajinossen dliironse)  Buipueq SSOI | duoz
pung aog pund iajeps pung ramag pung ijamag

20z ‘8z sunr jo sy
sse|9 Aq jeays ooueeg
PUIsIg seoinieg Aunwiwos 3|jInonse)

44

ALINO3 2 SI1LNIFVIT IVLOL
Aunbz jejoy
awoou| JaN

sbuiureg pauejay . goge

lamag-sjassy (eydes uj pajsaauy|
1ajepm-sjassy |eyde) u pajsaAu|

Sduejeg puny ¢ suoz Bujpue SSOI Jomag
Butpue- ssop samag € duoz suonippy reyides
dduejeg pun4 z g | suoz samog

8duereq puny ajjinonsen-aog | auoz

Sduejeq puny ofoy osop-rog z auoz

rav A03 vdd 9NIaN3d

siseg |[enioay

¥2/51180
INY An:ni



Castroville Community Services District

Transaction Detail by Account
July 2023 through June 2024

Date Num Name

Water Projects/Construction In Progress
09/06/2023 83840 MNS Engineers, Inc.

10/17/2023 2023-87 Pueblo Water Resources, Inc.
11/01/2023 84243 MNS Engineers, Inc.
11/01/2023 84365 MNS Engineers, Inc.
01/24/2024 84737 MNS Engineers, Inc.
02/20/2024 85081 MNS Engineers, Inc.
02/20/2024 85367 MNS Engineers, Inc.
03/19/2024 85651 MNS Engineers, Inc.
04/12/2024 85851 MNS Engineers, Inc.
05/01/2024 86155 MNS Engineers, Inc.
05/29/2024 2024-44 Pueblo Water Resources, Inc.
06/28/2024 86741 MNS Engineers, Inc.
06/28/2024 86322 MNS Engineers, Inc.
06/28/2024 87060 MNS Engineers, Inc.

Total Water Projects/Construction In Progress

Building & Improvements
01/05/2024 24438
02/01/2024 1434

Associated Services, Inc
Signs By Van

Total Building & Improvements

Projects, Wells & Pipes

11/17/2023 1022 Quality Painting & Sandblasting
12/08/2023 11-12 Monterey Peninsula Engineering*
06/28/2024 145106 Borges & Mahoney Inc.
06/28/2024 174598 West Valley Construction
06/28/2024 24-1405.01 J Johnson & Company, Inc.

Total Projects, Wells & Pipes

Meters

03/05/2024 0002572-IN HydroPro Solutions West, Inc.
Total Meters
Hydrants

09/20/2023 23.08-27 B Monterey Peninsula Engineering*

Total Hydrants

Office Equipment

05/29/2024 5-23-2024 CHOMP

Total Office Equipment

Accumulated Depreciation Water

07/31/2023 July EOM New Customer Deposits
08/31/2023 Aug JE New Customer Deposits
09/29/2023 Sept JE

10/31/2023 EOM JE

11/30/2023 Nov EOM JE

12/29/2023 DEC EOM ...

01/31/2024 Jan EOM JE

02/29/2024 Feb EOM JE

03/29/2024 Marc EOM ...

04/30/2024 April EOM

05/31/2024 May JE 2024

06/28/2024 June JE

Total Accumulated Depreciation Water

Sewer Projects in Progress
09/06/2023 83839
11/01/2023 84242

MNS Engineers, Inc.
MNS Engineers, Inc.

Page 1

Memo

Emergency Deep ..
Deep Augquifer Sup
Emergency Deep ..

Emergency Deep ...
Emergency Deep ...
Emergency Deep ...
Emergency Deep ...
Emergency Deep ...
Emergency Deep ...

Emergency Deep ..

Well 6 Specifi catlons

Emergency Deep ..

Emergency Deep ...
Emergency Deep ...

New Furnace for Fr...
1/2 of Cost to Upgr...

Well #2 Recoating ...
Water Valves Repl...
Well Sites-Chlorina...
Renew 2 - 1" Coop...
New Water Main o...

4" Meter for Ocean...

New Hydrant Flush...

AED for Office

Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...
Accumulated Depr...
Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...
Accumulated Depr...
Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...
Monthty Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...

Washington Sewer...
Washington Sewer...

Debit

4,038.75
860.00
1,985.00
735.00
2,038.75
850.00
345.00
910.00
405.00
236.25
1,827.50
874.00
282.50
407.00

15,794.75

4,930.00
2,500.00

7,430.00

14,850.00
82,303.84
10,875.66
14,746.25
43,955.67

166,731.42

3,399.92
3,399.92

1,026.00

1,026.00

2,000.00

2,000.00

22,277.38
22,277.38

9,433.75
5,454.39

Credit

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

27,551.58
27,5651.58
27,551,58
27,551.58
27,551.58
27,551.58
27,5651,58
27,551.58
27,551.58
27,551.58
27,551.58

303,067.38

[45



Castroville Community Services District

Transaction Detail by Account
July 2023 through June 2024

Date Num Name
11/01/2023 84241 MNS Engineers, Inc.
11/01/2023 84364 MNS Engineers, Inc.
01/24/2024 84736 MNS Engineers, Inc.
02/20/2024 85080 MNS Engineers, Inc.
02/20/2024 85366 MNS Engineers, Inc.
03/19/2024 85650R1 MNS Engineers, Inc.
04/12/2024 85850 MNS Engineers, Inc.
05/01/2024 86154 MNS Engineers, Inc.
06/28/2024 87059 MNS Engineers, Inc.

Total Sewer Projects in Progress

Sewer Equipment

09/06/2023 0052140-IN WECO Industries, LLC

Total Sewer Equipment

Generator Via Linda Place
09/13/2023 88178
06/28/2024 1686

Conte's Generator Service
OnPaint Generators, Inc.

Total Generator Via Linda Place

Generator Castroville Blvd
09/13/2023 88178
05/01/2024 1410

Conte's Generator Service
Conte's Generator Service

Total Generator Castroville Blvd

Lift Station Sea Garden-Davis
05/14/2024 0002702-IN HydroPro Solutions West, Inc.

Total Lift Station Sea Garden-Davis

Sewer Building & Imp Zone 1 & 2
02/01/2024 1434 Signs By Van

Total Sewer Building & Imp Zone 1 & 2

Lift Station Campo & Los Arbo
08/02/2023 24973B147...  Shape Inc.

Total Lift Station Campo & Los Arbo

Accumulated Depr. Zone 2-Sewer

07/31/2023 July EOM New Customer Deposits
08/31/2023 Aug JE New Customer Deposits
09/29/2023 Sept JE

10/31/2023 EOM JE

11/30/2023 Nov EOM JE

12/29/2023 DEC EOM ...

01/31/2024 Jan EOM JE

02/29/2024 Feb EOM JE

03/29/2024 Marc EOM ...

04/01/2024 EOM Feb 2...

04/30/2024 April EOM

05/31/2024 May JE 2024

06/28/2024 June JE

Total Accumulated Depr. Zone 2-Sewer

Accumulated Depreciation Zone 1 Sewer

07/31/2023 July EOM New Customer Deposits
08/31/2023 Aug JE New Customer Deposits
09/29/2023 Sept JE

10/31/2023 EOM JE

11/30/2023 Nov EOM JE

Page 2

Memo

Design for Washin...

Washington Sewer...
Washington Sewer...
Washington Sewer...
Washington Sewer...
Washington Sewer...
Washington Sewer...
Washington Sewer...
Washington Sewer...

Sewer Hose 600'X...

Deposit for 25KW ...

24 RCLA Kohler G...

Deposit for 25KW ...
24 Cummins Gene...

Meter for Sea Gard..,

1/2 of Cost to Upgr...

Moro Cojo- New P...

Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...

Accumulated Depr...

Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...

Accumulated Depr...

Monthly Accumulat...
Feb 2024 Accumul...
Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...

Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...

Accumulated Depr...

Monthly Accumulat...

Debit

300.00
12,058.44
3,007.21
720.00
5,647.50
7,431.71
1,520.06
5,739.08
12,390.55

63,602.69

2,452.08
2,452.08

3,680.00
34,888.24

38,568.24

3,680.00

35,201.96

38,881.96

2,300.69

2,300.69

2,500.00
2,500.00

12,857.81
12,857.81

0.00

Credit

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

1,590.08
1,590.08
1,590.08
1,580.08
1,5690.08
1,590.08
1,590.08

150.08
1,590.08
1,440.00
1,590.08
1,590.08
2,808.12

20,299.00

4,299.00
4,299.00
4,299.00
4,299.00
4,298.00

[46



Castroville Community

Transaction Detail by Account
July 2023 through June 2024

Services District

Date

12/29/2023
01/31/2024
02/29/2024
03/29/2024
04/30/2024
05/31/2024
06/28/2024

Num
DEC EOM ...
Jan EOM JE
Feb EOM JE
Marc EOM ...
April EOM
May JE 2024
June JE

Total Accumulated Depreciation Zone 1 Sewer

Lift Station #3 by Phil's

11/15/2023

27275B168...

Total Lift Station #3 by Phil's

Shape Inc.

Lift Station #4 Portrero Road

11/15/2023
01/24/2024

27108B167...
90118

Total Lift Station #4 Portrero Road

Accumulated Depreciation Zone

07/31/2023
08/31/2023
09/29/2023
10/31/2023
11/30/2023
12/29/2023
01/31/2024
02/29/2024
03/29/2024
04/30/2024
05/31/2024
06/28/2024

July EOM
Aug JE

Sept JE
EOM JE

Nov EOM JE
DEC EOM ...
Jan EOM JE
Feb EOM JE
Marc EOM ...
April EOM
May JE 2024
June JE

Shape Inc.

Valley Fabrication, Inc.

Total Accumulated Depreciation Zone 3 Moss Landing

Moss Landin
11/01/2023
11/01/2023
11/01/2023
01/24/2024
02/20/2024
02/20/2024
03/19/2024
04/12/2024
05/01/2024
05/02/2024

Total Moss Landing Wastewater System Rehabilitaton Project

g Wastewater S
84244

83841
84366
84738
85082
85368
85652
85852
86156
49776

Land-Sewer Zone 3

01/17/2024

FWMN-521. .

Total Land-Sewer Zone 3

Castroville Landmark Sign

09/06/2023
11/01/2023
11/01/2023
01/24/2024
02/22/2024

83984
84222
84459
84832
186994

Total Castroville Landmark Sign

ystem Rehabilitato
MNS Engineers, Inc.
MNS Engineers, Inc.
MNS Engineers, Inc.
MNS Engineers, Inc.
MNS Engineers, Ing.
MNS Engineers, Inc.
MNS Engineers, Inc.
MNS Engineers, Inc.
MNS Engineers, Inc.
California Department of Fish and ...

Chicago Title Company

MNS Engineers, Inc.
MNS Engineers, Inc.
MNS Engineers, Inc.
MNS Engineers, Inc.

Penhall Company

Name

3 Moss Landing
New Customer Deposits
New Customer Deposits

Memo

Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...
Accumulated Depr...
Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat. ..
Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...

Spare Impeller for ...

Impelter for Lift Sta...
(2) 5/8" Plate Cove...

Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...
Accumulated Depr...
Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat. .
Monthly Accumulat...
Accumulated Depr...
Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat. ..
Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...

Moss Landing Was. ..
Moss Landing Wat...
Moss Landing Was...
moss Landing Was. ..
Moss Landing Was...
Moss Landing Was...
Moss Landing Was...
M L Wastewater S...
Moss Landing Was...
Moss Landing Was...

APN/Parcel 413-01...

CM/I for Castroville. .
CM/I for Castroville...
Caltrans-Castroille ..
CM/ for Castroville. ..
05-1P540 Castrovil...

Accumulated Depreciation-Government Zone 1 Castroville
07/31/2023 July EOM New Customer Deposits

Page 3

Monthly Accumulat...

Debit

0.00

2,027.69
2,027.69

2,123.11
3,945.15

6,068.26

0.00

6,773.04
456.25
4,268.78
8,169.99
587.50
6,666.55
1,625.63
2,505.68
1,518.24
20,803.75

53,375.41

10,000.00
10,000.00

920.00
805.00
275.00
445.00
5,522.00

7,967.00

Credit

4,299.00
4,299.00
4,299.00
4,299.00
4,299.00
4,299.00
2,827.00

50,116.00

0.00

0.00

2,562.92
2,562.92
2,562.92
2,562.92
2,562.92
2,562.92
2,562.92
2,562.92
2,562.95
2,562.92
2,562.92
3,003.85

31,196.00

0.00

0.00



Castroville Community Services District

Transaction Detail by Account
July 2023 through June 2024

Date

08/31/2023
09/29/2023
10/31/2023
11/30/2023
12/29/2023
01/31/2024
02/29/2024
03/29/2024
04/30/2024
05/31/2024
06/28/2024

Num

Aug JE

Sept JE
EOM JE

Nov EOM JE
DECEOM ...
Jan EOM JE
Feb EOM JE
Marc EOM ...
April EOM
May JE 2024
June JE

Name

New Customer Deposits

Total Accumulated Depreciation-Government Zone 1 Castroville

TOTAL

Page 4

Memo

Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...
Accumulated Depr...
Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...
Accumulated Depr...
Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...
Monthly Accumulat...

Debit

459,261.30

0.00

Credit

108.08
108.08
108.08
108.08
108.08
108.08
108.08
108.08
108.08
108.08
108.08

1,296.96
405,975.34

i48



CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
INTERNAL REPORT
Receipts, Disbursements, and Bank Balances as of July 31, 2024
Ending balance as of June 28, 2024 $17,950,296.38

CHASE BANK, GENERAL FUND - Revenue and Expenses

Beginning Balance 882,277.66
Water Receipts 128,753.88
Water-Sewer Miscellaneous Receipts 1,187.00
Property Taxes & User Fees 36,194.15
Void Lost Check #2605 VESTIS 364.00
Misc. Over/Short 0.00
Bank Fees & NSF Fees-ACH (680.14)
Expenses (Checks Written) (330,556.69)
Ending Balance for General Fund 717,539.86
CHASE BANK, CUSTOMER DEPOSIT FUND
Beginning Balance 67,442.49
New Deposits (opened accounts) 240.00
Water Installation Deposits 3,000.00
Deposits Returned or Applied to Accounts (240.00)
Ending Balance for Customer Deposit Fund 70,442.49
LAIF FUND- Average Monthly Effective Yield 4.516%
Beginning Balance Water Reserve 1,896,422.85
Beginning Balance Water Capital Improvement 1,143,154.06
Quarterly Interest Earned: January, April, July, & October 34,868.13
Beginning Balance Sewer (Zone1) Reserve 112,848.00
Beginning Balance Sewer (Zone 1 & 2) Capital Improvement 2,770,814.88
Quarterly Interest Earned: January, April, July, & October 32,008.65
Beginning Balance Governmental (Zone 1) 27132.84
Quarterly Interest Earned: January, April, July, & October 301.17
Beginning Balance Governmental (Zone 2) 54,780.63
Quarterly Interest Earned: January, April, July, & October 608.06
Beginning Balance Sewer Moss Landing (Zone 3) Capital Imp 164,164.06
Quarterly Interest Earned: January, April, July, & October 1,822.22
Ending Balance LAIF 6,238,925.55
CANP FUND-Yield 5.44%
Beginning Balance Sewer (Zone 1) Capital Improve Account 3,533,068.28
Monthly Interest Earned 16,260.30
Ending Balance Camp Federal Security Account 3,549,328.58
Beginning Balance Sewer (Zone 1) Reserves Account 262,842.01
Monthly Interest Earned 1,209.68
Ending Balance CAMP Federal Security Account 264,051.69
Beginning Balance Sewer Moss Landing (Zone 3) Capital Improv  1,097,687.42
Monthly Interest Earned 5,051.91
Ending Balance Camp Federal Security Account 1,102,739.33



CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
INTERNAL REPORT
Receipts, Disbursements, and Bank Balances as of July 31, 2024

CalTRUST-INVESTMENT

Beginning Balance Governmental (Zone 1) 52,207.40
Monthly Interest Earned 240.28
Ending Balance Camp Federal Security Account 52,447.68
Beginning Balance Governmental (Zone 2) 272,061.02
Monthly Interest Earned 1,252.11
Ending Balance Camp Federal Security Account 273,313.13
Beginning Balance Water Capital Improvements 3,025,353.90
Monthly Interest Earned 13,923.64
Ending Balance Camp Federal Security Account 3,039,277.54
Total CAMP Consolidated Summary 8,281,157.95
Beginning Balance Sewer (Zone 1) Medium-Term Account 2,588,038.88
Income Distribution 10,010.34
Unrealized Gain (Loss) 21,257.00
Ending Balance CalTRUST 2,619,306.22

New Balance as of July 31, 2024

| 17,927,372.07 |

150



California State Treasurer
Fiona Ma, cpA

Local Agency Investment Fund
P.O. Box 942809

Sacramento, CA 94209-0001
(916) 653-3001

b4

August 12, 2024

LAIF Home

PMIA Average Monthly Yields

CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

OFFICE MANAGER/SECRETARY TO THE BOARD
P.O. BOX 1065

11499 GEIL STREET

CASTROVILLE, CA 95012

Account Number: —

Tran Type Deflinitions

July 2024 Statement
Tran NED

Effective Transaction Type Confirm Confirm

Date Date P Number Number Authorized Caller
7/15/2024  7/12/2024 QRD 1755390 N/A SYSTEM
Account Summary
Total Deposit: 69,608.23 Beginning Balance:
Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance:

Amount
69,608.23

6,169,317.32
6,238,925.55

151



f \H“S?‘%’

PMIA/LAIF Performance Report
A as of 8/07/24

FLU e
® tyngyt”

.
qb’ ot

Quarterly Performance PMIA Average Monthly
Quarter Ended 06/30/24 Effective Yields!)

LAIF Apportionment Rate'?: 4.55 July 4.516
LAIF Earnings Ratio'”:  0.00012419067099490 June  4.480
LAIF Administrative Cost™:  0.16 May  4.332
LAIF Fair Value Factor':  0.996316042 April 4272
PMIA Daily™;  4.52 March  4.232
PMIA Quarter to Date™:  4.36 February  4.122

PMIA Average Life™: 217

Pooled Money Investment Account
Monthly Portfolio Composition (1}
6/30/24
$178.0 billion

Corporate

Commercial Bonds
Paper 0.39%

Time
Deposits

Certificates of
Deposit/Bank Notes
8.68%

Treasuries
56.92%

Chart does not include $1,567,000.00 in mortgages, which equates to 0.001%. Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding.

Daily rates are now available here. View PMIA Daily Rates

Notes: The apportionment rate includes interest earned on the CalPERS Supplemental Pension Payment pursuant to Government Code 20825
(c)(1) and interest earned on the Wildfire Fund loan pursuant to Public Utility Code 3288 (a).

*The percentage of administrative cost equals the total administrative cost divided by the quarterly interest earnings. The | aw provides that
administrative costs are not to exceed 5% of quarterly EARNINGS of the fund. However, if the 13 -week Daily Treasury Bill Rate on the last day of
the fiscal year is below 1%, then administrative costs shall not exceed 8% of quarterly EARNINGS of the fund for the subseque nt fiscal year.

Source:
M state of California, Office of the Treasurer
2)state of Calfiornia, Office of the Controller

152



CALIFORNIA STATE TREASURER
FIONA MA, CPA

PMIA Daily Effective Yield

Date Daily Quarter to Date | Average Maturity
08/07/24 4.57 4.53 221
08/06/24 4.57 4.52 222
08/05/24 4.57 4.52 222
08/04/24 4.57 4.52 224
08/03/24 4.57 4.52 224
08/02/24 4,57 4,52 224
08/01/24 4.57 4,52 224
07/31/24 4,59 452 220
07/30/24 4,53 451 216
07/29/24 4,52 4.51 217
07/28/24 4,52 451 217
07/27/24 4,52 4.51 217
07/26/24 4.52 4.51 217
07/25/24 453 451 216
07/24/24 4.52 4.51 217
07/23/24 4.53 4.51 216
07/22/24 4.53 451 217
07/21/24 4.53 4.51 217
07/20/24 4.53 451 217
07/19/24 4.53 4,51 217
07/18/24 4,53 4.51 218
07/17/24 4,53 4.50 219
07/16/24 4.54 4.50 218
07/15/24 4.53 4.50 219
07/14/24 4.50 4.50 216
07/13/24 4.50 4.50 216
07/12/24 4.50 4.50 216
07/11/24 4.50 4.50 217
07/10/24 4,50 4.50 216
07/09/24 4,50 4.50 217
07/08/24 4.50 4.49 217
07/07/24 4.50 4.49 221
07/06/24 4.50 4.49 221
07/05/24 4.50 4.49 221
07/04/24 4.49 4.49 223
07/03/24 4.49 4.49 223

*Daily yield does not reflect capital gains or losses

153

Updated: 8/7/2024



%,

2 vﬂﬁlfa ,

CALIFORNIA STATE TREASURER
FIONA MA, CPA

AN
“Upgot
PMIA Daily Effective Yield
Date Daily Quarter to Date | Average Maturity
07/02/24 4.49 4.49 225
07/01/24 4.49 4.49 224

*Daily yield does not reflect capital gains or losses

154

Updated: 8/7/2024



5
i

rm—

| abey Alewwng D71 wawabeue 1955y W4d

T Ajunje 03 sAeq abesoay pajybiam
%00°00T

Auoyiny %00°00T S6°LST'187'8% |ejog
slamod juior
000 000 siedh § RAQ
00°0 000 SIedA G 0] ¢
00'0 00'0 slesA p 0} €
000 000 siesh g0l ¢
000 000 sieAz 01 T
00'0 00°0 1e2A T 0] sAep 187
000 000 SARp 08T 01 16
000 000 sAep 06 031 19
00°0 000 sAep 09 03 T¢
00°00T S6°/ST'T8C'8 shep og Japun
JudIad anjeA e Guiso]d sBuipjoH o1jojpiod

uojedo||y 10323s (sbuip|oH 2wodu] paxid) uonlnquisiq Ajiniepw

%00°00T §6'ZST'182'8% |exol §6'LST'182'8% T6°LEG'LES iejoL
00°001 §6°/ST'182'8 Aoyiny siamod WIOL % bb'S S6°/S1'187'8 76°/£6°LE 100d dINYD
JuadIRd anjep 19y4ew buisopd adA] juawgsaauy PRIA ONjeA IHeW Stuoouy pue SBUIPIOH 01{0}310d
) juauny  bBuisop SpuspIAlq Yyse)d
UOI3B0]|V JUSLUISSAU] Alewwns o1j0j1104
1OTY1SIA SADIAYIS ALINNIWWOD ITHAOULSYD
$20¢ ‘1€ AIng 6uipu3 Yiuow sy Jod JudwAels Atewwns pajepljosuo) ¢ -

JUSWIA}L]S JUNOJDY 3 v



D71 udwabeue 19ssY Wid

¢ ebedq Alewwng
=
| Tl
T6°LEG'LES S6°ZST'182'8% 00°0$ 00°0% 00°0% T6°LE6'LES €0'0ZT'EPT'8% lejoL
$9'E26'ET $S'LLT'6ED'E 000 000 000 $9'€T6'ET 06°'€SE°ST0'E sjuswaoidw eyde) Jojem =g
T1Zset ET'ETE'ELT 00’0 00°0 00'0 11°25¢°T 70'190°2L2 {eUBLILIBAOE) Z BUOZ s
82°0bC 89'/bb'TS 00°0 00°0 000 82°0b2 0b'£02°2S {EIUBWIUIBAOD) T BUOZ oy
syuaLAosdw
16'150°S £€'6€4'201°T 00°0 000 000 16'1S0°S ' L89°L60°T (eyde) Buipuer ssop Jamas ST
89'602'T 69'150'9¢ 000 000 000 89°602'T 10°2H8'79C SIAYISTY YIMIS [zu=wed
0€£'092°91 85'8TE6V5'E 00°0 000 00'0 0£'09Z'9T 87'890°€£5°E SINIWIAOUAII TYLIdYD YIMIS G
awodug pue anjep anjep saped] sanumen sysodag anjep aweN junoddy laquinN
SPUIpIAIQ yse) Iajien m:_mo_u ul wm:ﬂ.__U pojesun \uo_ﬂm \ m:o_un_—:ﬂku_ \ sasepind JoNdel m—_____un_o JUN0NY

202 ‘1€ Ang 6ulpu3 yiuoly ay3 Jo4

jusWAL]IS JUNOIDY

1OTHLSIA SADIAYIS ALINNWIWOD ITHAOYLSYD
jJusWje}S Alewiwng pajepijosuo)

( [T
(c

o



CalTRUST

* PO Box 2709 Investment Account Summary
07/01/2024 through 07/31/2024

Granite Bay, CA 95746
www.caltrust.org

Email: admin@ecaltrust.org

CALT T Fax 402-963-9004
A PUBLIC AGENCY Phone: 833-CALTRUST (225-8787)

SUMMARY OF INVESTMENTS
Account Total Shares Net Asset Value Value on Average Cost Cumulative
Fund Number Owned per Share on Jul 31 ($) Amount ($) Change in
Jul 31 ($) Value ($)
CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT ==
CalTRUST Medium Term Fund (IO 266,731.794 9.82 2,619,306.22 2,686,390.19 (67,083.97)
Portfolios Total value as of 07/31/2024 2,619,306.22
DETAIL OF TRANSACTION ACTIVITY
Activity Activity Amount Amount Balance Pprice per Average Realized
Description Date ($) in Shares in Shares share ($) Balance ($) Cost Amt ($) Gain/(Loss) ($)
CalTRUST Medlum Term Fund CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT Accournt Number: 20100016010
Beginning Balance 07/01/2024 265,712.411 9.74 2,588,038.88
Accrual income Div Reinvestment 07/31/2024 10,010.34 1,019.383 266,731.794 9.82 2,619,306.22 0.00 0.00
Change in Value 21,257.00
Closing Balance as of Jul 31 266,731.794 9.82 2,619,306.22

197

Please note that this information should not be construed as tax advice and it is recommended that you consult with a tax professional regarding your account.

0000062-0000125 PDFT 676232

Page 1 of 2



Date

711/2024

718/2024
7111/2024
7111/2024
7111/2024
7111/2024
711112024
7/11/2024
7111/2024
7111/2024
7111/2024
7111/2024
7111/2024
711172024
7111/2024

7111/2024
7111/2024
7/11/2024
7/11/2024
7/111/2024

7/11/2024
711112024
7111/2024
7111/12024
7111/2024

7/11/2024

7111/2024

7/11/2024
7111/12024

7M11/2024
7/11/2024
711112024
7111/2024
7111/2024
7111/2024
7144/2024
7116/2024

7/16/2024

— k) S

List of Checks for July 2024

Number Name
General Fund Checking

2619
5
2620
2621
2622
2623
2624
2625
2626
2627
2628
2629
2630
2631
2632

2633
2634
2635
2636
2637

2638
2639
2640
2641
2642

2643

2644

2645
2646
2647-
2652
2653

b RN RN

2655

Pacific Gas & Electric
CalPERS-Health Benefits
ACWA JPIA

Akel Engineering Group Inc
AT&T

Borges & Mahoney Inc

Memo

Street Lighting Zone 1 & 2
Employees Monthly Health Benefits
Employees Dental/Vision/EAP

Void

Monthly Telephone Service

Well Sites Chlorinator System Cells

California Water Service Compam Water Meters at Zone 2 Lift Stations

Castroville Hardware
Castroville Tire & Rim

CCSD Petty Cash

Core & Main Lp

Eudoxio Orozco Jr.

Jonathan Varela

Lidia Santos

MNS Engineers Inc

continued

Monterey Bay Analytical Services
NCRPD

Optimum Business Services
Pacific Gas & Electric

Principal Life Insurance

Special District Risk
Management Authority

USA Bluebook

Valley Pacific Petroleum Services
VESTIS

Elan Financial Services-Eric
continued

continued

Elan Financial Services-Lidia
continued

continued

continued

Elan Financial Services-Roberto
continued

Willdan Financial Services

WM Corporate Services Inc

District Employees'

VALIC

Electronic Federal Tax Payment
EDD

PERS -Employees' Contribution
PERS-Employer Contribution
CalPERS-Financial Reports
MNS Engineers Inc

continued

OnPoint Generators

Parts & Supplies

Tires 2012 Chevy Truck

Replenish Petty Cash: Wood Planks
Saddles for Mains

Monthly Cellular Expense

Monthly Cellular Expense

Monthly Cellular Expense
Emergency Deep Aquifer Supply
Misc. On-Call Support Services
Monthly Water Testing Fees
Extended Recreation Services-CIP
Cannon Copier

Steel Garage

Employees Monthly Life Ins Premium

Annual Workers Comp Premium
Meter with Fluke Connect

Fuel for Trucks

Void

Misc. Lunch Meeting

Office Parking Blocks

Speaker for Computer

Monthly Cell for GM & Lead Operator
Monthly Modem Service

Annual CCSD Web Site

Intuit Payroll Employee Usage Fee
Field Supplies

CWEA Association Membership
Administration Fees for Tax Codes
Monthly Disposal Fees

Bi-Weekly Net Payroll

Bi-Weekly Deferred Comp

Bi-Weekly Payroll Taxes

Bi-Weekly Payroll Taxes

Bi-Weekly Retirement Benefits
Bi-Weekly Retirement Benefits
Annual Unfunded Liability for 2024/25
Emergency Deep Aquifer Supply
Misc. On-Call Support Services

& A

69'696969@6969%69 -693)69%99&9‘996969-&9%699969% 9‘3%%6}969696969%99%6‘)9969996969%69

Oil Analyst Kit for Sites W

Amount

3,478.76
18,194.96
961.62

325.20
11,250.77
61.37
426.12
1,300.00
53.87
2,147.59
40.00
40.00
40.00
874.00
278.23
296.00
95,000.00
7,537.11
20.62
107.35

14,892.59
583.93
93.45

136.31
131.32
54.61
104.46
38.97
1,020.00
66.00
235.74
221.00
375.00
76.66

14,373.77
2,265.00
6,401.54
1,165.44
1,661.92
2,481.68

11,774.00

282.50
139.12
219.81

158



Date

Number Name
General Fund Checking

Pacific Gas & Electric
continued

U.S. Postal Service
ACWA JPIA

All Safe

Castroville Auto Repair Inc

GreatAmerica Financial Services

Linde Gas & Equipment Inc

Monterey Bay Analytical Services

Optimum Business Services
OnPoint Generators

Pacific Gas & Electric
continued

Underground Service Alert

Valley Pacific Petroleum Services

VESTIS

West Valley Construction

7/25/2024 2671-2676 District Employees'

7/16/2024 2656
7/16/2024 2657
7/25/2024 2658
7/25/2024 2659
7/25/2024 2660
7/25/2024 2661
7/25/2024 2662
7/25/2024 2663
7/25/2024 2664
7/25/2024 2665
7/25/2024 2666
7/25/2024
7/25/2024 2667
7/25/2024 2668
7/25/2024 2669
7/25/2024 2670
7/25/2024 2677
7/25/2024 1
7/25/2024 2
7/25/2024 3
7/25/2024 4
7/25/2024 2678
7/25/2024 2679
7/25/2024 2680
71252024 2681
7/25/2024 2682

VALIC

Electronic Federal Tax Payment
EDD

PERS -Employees' Contribution
PERS-Employer Contribution
Cosme Padilla

Glenn Oania

Gregory K MacMillan

James Cochran

Ronald J. Stefani

Total General Fund - Checking

Customer Deposit Fund

713112024
7/31/2024
7/31/2024
7/31/2024

168
159
160
161

Jesus Gomez
Kathleen Smith
Adrian Soto
Castroville CSD

Memo

Zone 3 Lift Stations
Zone1 & 2 Lift Stations

Postage for July-September 2024
Property & Cyber Liability 2024/2025

Quarterly Alarm Monitoring

Yaris Toyota Repair/Maintenance
Monthly Lease of Billing Equipment

Supplies for Well Sites
Monthly Water Testing Fees
Office Supplies & Equipment
Generator for Via Linda

Well Sites & Office

Street Lighting Zone 1 & 2
Annual Membership Dues
Fuel for Vehicles

Void

Renew 2-1" Cooper Service @
11290 Merritt Street
Bi-Weekly Net Payroll
Bi-Weekly Deferred Comp
Bi-Weekly Payroll Taxes
Bi-Weekly Payroll Taxes
Bi-Weekly Retirement Benefits
Bi-Weekly Retirement Benefits
7-16-2024 Board Meeting
7-16-2024 Board Meeting
7-16-2024 Board Meeting
7-16-2024 Board Meeting
7-16-2024 Board Meeting

Deposit Refund
Deposit Refund
Deposit Refund
July Closure's

B APODADNDNDPAOHPADNADPALPA DAPODAB AL NADLANPAAPLLPHAE

@ P PP A

Amount

1,631.35
1,473.22
2,400.00
17,464.37
225.00
200.25
484.00
646.29
340.00
177.77
34,888.24
19,075.64
3,440.37
362.04
324.90

14,746.25
15,275.01
2,315.00
6,968.18
1,313.44
1,733.13
2,587.60
91.25
91.256
91.25
91.25
91.25
330,556.69

36.93
39.26
54.25
109.56
240.00

159



S

ofepyspoouly ¢ SZ0Z ‘S Aep Aeq "ip Bupy Jayin wie ©  SZOZ ‘OC uep Aepuiy el © 1202 ‘62 AON 7
Keq souspuedspu] «  6z0T ‘P INF Aepuoyy 1eise o 6202 ‘i2 Jdy ((Apred) vA ‘(Ajued) feq Buinbsyueyl e 20T ‘8C AON . 7
yeslaunf ¢ GZ0OZ ‘6L unp Aepung sejseq e G202 ‘0C 4dv awn ‘oq) Aeqg uonesnBneu) o Ggog ‘0T uer Aeq suesBlop © $20T ‘1L AON ]
AegsJeyreq o ¢zozg ‘SLunp fegxel e 620z ‘Sh idy AegsJeapA MaN ¢  GZ0¢T ‘L uer Aequolosy e  $20Z ‘G AON |
fegbel4 e 520Z ‘L unp feg sypuied 1S e G202 ‘Ll 1B aAg S e A MBN e 203 LE 99a usamojleH ¢ 202 ‘L€ 190
Aeq jeuowapy o SZ0Z ‘9 Ae Aeq siuapisald » €20ZT ‘L1 9od feq sewistiyp o 20T ‘s¢ 990 fe@ snquinjod = 202 ‘b1 190
Aea sJoyion o Sz02 ‘LI Aep Aeq spunuelep e 202 ‘v1 9od anj sewisuyd e $202 ‘v 990 Aeqioge] o  p2oT ‘T dos
e 08 62 82 L2 oc 62 1€ o8 62 82 L2 Q) 2 ¢ 62 8 L2
92 G2 ¥2 €2 22 12 02 82 /2 92 S V2 €2 22 2 €2 22 le 02 6l 8l 92 G2 ¥2 €2 22 g 02
6L 8L ZI 91 SI ¥ €l iz 0z B) 8+ 2+ 9ok SI LL 9L SL ¥L €L 21 1L 6L 8L ZL 91 SIL ¥l €I
2L LL O 6 8 L 9 ¥L €L 2L L OL 6 8 oL 6 8 L 9 S Vv ZL LL OL B 8 L 9
s () e z 1 L 9 S v £ 2 | e z |1 S v € 2 |
S 4 1 M 1 /] S S 4 1 M 1 N S S F] L M 1 N S S 4 1 M 1 n S
Geoe Ainp 620z aunp G20z Aepl 620z [udy
I 0¢
62 82 /2 92 G2 V2 €2 82 /2 92 G2 V2 €2 IS 0€ 62 82 /2 0€ 62
2z 1z 0z 6L 8L LL 9L 2 12 0z 6L 8L (L) 9k ST vE €2 e 12 ‘9 gz Lz 9% (@) v2 € &
GL ¥1 €L 2 I OL 6 GL ¥ €L 2+ L OF 6 8L LL 91 G v €I 2t 2 02 61 81 LI 91 Si
8 L 9 § v € ¢ 8 L 9 S v € 2 Il OL 6 8 L 9 § vL €L 2L L} 0L 6 8
| L v ¢ 2z (1) L 9 S v € 2 |
S E] 1 M 1 N S S El 1 M 1 N S S E] L ;m..v 1 N S S 4 1 M 1 N S
G202 yolep 6eoeg Arenuqe4 6zoeg Atenuer ¥20z Jaquiadeg
0€ 62 @ lZ 92 G2 V2 e 0 62 82 /2 0€ 62 IE 0 62 82 /2 92 G2
€2 22 L2 02 6L 8L LI 92 G2 ¥2 €2 22 gz 02 82 /2 92 G2 v2 €2 22 vZ €2 22 12 02 61 8I
oL gb vb st g (t)or 6k 8k 2 ok SL(P) €L 12 02 6L 8 Lk 9k Sk Lk 9L Sb bk EL 2k
6 8 L 9 G v ¢ 2L LL OL 6 8 L 9 ¥l €L 2L L O 6 8 oL 6 8 L 9 S ¥
z | S v £ 2 | . 9 s v ¢ (2) € 2 |
S E| 1 M L N S S 4 L M 1 N S S 4 1 M L dEU S S 4 L M L N S
v¥20¢ 19aquaAoN ¥20e 18qo100 veoz Jaquieidas peog 1snbny

ajpppupawl ="

(sele1s panun) szoe Ainp—zog isnbny



